iracle

N3

R

I
M B e B OBX (8 k) A R 2 H

Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited

( Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability )
(REASREHEREINERAR)

Stock Code AR 3 1X55: 2199

2019/20 ===




ABOUT US
E)iEi

Founded in Hong Kong in 1998, Regina Miracle International
(Holdings) Limited (“Regina Miracle” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is a global leader in the
intimate wear manufacturing industry. Adopting the innovative
design manufacturer (“IDM”) business model, Regina Miracle
offers its world-renowned brand partners diverse intimate wear
and functional sports products, mainly including bras, sports
bras, panties, shapewear, bra pads, functional sports apparel
and footwear. The Group has two strategic strongholds - its
research and development (“R&D"”) and production base in
Shenzhen, China and, since the Group expanded production
capacity in 2016, Vietnam has become its important production
base.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
HBHE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Regina Miracle BB (ZR) AR AR ([#HE R ][ &
International (Holdings) Limited (“Regina Miracle” or the AR NEZS([EEGMAEMHALT R
“Company”) is pleased to announce the annual results of the HMtE AR (s &M ]) B Z=202063 A
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the 3TEIEFE([20208 F ) M2 FE4E - ER
year ended 31 March 2020 (“Fiscal 2020"), together with the 20195 [FIHA([ 201981 & | &I LL I E T ©
comparative figures for the corresponding year in 2019 (“Fiscal

2019").
COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL FTEMKEREB KRN
INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL RATIOS L33
Year ended 31 March
BZEZ3H31MBLLEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Revenue A 6,341,010 6,263,280 1.2%
Gross profit EF 1,440,731 1,341,945 7.4%
Profit attributable to owners of  ARQABEHE A
the Company JE(E = F 289,953 282,438 2.7%

Earnings before interest, taxes,  BFiHTE R 4ATFE
depreciation and amortisation ([EBITDA ] )*

("EBITDA")# 969,745 745,856 30.0%
Gross profit margin (%) EHE(%) 22.7% 21.4%  +1.3ppENDE
Net profit margin (%) FEFIZE (%) 4.6% 45%  +0.1ppEDE

Earnings before interest, taxes,  BFiiTE K
depreciation and amortisation BIFDEE (%)

margin (%) 15.3% 11.9%  +3.4ppE D2
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
Earnings per share — basicand & Z&F|—
diluted EARR S 23.7 23.1
Dividend per share BREE 7.8 7.6
— Interim dividend —FHEIRE 3.8 3.6
— Proposed final dividend — R B 4.0 4.0
# Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation is not a # ERITE REHEAF BT IR IER BT SRS
measure of performance under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards HER([EBURREERDFERBRHHE -
("HKFRS"), but is widely used by management for monitoring business HEEENREEAREELANXBREREL
performance of a company from operational perspective. It may not be FEF o EARMATEEA AR 2R ELL
comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. e
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On behalf of the Board of the Company and the
Group, | hereby present to our shareholders the
annual report of the Group for Fiscal 2020.

AANERRARREZTEGRAKE  ARREZAKE
20201 FH B FRAEWS ©

YY Hung

Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

TR BEWITERNTEE

Over the past year, consumer sentiment was battered by China-
US trade frictions and the global economic slowdown. To enhance
competitiveness and achieve sustainable development, the Group
established clear development guidelines for this fiscal year at
the beginning of last year, which included a focus on promoting
innovative craftsmanship and optimising the brand and product
portfolio structure, so as to attain better profitability alongside
business development.

At the same time, the Group endeavoured to further improve the
deployment of its production capacity. After Vietnam Factory D
and E officially commenced operation in the first half of this fiscal
year, the Group has made unremitting efforts to ramp up the
overall production scale and efficiency of its Vietnam factories, so
as to satisfy the demand of different regional brand partners for
production lines in Vietnam and the PRC. By leveraging the unique
positioning as an innovative design manufacturer (IDM) and its
close ties with brand partners, the Group continued to support
the business development needs of its brand partners during the
year.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ER®E
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERE

The COVID-19 pandemic (the “"Pandemic”) during the last
quarter of this fiscal year has inevitably affected the revenue and
profitability of the fiscal year, and yet owing to our ongoing efforts
before the Pandemic, the Group still recorded an increase in
revenue for Fiscal 2020, which amounted to HK$6,340.0 million,
up 1.2% year-on-year; net profit also grew by 2.7% to HK$290.0
million. In view of the Group’s sustained sound financial position,
the Board has resolved to propose a final dividend of HK4.0 cents
per share, together with an interim dividend of HK3.8 cents per
share; total dividend amounted to HK7.8 cents for this fiscal year,
which was in line with the Group’s policy of paying no less than
30% of its net profit as dividends each year.

In the face of the sudden outbreak of the Pandemic, the Group
quickly set up its emergency response team at the end of
January, aiming to reduce the possible impact on the business.
Although the entire industrial supply chain and factories in
the PRC were temporarily affected at the early stages of the
Pandemic in February and March when China and Japan were first
hit, which caused a delay in the resumption of operations for the
Shenzhen factory of the Group after the Lunar New Year holiday,
the operations were generally resumed by early March, while
the Group’s main production base in Vietnam has been operating
normally after the Lunar New Year holiday despite an affected
supply of raw materials from China, reflecting the Group's ability
to resume its production capacity rapidly. Subsequently, the
Pandemic was gradually contained in China but it rapidly spread
across multiple countries worldwide since March, which dealt a
heavy blow to the economic and retail markets in Europe and the
United States. This has materially affected the Group's orders
from European and American customers. Consequently, the
Group has temporarily suspended its staff recruitment this year
until the global economy and consumer markets are back on track.

We expect that it will take time for a full recovery and the Group's
performance in Fiscal 2021 will thus be affected. Based on the
preliminary assessment, the Group's sales performance during
the first quarter from April to June 2020 will register a low double-
digit decline year-on-year. Moreover, as the Vietnam government
imposed a nationwide lockdown from 1 to 23 April 2020, some
employees were not able to work across districts during this
period and therefore, the overall production efficiency was
affected. This, compounded by operating deleveraging, set to
pose greater challenges to the Group's profit performance. On a
month-on-month basis, its sales performance in the first quarter
has unveiled a gradual improvement with the operation and orders
of certain partners gradually recovering, but it will still take time
for the Group’s sales and profit performance to return to a normal
level given the uncertainties ahead.

MAEYFHE—FTBI2019TMHESTE
BI&EE])  SAMFENRGE KRBT EEE
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In response to such ramifications, the Group has promptly
implemented various cost reduction and cash retention measures
to control costs more effectively and maintain a sound financial
position. In regard to cost-cutting, the Group has adopted a rota
system in its Shenzhen factory based on the actual order needs,
thereby reducing costs. We also plan to surrender parts of the
leased factory in Shenzhen within Fiscal 2021 in a bid to reduce
operating expenses for the Group in the longer term. In terms of
cash retention, the Group will temporarily suspend unnecessary
investment in fixed assets this year to reduce capital expenditure
and ensure sufficient cash flow for operations. As such, the
Group’s new factory in Hung Yen, Vietnam, will be rescheduled to
commence operation in the first half of Fiscal 2021.

Besides, the Group has endeavoured to maintain business
operations. During the Pandemic, given the huge demand for
pandemic prevention products in the global market, the Group
also initiated the development of such products, including fabric
face masks and protective clothing, which were mainly supplied
to colleagues and existing brand partners. However, as the Group
continues to apply for relevant certifications for its production
workshops and face mask products, the production and the types
of pandemic prevention products are expected to increase in the
future.

The Group believes that innovative and value-for-money products
will be more capable of winning in the face of the sluggish
consumer market. Regina Miracle's success over the past 20
years has been underpinned by its strong IDM capabilities. At
present, the Group remains dedicated to continuously undertaking
research and development projects with various brand partners,
so as to develop more trendsetting intimate wear products with a
strong value proposition for the international brand partners with
its unique innovative technology.

In addition, we believe that the Pandemic may give rise to
higher consumer health awareness, thereby offering even more
promising prospects for comfortable casual wear and functional
sports products. The Group’s entrepreneurial spirit of pursuing
innovation has proven to be advantageous in such difficult
operating environment as reflected by the strong performance
of the orders achieved subsequent to the review year. In regard
to sales channels, the accelerated growth in online shopping
during the Pandemic has partially compensated the decline in
brick-and-mortar sales. In the medium- to long-term, the Group
is also committed to expanding into the huge PRC intimate wear
and functional sports market.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERE

Regina Miracle has experienced ups and downs in different
economic cycles over the past 20 years. Nonetheless, leveraging
the rich experience and vision of the management team, we
believe that the Group can tackle the immediate challenges.
By taking advantage of the present opportunities, the Group is
conducting in-depth review of internal operations and production
processes from multiple angles, streamlining the structure
and optimising processes to lay a stronger foundation. One of
the examples is to implement supply chain and management
localization strategy as soon as possible to avoid a slowdown of
the Group's pace of development due to the changing external
conditions. We will uphold the core value of “IDM” and further
develop more high value-added and cost-effective innovative
products for brand partners with trendsetting innovative
design. We are confident that we would be able to seize
business opportunities swiftly when the economy recovers, and
differentiate ourselves in the midst of industry consolidation,
thereby creating a win-win situation with our brand partners.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to extend my heartfelt
gratitude to the Board, the management team and our colleagues
for their contributions and hard work to the development of the
Group. In particular, in the face of the current adversity, | would
like to express my sincere appreciation to all the colleagues
for their continuous professionalism and commitment to their
positions, facing the challenges together with joint efforts. At
the same time, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to our
customers for their support and trust over the years, and thank
our shareholders, business partners and suppliers for their long-
term trust in the Group. Regina Miracle will continue to strive
for progress in the spirit of innovation, grow together with brand
and business partners, and promote the long-term sustainable
development of the Group's business.

YY Hung
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBTWR DM

MARKET REVIEW

During the year under review, international events such as the
ongoing China-US trade negotiations and Brexit have led to
potential fluctuations in the global economy, which inevitably
affected the consumer market. The outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic (the “"Pandemic”) at the end of last year has brought
unforeseen impact to the global economy. China and Japan bore
the brunt of the Pandemic in February and March. While China's
domestic market started recovering in March, the consumer
markets of Europe and US were affected from March to May
due to a large-scale shop closures and governments’ pandemic
prevention measures. Consequently, the results of the Group in
the last quarter was inevitably affected. Nevertheless, Regina
Miracle's production capacity layout and its innovative design
manufacturing (IDM) capabilities in the PRC and Vietnam have
already laid a solid foundation for the business before the
Pandemic. The management is of the view that when the global
economy recovers from the economic woes brought by the
Pandemic, the Group will be able to swiftly seize the opportunities
brought forward by potential industry consolidation, cooperate
with international partners and overcome the challenges ahead
with trendsetting innovative products and flexible production
capacity deployment.

Under the latest China-US trade tensions before the outbreak of
the Pandemic, the Group acted in concert with its brand partners
in their business development across different regions, and
adjusted the deployment of production capacity appropriately
between Vietnam and Shenzhen, where the production of
orders designated for export to the United States has largely
been transferred to Vietnam. The operational role of the Group's
Shenzhen factory had also been adjusted accordingly to serve
primarily as the research and development ("R&D") base of
the Group, while focusing on supporting brand partners in
manufacturing products sold in China’'s domestic markets.
Despite the impacts upon production lines and supply chain in the
PRC due to various measures including the delayed resumption of
operations across the nation at the early stages of the outbreak, the
Group's production at its Shenzhen factory resumed in an orderly
manner with the premise of ensuring the safety of employees,
while Vietnam as the principal production base had largely been
operating as usual despite an affected supply of raw materials
from China. As the Pandemic further spread across the world in
March, certain European and American brand partners postponed
delivery of orders. Externally, the Group has maintained its close
communication and cooperation with business partners so as to
tide over the difficult times together. Internally, the Group has
temporarily suspended staff recruitment until the global economy
and consumer markets are back on track.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

By leveraging its ongoing advancements in craftsmanship, the
Group not only developed multiple trendsetting products and
reinforced its collaborative ties with world-renowned brand
partners during the year, but also made good use of its existing
technologies and resources amidst this pandemic for business
expansion towards pandemic prevention products such as fabric
face masks and protective clothing, and at the same time invested
resources in developing household and health concept products,
as well as sports peripheral products, enhancing risk resilience
while promoting the development of business diversification.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Financial Performance

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$6,341.0
million (Fiscal 2019: HK$6,263.3 million) amidst the difficult
operating environment, representing a year-on-year increase
of 1.2%. Gross profit grew by 7.4% to HK$1,440.7 million,
with gross profit margin slightly lifted to 22.7% (Fiscal 2019:
approximately HK$1,341.9 million and 21.4%, respectively).
Benefiting from the rising production capacity and efficiency of its
Vietnam factories, the Group recorded continuous improvements
in profit margin. Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortization (EBITDA) increased by 30.0% to HK$969.7
million, with EBITDA margin lifted meaningfully to 15.3% (Fiscal
2019: approximately HK$745.9 million and 11.9%, respectively).
Meanwhile, net profit rose by 2.7% to HK$290.0 million, with a
net profit margin of 4.6% (Fiscal 2019: approximately HK$282.4
million and 4.5%, respectively). Basic earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK23.7 cents
(Fiscal 2019: HK23.1 cents).

The Group is in a healthy financial position. In addition to stable
operating cash flows, it also holds sufficient cash in hand and
total undrawn trade and term loan facilities of approximately
HK$587.6 million and HK$2,571 million, respectively as at 31
March 2020 (31 March 2019: HK$466.4 million and HK$1,732
million, respectively).

To share the positive results of the Group with shareholders, the
Board has resolved to propose a final dividend of HK4.0 cents
per share for the Fiscal 2020. Together with an interim dividend
of HK3.8 cents per share paid during the year, the total dividend
will amount to HK7.8 cents per share (Fiscal 2019: HK7.6 cents),
which is in line with the Group’s policy of paying no less than
30% of its net profit as dividends for the fiscal year. The proposed
final dividend is subject to approval from shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting to be held on Friday,
21 August 2020. The final dividend is expected to be paid on or
around Friday, 11 September 2020 to shareholders whose name
appears on the register of members of the Company on Tuesday,
1 September 2020.

SR =RE i

BREFEEBAFTE  AKETERFRA
FIRZ A FMRNEmRMERRERAE
miEBHNAERE  FEIRIETERR
BERMERER - FAPRER (RS &5
#RFE) - AERABRRAZEREMEERS
En AREBRAESEMRS  EEDEHKZ
LR 28 - TMEATRAREES

LR

B #&RIR

FR - AEEERENKEERETNRG
U355 %6,341.08 Bt (20198 F « B
6,263.3B &) * REER1.2%  EFILM
74% BB 4407E BT - EFRBFR
F222.7% (201981 5 - H RIA)EE1,341.9
BEIILK21.4%) o SRR BRBREE§E
WMERFERA - AEEOHFBERBERS
ME - BRYTE R AT E(EBITDA)E K
30.0% &% #969.78 E Tt  EBITDAREE
RFAZE15.3% (201991 F « HRIKIEHT745.9
BEITKI1.9%) o FE - @ IMEA2.7%
Z8BM290.0BET ' fFEE46% (2019
BF  DRILAB 28248 ETTNA5%) °
RAREE ABIEEBRERRBFA23.781
(201984 4F = 23.178l) -

AEENBARRER  BRTBENEERS
W MEERRNFERES L ARRENE S K
FHERBERLE - 2020F3A318 © M
ED R4 B 58768 BT REK2571HE
JL(2019%3A31H : Hl A EK466.4EE
TR, 7328 E7T) °

ABHERESZNR  EZSCRAESEM
20208 F &R AR B B ZRR4.08 1 - &R
RERIR B BB 3.881lL - BIRE A
7.88M(201984F : 7.6780l) - BEBALEE
DR I R AR D H30% KRR B R o
B AR BB AR R E 202048 A
1R (28R RITHBREAFT RS LH#
% HA{EE o REIRR B TEFT 202069 A
1M B(E8R)HF11ERMN2020F9/81H (£
B =) B 5 AR RIRE R A A RS B A o

FEERE2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 13



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBTWR DM

Bras and intimate wear

Bras and intimate wear products remain the major source of
revenue of the Group. During the year, this segment contributed
HK$5,061.4 million (Fiscal 2019: HK$4,874.6 million), representing
a year-on-year increase of 3.8% and accounting for approximately
79.8% of the overall revenue. In addition, gross profit amounted
to HK$1,183.8 million, with gross profit margin improving to
23.4% (Fiscal 2019: HK$1,070.3 million and 22.0%).

Driven by the heightened pursuit of consumers for comfortable
and good value-for-money intimate wear, Regina Miracle has
developed multiple innovative products for its world-renowned
brand partners with its trendsetting craftsmanship. Among them,
the chic bra top series sold successfully, which significantly
bolstered the volume of orders. The chic bra top products not
only became the major growth driver of this segment, but more
importantly also contributed to a closer partnership with the
brands, thus achieving a more balanced customer portfolio.
Therefore, although the Pandemic spread across the globe in
March had caused a delay in the shipment of certain orders, the
revenue of this segment still recorded an increase during the year.

Bra pads and other molded products

Revenue from bra pads and other molded products business
amounted to HK$677.1 million (Fiscal 2019: HK$530.9 million), a
significant year-on-year increase of 27.5%, accounting for 10.7%
of the total revenue. Gross profit and gross profit margin from
the segment were HK$144.2 million and 21.3% (Fiscal 2019:
HK$111.6 million and 21.0%, respectively).

The double-digit revenue growth of this segment was mainly
driven by an increase in sales of fabric processing and other
accessories used in consumer electronic products, which was
the fruitful results of Regina Miracle's R&D efforts in actively
expanding its business across different sectors and product
categories for nearly two years. During Fiscal 2020, not only did
the Group record high double-digit growth in orders of virtual
reality (VR) glasses accessories from its existing VR technology
partner, but also gained a well-known multinational technology
partner, for which the Group manufactured a wider range of
components for consumer electronic products beyond VR glasses
accessories.

The revenue from bra pads maintained a moderate growth due
to a slight increase in revenue from external sales of bra pads.
The Group has reserved the majority of its bra pads capacity to
facilitate in-house manufacturing of finished bras in recent years.
At present, not only can the Vietnam factory completely self-
supply bra pads, but it can also supply to the Shenzhen factory,
which helps strengthen its cost control.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Functional sports products

The functional sports products business contributed HK$602.5
million in revenue during the year (Fiscal 2019: HK$857.8 million),
a year-on-year decrease of 29.8%, and accounted for 9.5% of the
total revenue of the Group. The segment also recorded a gross
profit of HK$112.7 million and a gross profit margin of 18.7%
(Fiscal 2019: HK$160.1 million and 18.7%, respectively).

The decline in segment revenue was a result of the Group's
execution of its strategy to optimise its brand customer and
product portfolio in the second half of Fiscal 2019, with the aim
of facilitating more effective allocation of R&D and production
resources. For footwear business, the Group focused on
cooperating with an American casual footwear brand partner
during Fiscal 2020 after terminating its sports footwear business
with another brand.

As for the sportswear business, the Group also focused on
cooperating with internationally renowned brands to promote
the steady growth of its business. By leveraging the excellent
craftsmanship of seamless bonding, Regina Miracle has
developed innovative products for international sports and
leisure brand partners. As a result, the Group recorded growth in
sportswear order volume despite the exits of other sportswear
customers, becoming another growth point of its business.

Production capacity

During the year, Factories D and E, which house more automated
machineries, formally commenced production, marking a big
step closer to the full commissioning of the Group’s factories
located in Vietnam Singapore Industrial Park (“VSIP”) in Hai
Phong City, Vietnam, with the proportion of local production
accounted for approximately 60% of the total revenue last year
rising to approximately 73% in Fiscal 2020. As at 31 March 2020,
the Group had a total of approximately 34,500 employees in
Vietnam. With regard to the Shenzhen factory, a workforce of
approximately 8,000 served the R&D hub and production base.

The Group has accumulated several years of factory operation
experience in Vietnam. In particular, Factories A and B have
steadily matured where skilled workers with over 1 year of
experience accounted for 73%, which facilitated a significant
improvement in production efficiency and met expectations.
Based on the successful operation in Factories A and B, the
Group adjusted the allocation of production lines across Factories
C, D and E according to the demand, all in a bid to improve the
efficiency of existing facilities and drive productivity to an optimal
level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBTWR DM

THE GROUP’S OPERATING RESULTS

Revenue

We derive our revenue primarily from direct sales of our products.
Our total revenue increased by 1.2% from HK$6,263.3 million in
Fiscal 2019 to HK$6,341.0 million in Fiscal 2020. A comparison of
the Group's revenue for Fiscal 2020 and Fiscal 2019 by product
categories is as follows:

REENEERESE

WA
BMOBAEZZRERKRMERNEZHEE -
U A\ 4B %E R 20198/ FF /975 56,263. 3B B L1
N1.2% E 202087 F K& 16,341.08 & T °
AES[E202084 F K2 20198 F iR E mAB R 8l o
FIMRA LB N T -

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3A31HLEE

2020
20205
% of
Revenue
EAR
Aot

HK$'000

ERTR

2019 Change
20195 4
% of
Revenue
(X ONf)
BaL

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT

BB

Bras and intimate wear & KB & Rk 5,061,431 79.8 4,874,609 77.8 186,822 38
Bra pads and other molded ~ Jif R EfiE B 677,093 10.7 530,890 8.5 146,203 275

products Em
Functional sports products e tEREER 602,486 95 857,781 137 (255,295) (29.8)
6,341,010 100.0 6,263,280 100.0 77,730 1.2

Revenue generated from sales of bras and intimate wear
increased by HK$186.8 million, or approximately 3.8%, from
HK$4,874.6 million in Fiscal 2019 to HK$5,061.4 million in Fiscal
2020. The increase was primarily due to the increase in sales
volume of our bras driven by an increased demand from our
customers. Revenue generated from sales of bras and intimate
wear as a percentage of our total revenue increased from 77.8%
in Fiscal 2019 to 79.8% in Fiscal 2020.

Revenue generated from sales of bra pads and other molded
products amounted to HK$677.1 million in Fiscal 2020,
representing an increase of approximately HK$146.2 million, or
approximately 27.5%, as compared to Fiscal 2019, which was due
to the increased demand from our customers. Revenue generated
from sales of bra pads and other molded products as a percentage
of our total revenue increased from 8.5% in Fiscal 2019 to 10.7%
in Fiscal 2020.

Revenue generated from sales of functional sports products
decreased by HK$255.3 million, or approximately 29.8%, from
HK$857.8 million in Fiscal 2019 to HK$602.5 million in Fiscal
2020. The decrease was primarily due to the cessation of
sports footwear business with one of our sports customers.
Revenue generated from sales of functional sports products as a
percentage of our total revenue decreased from 13.7% in Fiscal
2019 to0 9.5% in Fiscal 2020.

$HE M9 E & Bh & 7 BT EE £ URA FR 201984 F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of sales

Cost of sales primarily consists of costs of raw materials, employee
benefit expenses for personnel directly involved in our production
activities, depreciation of our production equipment and others.

S ERE SR

SHERA

HERATIBBERMHRA BR28E
EEHETIMEBBMNRAY £EXRBINE
R E A o

For the year ended 31 March

BZ3ANALEE
2020 2019 Change
20204 20195 2%
% of % of
HK$'000  Revenue HK$'000 Revenue HK$'000
9N fEHAR
BT T AR BB Bl BETR
Costs of raw materials [RATRIRA 2,166,269 342 2,320,360 37.0  (154,091) (6.6)
Employee benefit expenses EEBMES 1,952,693 308 1,892,003 30.2 60,690 3.2
Depreciation e 349,402 5.5 245,063 3.9 104,339 426
Utilities UNZES S 141,963 2.2 112,973 1.8 28,990 25.7
Others Hip 289,952 4.6 350,936 5.7 (60,984) (17.4)
4,900,279 77.3 4,921,336 78.6 (21,056) (0.4)

Cost of sales as a percentage of total revenue decreased from
78.6% in Fiscal 2019 to 77.3% in Fiscal 2020. This was primarily
attributable to our continued efficiency improvement of the
Vietnam factories, resulting in a reduction of cost of materials as a
percentage of our total revenue.

Cost of sales decreased from HK$4,921.3 million in Fiscal 2019
to HK$4,900.3 million in Fiscal 2020 primarily due to reduction of
cost of materials attributable to continued efficiency improvement,
which partially offset by increase in employee benefit expenses
and depreciation as a result of the continued expansion of our
Vietnam factories.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

HHERAME WA BTN E D LL 201981 6
78.6% T EXZE 202081 FEY77.3% ° Wi F =
mR RS RS ENE - SRS
WA BB B 0 L TS RPTER ©

HERAR20198 FEH4,921 3BETTT
P& Z 202081 FEVEH54,900.3E 8T - TEH
TA R R 55 0 R 45 R A B BUR AR AR AR
Lo RO RBEREFERREEESR
MFIS RATE L DA -

EFNRERNR

For the year ended 31 March
BE3A31HLEE

2020

2020
Gross
Gross Profit
Profit margin
E Ef=E
HK$'000 %
BT T BOl

2019

2019
Gross
Gross Profit
Profit margin
£H  EHE
HK$'000 %
BT BOl

HK$'000
BETT

Bras and intimate wear & KB & R 1,183,845 234 1,070,262 220 113,683 10.6
Bra pads and other molded

products MR e B AR R 144,221 213 111,617 21.0 32,604 29.2
Functional sports products el @S EER 112,665 18.7 160,066 18.7 (47,401) (29.6)
Gross profit 5 1,440,731 22.7 1,341,945 214 98,786 74
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBTWR DM

Our overall gross profit increased from HK$1,341.9 million in
Fiscal 2019 to HK$1,440.7 million in Fiscal 2020. The gross profit
margin in Fiscal 2020 was 22.7%, as compared to 21.4% in
Fiscal 2019. Such increase was mainly driven by our continued
efficiency improvement of the Vietnam factories.

The gross profit margin of bras and intimate wear increased from
22.0% in Fiscal 2019 to 23.4% in Fiscal 2020, primarily due to our
continued efficiency improvement of the Vietnam Factory A and B.

Gross profit margin of bra pads and other molded products have
remained relatively stable at 21.0% in Fiscal 2019 and 21.3% in
Fiscal 2020.

Gross profit margin of functional sports products have also
remained relatively stable at 18.7% in both Fiscal 2019 and Fiscal
2020.

Other income and other gains, net

Our other income and other gains consist primarily of government
grants. It increased from HK$28.4 million in Fiscal 2019 to
HK$65.9 million in Fiscal 2020, primarily attributable to an increase
in government grants subsidies, which depend on the government
grant policies and criteria during different time periods.

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses primarily consist of freight and
transportation expenses, employee benefit expenses for our sales
personnel, travelling expenses, declaration charges, marketing
and promotion expenses and others.

For Fiscal 2020 and Fiscal 2019, the Group's distribution and
selling expenses as a percentage of total revenue have remained
relatively stable at 2.6% and 2.5% respectively.

Distribution and selling expenses increased from HK$155.3 million
in Fiscal 2019 to HK$164.5 million in Fiscal 2020, primarily due to
an increase in freight and transportation expenses and employee
benefit expenses.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses primarily consist of
employee benefit expenses for our administrative personnel,
depreciation and amortization, other taxes and surcharges,
building management fee, insurance, office and administrative
expenses, bank charges and others.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

General and administrative expenses as a percentage of total
revenue increased from 9.9% in Fiscal 2019 to 10.5% in Fiscal
2020, mainly due to an increase in depreciation and amortisation,
and employee benefit expenses, as a result of the Group's
factories expansion in Vietnam.

General and administrative expenses increased from HK$619.0
million in Fiscal 2019 to HK$664.5 million in Fiscal 2020, mainly
due to the reasons mentioned above.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs consist of employee benefit
expenses for our research and development personnel, raw
materials and consumables used and others.

The Group’s research and development costs have remained
relatively stable in terms of absolute amount and percentage of
total revenue respectively for both Fiscal 2019 and Fiscal 2020.

Finance income
Finance income represents interest income on bank deposits.

Finance costs

Finance costs represent interest expense on borrowings, net of
interest expenses capitalised. Our finance costs as a percentage
of total revenue increased from 1.4% in Fiscal 2019 to 2.6% in
Fiscal 2020, primarily due to 1) global trend of rising interest rate
during Fiscal 2020; 2) an increase in borrowings, as a result of
Vietnam factories expansion and business growth in Fiscal 2020;
and 3) interest in the amount of HK$15.1 million on discounting
impact of long term utilities deposits and lease liabilities on
adoption of HKFRS 16 in Fiscal 2020.

The increase in finance costs in Fiscal 2020 was primarily
attributable to the reasons mentioned above.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense represents our total current and deferred
tax expenses under the relevant Hong Kong and PRC income tax
rules and regulations.

According to a policy promulgated by the State Tax Bureau of the
PRC and effective from 2008 onwards, enterprises engaged in
research and development activities are entitled to claim ranging
from 1560% to 175% of the research and development expenses
so incurred in a period as tax deductible expenses in determining
its tax assessable profits for that period (“Super Deduction”).
PRC subsidiaries have applied such Super Deduction during the
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBTWR DM

The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietham were
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 20% (2019: 20%).
In accordance with the applicable tax regulations, a subsidiary is
subject to a lower tax rate of 10% for fifteen consecutive years,
commencing from the first year of making revenue. In addition,
the subsidiary is entitled to full exemption from corporate income
tax for the first four years from the earlier of (i) the year when
profit is generated for the first time or (i) the fourth year of making
revenue; and a 50% reduction in corporate income tax for the
next nine years, which is offered by the Vietnam Government and
is stipulated in the subsidiary’s investment license. Regina Miracle
International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. is entitled to the full exemption
from corporate income tax starting from the financial year ended
31 March 2018.

The Group's income tax expense increased from HK$19.6 million
in Fiscal 2019 to HK$23.1 million in Fiscal 2020. Excluding the
positive effect of Super Deduction in the amount of HK$22.2
million (Fiscal 2019: HK$28.8 million) during Fiscal 2020, the
Group's effective tax rate decreased from 16.0% in Fiscal 2019 to
14.5% in Fiscal 2020, mainly attributed to tax holiday enjoyed by
the Vietnam subsidiaries and increase in proportion of the Group's
Vietnam production during the year.

EBITDA and net profit
As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors,

° our EBITDA for the year increased by 30.0% from
HK$745.9 million in Fiscal 2019 to HK$969.7 million in
Fiscal 2020. EBITDA margin increased from 11.9% in
Fiscal 2019 to 15.3% in Fiscal 2020.

o our net profit for the year increased by 2.7% from
HK$282.4 million in Fiscal 2019 to HK$290.0 million in
Fiscal 2020. Net profit margin increased from 4.5% in
Fiscal 2019 to 4.6% in Fiscal 2020.

Liquidity, financial resources and bank borrowings
The Group's current ratios (calculated as current assets over
current liabilities) were 1.3 times and 1.2 times as at 31 March
2020 and 31 March 2019, respectively. Net debt (represented
by bank borrowings less the cash and cash equivalents) was
HK$3,002.4 million (31 March 2019: HK$2,557.7 million). The
increase of net debt was mainly due to capital expenditure for
our production facilities in Vietnam. Gearing ratio as at 31 March
2020 was 102.9% (31 March 2019: 87.5%), which was calculated
as net debt divided by total equity. Excluding the currencies
depreciation impact on the net assets denominated in RMB and
VND, the adjusted net gearing as at 31 March 2020 was 93.2% (31
March 2019: 84.6%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Working capital management

Receivables turnover days FEURIE A 8E B 21
Payables turnover days FERTFRIE [ 4% A 2
Inventory turnover days FERAEAH

Receivables and payables turnover days have been maintained
at stable and healthy levels of 44 days and 28 days respectively
during Fiscal 2020.

The inventory turnover days have also been maintained at a
healthy level. The increase in inventory turnover days was
primarily due to impact of the Pandemic on finished goods
delivery schedule in late March 2020.

Capital expenditures

For Fiscal 2020, the total addition to property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets amounted
to approximately HK$1,084.6 million (Fiscal 2019: HK$1,210.5
million), which was mainly attributable additions of production
lines and construction of our Vietnam facilities to cope with the
Group's overall business expansion.

Pledged assets

As at 31 March 2020, insurance policy investments in the amount
of HK$30.9 million was pledged for financing related insurance
premium.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have assets pledged for
bank borrowings.

Foreign exchange risk

We mainly operate in Hong Kong, the PRC and Vietnam. Most of
our operating expenses are denominated in RMB and VND, while
most of our sales are denominated and settled in U.S. dollar.
As the HK dollar is pegged to U.S. dollar, our foreign exchange
exposure in respect of the HK dollar is considered minimal. Our
management will continue to monitor foreign currency exchange
exposure and will take prudent measures to minimize the
currency translation risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBTWR DM

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Material acquisitions and future plans for major
investment

Save for the investment in the construction of the production
facilities in Vietnam, during Fiscal 2020, the Group did not
conduct any material investments, acquisitions or disposals. In
addition, save for the expansion plans as disclosed in the sections
headed “Business” and "“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in
the prospectus of the Company dated 24 September 2015 (the
“Prospectus”), and the framework construction agreements
disclosed in the announcements dated 24 July 2017 and 24
April 2018 respectively, the Group has no specific plan for
major investment or acquisition for major capital assets or other
businesses. However, the Group will continue to identify new
opportunities for business development.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2020, the Group employed a total of approximately
42,917 full-time staff (31 March 2019: 40,419). The total staff
cost of the Group (including salaries, bonuses, social insurances,
provident funds and share incentive schemes) amounted to
HK$2,526.4 million, representing 39.8% of the total revenue of
the Group.

We believe our success depends heavily upon our employees’
provision of consistent, quality and reliable services. In order to
attract, retain and develop the knowledge, skill level and quality
of our employees, we place a strong emphasis on training our
employees. We provide on-site training periodically and across
operational functions, including introductory training for new
employees, technical training, professional and management
training, team-building and communications training.

We enter into individual employment contracts with our
employees to cover matters such as wages, employee benefits,
safety and sanitary conditions in the workplace, and grounds for
termination. We have designed an evaluation system to assess
the performance of our employees. This system forms the basis
of our determinations of whether an employee should receive
salary raises, bonuses or promotions. Most of our technical
personnel are trained and promoted internally, leading to greater
employee stability and loyalty.

Events after the balance sheet date
The Group has no significant events after the reporting period and
up to the date of this report.

HAREE
202093 A31H » AEBWE(TE K
SREME o

EXARBEERRRERREE

BRIGE M A EME SN - FR20208F 4 -
NEEWEFETTMEREE - WESFES
HEEIE - o BAREIHEIA201549
A24BMBRER(HBRERDPIEBIR
[ RRETEIRATSRIE AR I MET T B iE
EstEI R BES R A20175E7 A248 %2018
FARUBHAEMBEENELEENZ
O REBEWES T EETERRE R
BEBEREESHMER - AW - A%EE
HE U 1B ) (B TS SR TS -

B8 & FHEUER

M202043A31H r AEBFBAHAESZYD
42,9172 2B 8 T (20193A318 : 40,419
) AEEMBEIRA(BIESTE - E4
HERE - AESRBHDEETE)BE
BAEK2526 4B BT - (hAREBER AL
39.8% o

BRRR  AEENKNERKIEZEZE LAE
BRERMH -2 BERAIENRS - AR
5l BREENURIRSEBMME - BEEKX
FREZ  BFBEEIEREEI - HAE
HRRLERERHEE IS - BEHES
ARSI - A - EXREEE
Ellbse vy i HliK

HPEESFIZENERAL  BETE -
BERN - TIEENR 2 RE G AR
RILEERARERSEE - RPECRF—E
Az E A AR E KRR o WWHIEERR
PIRER B REEFINE - FEALHE TR
I o REDRIMABEAEIFIRET -
femmRESHEEREENSEHE -

FEHRSEE
RBEMRIEEAREAH  AEELE
BEAFHE-

22 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiBIFR(ZER)ERAA



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

Going forward, the Pandemic is expected to bring unprecedented
challenges and more uncertainties to the global economy. In
response to the impacts brought by the Pandemic, including a
series of shop closures and government pandemic prevention
measures, some brand partners have temporarily postponed
certain orders in the past few months. The Group expects that the
market will need some time to fully recover after the lockdown.
Given that it will likely take time for the brand partners to clear the
inventory accumulated during the Pandemic, the Group expects
the sales of Fiscal 2021 to be impacted.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group anticipates a low
double-digit decline in sales to be recorded in the first quarter of
Fiscal 2021 compared to the corresponding period in Fiscal 2020.
Furthermore, as the Vietnam government imposed a nationwide
lockdown from 1 to 23 April 2020, some employees were not
able to commute and report to work from different districts during
this period and therefore, the overall production efficiency was
affected. And compounded by the deleveraging of operation,
the Group's profit performance is set to face greater challenges.
It has managed to see a gradual sales improvement in the first
quarter on a month-on-month basis as the operation and orders
of certain partners are gradually recovering. However, it will still
take time for its sales and profit performance to return to a normal
level given the challenges ahead.

Despite the uncertain outlook, the management is convinced that
challenges coexist with opportunities. The Group believes that
global consumer habits will change after the Pandemic. In terms
of sales channels, “working from home"” has become the new
normal, which has boosted online shopping even more during
the Pandemic and has partially compensated the decline in brick-
and-mortar sales. In respect of product types, as consumers are
more inclined to pursue more comfortable and value-for-money
products, it is expected that related products will see a stronger
demand. The production and offering of comfortable and value-
for-money products are exactly the long-term strength of Regina
Miracle, as sales of such products performed well subsequent to
the review vyear.

The Group will actively develop products that can generate
demand for its brand partners, with a view to enabling swift
market launch and catering to the rebound of consumer demands
after the Pandemic has stabilised. In the PRC, as the Pandemic
has come under control along with the gradual resumption of
work and production, consumer sentiment is expected to revive
and generate a new round of opportunities. Therefore, the Group
intends to invest more resources for an expansion in the Chinese
market in the medium- to long-term for business expansion in
relation to intimate wear and functional sports products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBTWR DM

In respect of capacity planning, the Group has largely
commenced operation of all its factories at VSIP Hai Phong in
Vietnam, while the production of footwear products currently
in Shenzhen is expected to be transferred to Vietnam Factory
E after the Pandemic has stabilised. The facility in Hung Yen
Province, Vietnam, which operates principally with seamless
knitting technology, will defer its commencement of operation
to the first half of 2021 due to the impact of the Pandemic.
Given that production line expansion and production efficiency
improvement in the existing factories will be sufficient to drive
growth in the near- to medium-term, the Group has stated in
the first half of Fiscal 2020 that it has no plans to invest in new
production facilities, but will focus on enhancing the efficiency
and productivity of its existing and upcoming facilities. Fully aware
of the importance of supply chain and management localization
given the general disruptions of the supply chain in the PRC at
the early stages of the Pandemic outbreak, coupled with the
subsequent lockdown and travel restrictions across the world,
the management will push ahead with the localization strategy in
Vietnam.

As for the Shenzhen factory, it will continue to focus on the
manufacturing of products that are sold in the local Chinese
markets of its brand partners, as the factory undergoes upgrade
and transformation to support the Group’s business expansion
that spans different sectors and product categories, fabric
processing as well as other accessories for consumer electronic
products. In response to the development of the Pandemic and
trade environment, as well as the needs of brand partners, the
Group will also right-size the Shenzhen factory, while remain agile
in mobilising its production capacity in Vietnam and Shenzhen.

Apart from that, it is the general market view that customers will
pay more attention to pandemic prevention and health protection
after the Pandemic. Therefore, the Group has also invested in the
development of pandemic prevention products (including fabric
face masks and protective clothing), sports peripheral products
and health products. By doing so, the Group will not only diversify
its product portfolio and enhance business resilience against risks,
but also contribute to communities by making the best use of its
existing technology and resources to achieve an all-win outcome.
Since the beginning of this year, the Group has produced
pandemic prevention products for its existing brand partners. In
the future, the Group will continue to apply for the production
certificates of such products in line with international regulations,
and seek cooperation with a more diverse clientele, as demand
for pandemic prevention products is expected to continue to
grow.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Given the commitment to reducing its costs while diversifying
revenue streams, the Group imposes stricter cost control
on labour, raw materials and operation, especially under the
Pandemic, such as adjustments to the working hours of
production staff and employees based on actual orders (including
the implementation of a rota system in the Shenzhen factory),
and the enhancement of upstream supply chain management,
all in a bid to reduce labour costs and other peripheral costs. The
management also plans to surrender parts of the leased plant
in Shenzhen within Fiscal 2021. While such arrangement may
result in a one-off non-cash expense, it will help reduce operating
expenses for the Group in the long run.

Also mindful of financial prudence during this Pandemic, the
Group will temporarily suspend unnecessary investment in fixed
assets to reduce capital expenditure and ensure sufficient cash
flow for operations. Apart from its stable operational cash flow,
the Group is positioned with ample cash on hand and undrawn
total bank credit, enabling it to withstand market fluctuations. In
addition, the Shenzhen factory of the Group has also benefited
from some national subsidy policies to support enterprises and
secure employment amidst the Pandemic.

Dedicated to executing the aforesaid strategies, the management
will lead Regina Miracle to prevail over difficulties, break new
grounds in business with steady and prudent development
policies, take this opportunity to fully review its internal operations
and lay a solid foundation for long-term and healthy development
by streamlining the structure and optimising processes, so as to
create long-term value for its brand partners and shareholders.
It is the abundant industry experience and strong IDM capability
of the management that empowers Regina Miracle, a company
engaged in the intimate wear industry for over two decades, to
keep growing its business through multiple economic cycles
and market changes. This, together with the well-established
manufacturing facilities in the PRC and Vietnam, serves as the
key to maintaining its close cooperation with brand partners.
Leveraging these competitive advantages, Regina Miracle will
work with its brand partners to brave the difficulties and achieve
mutual benefits in such times of trials.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

ES SAREEERAAUENEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUNG Yau Lit (335 %) (also known as YY Hung (H5725)),
aged 57, is the founder of the Group and has been a Director of
the Company since its incorporation on 21 September 2010. He
is also the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the chairman
of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. He is primarily responsible for
formulating the overall development strategies and business
plans and overseeing the operation of the Group. With over 20
years of experience in the intimate wear manufacturing industry,
Mr. Hung has been the key driver of our business strategies and
achievements to date and continues to oversee the management
of our operations and business. Mr. Hung is also a director of
each of the BVI, PRC and Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Hung is currently the executive vice president of Shenzhen
Underwear Association GRIITTRKITERHE) since 2012,
the president of Shenzhen Guangming New District Charity
Association (RIITTHXEAFEZEZE) since January 2015 and
council member of South China Athletic Association (FIZEREE <).
Mr. Hung received the Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong
2007 from Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. Hung is the uncle of Ms. Sze Shui Ling, senior management
and executive Director of the Company. Mr. Yiu Ka So, senior
management of the Company, is a cousin of Mrs. Hung.

Mr. YIU Kar Chun Antony (#k58&), aged 44, was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015. Mr. Yiu
joined the Group as a financial controller on 17 June 2002 and
was promoted to the Chief Financial Officer of the Group in 2005.
Mr. Yiu is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall financial
management, internal control, legal and compliance matters of the
Group. He also serves as a director in a number of the Company’s
subsidiaries. Mr. Yiu has over 21 years of experience in financial
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yiu worked at
PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong in the tax department
from August 1998 to June 2002 and held the position of senior
consultant from July 2000 to June 2002. Mr. Yiu graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a first class honors
degree of bachelor of arts in accountancy in November 1998.
He is a fellow of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Yiu is a
cousin of Mr. Yiu Ka So, senior management of the Company.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY
ES SAREEERAAUENEE

Mr. LIU Zhengiang (£|Z ), aged 45, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015 and has
been the chief research and development and design officer of
Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd since April
2008. He is primarily responsible for product design, research
and development management of the Group. He also serves as
a director in a number of the Company’s subsidiaries. Mr. Liu
joined the previous bra processing facilities in February 1999 and
held the positions as manager of the research and development
department from February 1999 to September 2003 and chief
research and development and design officer from September
2003 to April 2008. From August 1998 to February 1999, Mr. Liu
served as a supervisor of quality assurance department at Shun
Cheong Factory for shoulder pads manufacturing. He has over
20 years of experience in intimate wear design and research and
development management and contributed in a number of utility
model patents and invention patents on intimate wear design.
Mr. Liu graduated from Wuxi College of Light Industry (#E#5&8 T
KE) (later renamed as Jiangnan University (T X&) majoring
in textile design in June 1998 and a degree of executive master
of business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business (KT B2 %) in September 2013.

Mr. CHEN Zhiping (BR& ), aged 43, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company and the Chief Operating
Officer of the Group on 22 June 2015 and 30 November 2015
respectively, and has been the general manager of Regina Miracle
Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“"RMIA Shenzhen"”) since
April 2008. He is primarily responsible for production management
of the Group. He is also a director of both RMIA Shenzhen and
Regina Miracle (Shenzhen) Ltd. Mr. Chen joined the previous
bra processing facilities in October 2000 and held the following
positions: production supervisor from October 2000 to June 2001,
production manager from June 2001 to September 2003, senior
production manager from September 2003 to June 2006 and
general manager from June 2006 to April 2008. He has over 18
years of experience in intimate wear manufacture management.
Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor degree in shipbuilding engineering
from East China Shipbuilding Institute (£ A T2 £67) (later
renamed as Jiangsu University of Science and Technology (JT
ERRHRER)) in July 1999 and a degree of executive master of
business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business (KT B2 %) in September 2013.

BITBrRSE - 4558 - N2015F6A22HEZL
AR ARINITES + WH2008F 4 A BHE
FESELIRAKXCORI) AR A B K&
FHBES o [ F BB B AREEE MR R
EE - IR ARRZHENBARETES
BEAS o BUSL AR 19994 2 B AN AT M B in T
B - I B 199942 A 200349 A B (LR
BEEPACIE - 5200399 A =200844 A HARE
8 R ET4RES - 519988 A £19994F
2AHRM - RISt AERBIERENEERMET®
ERFDEE - RERFAKRKLT RFRE
BAHEHABB0FLR  AETERNE
B REE B ARBFTHAZFIEL R - 2
S AT 19984F6 A 2R 8 T K2 (182K
BRIMAE)  EHBMIFTEE TR
2013F ORI ERBEEITHRAELR
EIBE BN -

BREF L% - 4358 © 2 52016546 A 22
AX%2015%11 A0 B ERZ T AARAFHIT
EENEREER  LE2008F4 A RLHE
EBREZRAXCEI AR AT (TRMIA
Shenzhen | )/ - IFFE A EAREBHAE
EEIE - I ARMIA Shenzhen R #2 1
AXKCERINBRARES o BRI AR 2000
10 A HNA BT M E A0 TR HEE LA B AL
M 2000F10 A E2001 6 A MEELET
&~ 7A20014F6 A E20034F9 A HARIE(T £ &
232 - 2003499 A E=20064F6 A HE IS
A E IR K 72200646 A 200844 A Hif
BABEE - RHEBFAXRRIEEE HEE
BB I18FLLR - FRIEEMN1999F7 AR E
B TR (B E AT ERHERE)E
S ITIR2L8A - WH2013F9A %R
THEERBEITRAE THERIELTEM -

FEERE2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 27



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

ES SAREEERAAUENEE

Ms. SZE Shui Ling (## %), aged 48, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015. She
has been the sales and marketing director of Regina Miracle
International Limited since 24 June 1999 and Regina Miracle
International (Group) Limited since 18 September 2006. She
is responsible for the sales and marketing affairs of the Group.
Ms. Sze has over 21 years of experience in the sales and
marketing of intimate wear. She is also a director of a number
of the Company’s subsidiaries. Ms. Sze holds a certificate in
tourism management program in Camosun College in Canada in
December 1996. Ms. Sze is the niece of Mr. Hung.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. OR Ching Fai (#;5#), aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 11
September 2015 and is the chairman of the audit committee.
Dr. Or is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice and
guidance on the business development of the Group.

Dr. Or received a bachelor of social sciences degree in economics
and psychology from the University of Hong Kong in July 1972
before joining The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited as a management trainee. Dr. Or worked in a variety of
positions in personnel, securities, retail and corporate banking
divisions. Dr. Or was appointed as general manager and group
general manager in 2000 and became an executive director in
2005. Dr. Or was then appointed as vice-chairman and chief
executive of Hang Seng Bank Limited (B4 $R1TEBRAF), a
banking company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“"Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), in 2005 and retired in
May 2009.

Dr. Or holds the following positions in companies listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY
ES SREEERLAUENEE

Company and its Principal Business

Stock Exchange Position

DNERHEEER RERZ T B

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Hong Kong Stock Independent non-executive
(ARBHRBLEBR AT, ajewellery company Exchange director
AXBHREREAERAT - R—HKEAF BRI PT BN IEHITES

China Strategic Holdings Limited (F 285 EHBR 2 5)), Hong Kong Stock Chairman and non-executive

an investment and metal trading company Exchange director
PREEARLAAF A HREREBEEAF BRI PT TREMRIENTES

Esprit Holdings Limited (BEEIRIKIZEAXGIR A F)), Hong Kong Stock Non-executive chairman and

a fashion and living products company

Exchange

non-executive director Note )

BRRHRERERIA] . A—HEHEEARAF BB

Note 1: Dr. Or has been re-designated from executive chairman of the board
and executive director to non-executive chairman of the board and non-
executive director with effect from 24 June 2020.

Dr. Or has been appointed as independent non-executive director
of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited in
December 2018. He ceased to act as independent non-executive
director of Television Broadcasts Limited on 1 January 2020 and
ceased to act as independent non-executive director of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China Limited on 31 October 2018. He
was the vice-chairman and independent non-executive director
of G-Resources Group Limited until his retirement on 30 June
2017. He was also an independent non-executive director of
Hutchison Whampoa Limited (M &#H AR A 7)) and Cathay
Pacific Airways Limited (BZfiZ= AR A R]), from February 2000
to May 2009 respectively. All these companies are listed on The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Dr. Or was the deputy chairman and
non-executive director of Aquis Entertainment Limited, a company
listed on the Australian Securities Exchange, until his retirement
on 31 December 2017.
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Dr. Or is a vice patron of the board of the Community Chest
of Hong Kong. He was also the chairman of the Hong Kong
Association of Banks in 2000 and 2003 and was vice chairman
of the Hong Kong Association of Banks in 2001, 2002, 2004 and
2005. He was also the chairman of the Financial Services Advisory
Committee and a member of the Services Promotion Programme
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He
was a member of the Risk Management Committee of the Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, vice president and a
council member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a member
of the Aviation Development Advisory Committee, the chairman
of Executive and Campaign Committee of the Community Chest
of Hong Kong, the deputy council chairman of the Council of City
University of Hong Kong, a council member of the University of
Hong Kong, an adviser of the Employers’ Federation of Hong
Kong and a member of the Planning Committee of the 5th East
Asian Games.

Dr. Or was awarded a Silver Bauhinia Star from the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and Honorary University Fellow
from the University of Hong Kong in 2009. He was conferred an
Honorary Doctor of Social Science by the City University of Hong
Kong and an Honorary Fellowship by Hang Seng Management
College in November 2014 and May 2017 respectively. Dr. Oris a
Justice of the Peace.

Mrs. TO WONG Wing Yue Annie (FgE 7 1I), aged 64, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 11 September 2015 and is primarily responsible
for providing strategic advice and guidance on the business
development of our Group. She is also a member of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mrs. To has extensive
experience in the garments trading industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Mrs. To was employed by Mast Industries (Far East)
Limited, the sourcing arm of LBrands, as the president from
January 2007 to May 2013 and the executive vice president from
September 1996 to December 2006. From April 1995 to August
1996, she served as a director of Li & Fung (Trading) Ltd., a
Hong Kong based global sourcing company. From January 1991
to February 1995, Mrs. To was the executive vice-president of
Bonaventure Textiles Limited, a garment manufacturing company.
From June 1979 to December 1990, Mrs. To held various
positions from executive trainee to assistant managing director of
Swire and MacLaine Limited, the trading division of John Swire &
Sons Limited. Mrs. To obtained a bachelor degree of arts from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1979.
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Ms. TAM Laiman (EEEX), aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 11
September 2015 and is primarily responsible for providing
strategic advice and guidance on the business development of
our Group. She is also a member of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. Ms. Tam has extensive management experience
in the consumer products marketing, distribution and retailing
industry. Ms. Tam retired from the office either as a manager
or an executive director of the following six group companies in
Swire Pacific Limited on 1 October 2018: SRM Holdings, Inc., a
holding company of brands investment; United Sheen Limited,
a holding company of brands investment; Columbia Sportswear
Commercial (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (SMfitt st @BREFZ(LE)A
R/ 7)), a sales and distribution company of branded outdoor and
sports clothing and footwear; SCCH Limited, a holding company
of brands investment; Swire Brands Limited, a holding company
of consumer brands investment, and Swire Industrial Limited, an
investment holding company in cold storage, waste management,
environmental services, painting and sugar businesses, and
distribution and sales of motor vehicles in PRC and Hong Kong.

From January 1990 to July 2013, Ms. Tam served the positions
as managing director, director and general manager of Swire
Resources Limited, a marketing, distribution and retail company of
branded clothing and footwear product, where she was primarily
responsible for the company’s overall development and operation.
From October 1987 to December 1989, Ms. Tam was the general
manager in charge of the overall operation of Reebok Hong
Kong Ltd., a sports brand company of clothing and footwear.
From December 1983 to May 1987, Ms. Tam worked at Plough
Consumer Products (Asia) Ltd., a consumer products marketing
and distribution company, as the regional marketing manager
responsible for the Southeast Asia market. From May 1978 to
November 1983, Ms. Tam worked at the group companies of
Fung Ping Fan Group, a diversified company involving in consumer
brands distribution and real estate businesses.

Ms. Tam obtained a bachelor degree in administration from
University of Ottawa in May 1976. Ms. Tam has been an
executive committee member of Benji's Centre (EB R EH
I») and the vice chairman of the supervisory board of Macao
International Brand Enterprise Commercial Association (J8 P9 ER
mEE 2R E) since 2009.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HUANG Guoxian (ZE| &), aged 55, has been the general
manager of technology development of RMIA Shenzhen since
April 2008. He is responsible for technology, research and
development and machinery improvement of the Group, and
contributed in several utility model patents and invention patents
on intimate wear design, including one-piece bra. Mr. Huang is
also the vice chairman of RMIA Shenzhen and a Director of RM
Shenzhen. He joined the previous bra processing facilities in
February 1999 and held the positions as manager of the research
and development department from February 1999 to March 2003
and chief technology officer from March 2003 to April 2008. From
June 1988 to February 1999, Mr. Huang worked as supervisor
of the research and development department at Shun Cheong
Factory for shoulder pads manufacturing. Mr. Huang has over 20
years of experience in the intimate wear manufacturing industry.
Mr. Huang obtained a high school diploma from Fuging Jiangdou
Huagiao Middle School (188 B2 EH £2) in July 1982.

Mr. YIU Ka So (Zkin#t), aged 46, has been the general manager
of operation of the Group since he joined the Group on 3 March
2004. He is primarily responsible for operations management of
the Group. Mr. Yiu is also the vice chairman of RMIA Shenzhen,
a director of RM Shenzhen, the legal representative and general
director of Regina Miracle International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd and of
Regina Miracle International Hung Yen Co., Ltd. Mr. Yiu has over
15 years of experience in enterprise and operations management.
Mr. Yiu served at Panda Green Energy Group Limited (formerly
known as Goldpoly New Energy Holdings Limited), a solar
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as an
executive director from October 2010 to December 2013. Mr. Yiu
obtained a bachelor degree in engineering and a master degree
of science in civil engineering, both from the University of Hong
Kong, in December 1997 and November 2001, respectively. Mr.
Yiu is a cousin of Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony and Mrs. Hung.
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Ms. LEUNG, Mai Ling Connie ($3%1%), aged 54, has been the
general manager of business division of the Group since she
joined the Group on 3 September 2003. She is responsible for
sales management of the Group. Ms. Leung has over 28 years of
experience in the clothing industry, of which over 16 years in the
intimate wear manufacturing industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Leung worked at PLH Fashion Group, a trading company,
as a divisional manager primarily responsible for merchandising
and management from November 2002 to September 2003.
From 1995 to 2002, Ms. Leung worked at Mast Industries (Far
East) Limited, a garments and accessories trading company, as
a merchandising manager and regional merchandising manager,
where she was primarily responsible for the regional market
management. From October 1993 to June 1995, she served as a
sourcing manager in charge of material sourcing, purchasing and
development in Lion-Redcliffe & Company Limited, an embroidery
manufacturer. In addition, Ms. Leung served as an assistant
merchandiser overseeing sample development, production and
shipment in Texunion Garment Co., Ltd., a garment manufacturer,
from July 1985 to June 1986.

Ms. Leung obtained a diploma in clothing in Hong Kong Vocational
Training Council in July 1985, a national diploma in clothing in
Hong Kong Business and Technical Education Council in March
1986, a diploma in clothing design and production management
from the Clothing and Footwear Institute in 1993. Ms. Leung
completed the modular post-graduate diplomas in textile and
clothing and clothing studies in October 1995 and November
1996, respectively, and obtained a master of arts degree in
clothing studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
December 1999.

Mr. LIANG Changming (R #f), aged 40, has been the sample
development deputy general manager of shoe division of RMIA
Shenzhen since February 2012. He is responsible for research
and development of shoe products of the Group. He was also
the senior manager of the research and development department
of RMIA Shenzhen from April 2008 to February 2012. Mr. Liang
joined the previous bra processing facilities in June 2003 and held
the positions in the research and development department as
supervisor from June 2003 to May 2006 and manager from May
2006 to April 2008. Mr. Liang has over 16 years of experience in
intimate wear manufacturing industry, specializing in bra pads,
bras and sports bras. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor degree in
textile examination and commerce from Donghua University (52
A E) in July 2003.
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Mr. ZHANG Wenbo (3R X 1#), aged 40, has been the deputy
general manager of the research and development department
of RMIA Shenzhen since December 2017. He is responsible
for coordinating and promoting intimate wear and product
development of the Group. He was also the senior manager of the
research and development department of RMIA Shenzhen from
April 2008 to February 2012 and the sample development deputy
general manager of the intimate wear division of RMIA Shenzhen
from February 2012 to December 2016. He was the sample
development deputy general manager of the sportswear division
of RMIA Shenzhen from December 2016 to November 2017. Mr.
Zhang joined the previous bra processing facilities in September
2002 and held the positions in the research and development
department as supervisor from September 2002 to May 2004 and
manager from May 2004 to April 2008. Mr. Zhang has over 16
years of experience in the research and development of intimate
wear products. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor degree in thermal
engineering from Jiamusi University ((E/RETAZ) in June 2002.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAW Kwan Chuen (#&# %), aged 41, joined the Group on
15 December 2011 as our group financial controller and was
appointed as company secretary of the Company on 22 June
2015. He is primarily responsible for financial reporting, corporate
finance and company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Law
has approximately 19 years of experience in auditing, financial
reporting and corporate finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Law worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers from October 2004 to
December 2011 with the last position as manager. From July 2001
to October 2004, he worked at Moore Stephens as an auditor.
Mr. Law obtained a bachelor degree of business administration
majoring in professional accountancy from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong (&F#&H XX A2 in November 2001. He has been an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom since February 2004 and
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since September
2004. Mr. Law has also been a Chartered Financial Analyst (“CFA")
charter holder of the CFA Institute since September 2006, a
fellow member of ACCA since July 2009 and a fellow member of
HKICPA since September 2014.
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 144 to
145 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended to pay to the shareholders of
the Company a final dividend of HK4.0 cents per share for
the year ended 31 March 2020. Subject to the approval of the
proposed final dividend by the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 21
August 2020, the final dividend is expected to be paid on or about
Friday, 11 September 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For the purpose of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 17 August
2020 to Friday, 21 August 2020, both days inclusive. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the annual general meeting,
shareholders should ensure that all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company's Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong
Kong time) on Friday, 14 August 2020. The annual general
meeting of the Company will be held on Friday, 21 August 2020.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO FINAL DIVIDEND

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement for the
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Friday, 28 August 2020 to Tuesday, 1 September
2020, both days inclusive. To qualify for the final dividend,
shareholders should ensure that all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
(Hong Kong time) on Thursday, 27 August 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are set
out in the Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 10 and pages 11 to 25
of this annual report respectively. Discussions on the Group's
relationships with its key stakeholders are also set out in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to 10 of this annual report.
An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the Group's
Financial Information Summary on page 228 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five years ended 31 March 2020
are set on page 228 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$1,760.6 million (2019: HK$1,755.8 million).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2020 amounted to HK$1.8 million (2019: HK$1.0 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The shareholders of the Company approved and adopted a share
option scheme on 11 September 2015 (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme took effect on 8 October 2015
(the listing date of the Company), and no option has been granted
up to the date of this report.
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

38

Who may participate

Subject to the terms of Share Option Scheme, the Board
(including any committee or delegate of the Board appointed
by the Board to perform any of its functions pursuant to
the rules of the Share Option Scheme) may, at its absolute
discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe for such
number of shares of the Company (“Shares”) as the
Board may determine to an employee (whether full time
or parttime) or a director of a member of the Group (the
“Eligible Person”).

Maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options maybe granted

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any options granted under any other share
option scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the listing date of the
Company unless the Company obtains a fresh approval.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person
Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in
the general meeting in the manner prescribed in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each Eligible
Person under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not at the time of grant exceed 1% of the shares in
issue.

Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of options under the Share Option Scheme shall
be open for acceptance for such period (not exceeding 30
days inclusive of, and from, the date of offer) as the Board
may determine and notify to the Eligible Persons concerned
provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the expiry of the duration of the Share Option Scheme.
An offer of options not accepted within this period shall
lapse. An amount of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance
of the grant of an option and such payment shall not be
refundable and shall not be deemed to be a part payment of
the exercise price.
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(e)

(f)

(9)

Exercise Price

The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the
Board and notified to an option-holder and which shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets on the date of offer
of the option; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares.

Time for Exercise of options

An option may be exercised at any time during the period
which is notified by the Board at the offer date when making
an offer to an Eligible Person but such period not to exceed
the period of 10 years from the offer date of such option.

Duration of Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on the listing date of
the Company, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary
to give effect to the exercise of any options granted prior
thereto which are at that time or become thereafter capable
of exercise under the rules of the Share Option Scheme, or
otherwise to the extent as may be required in accordance
with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2020 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, sales to the Group's
five largest customers accounted for approximately 59.8%
of the Group's total sales for the year (of which sales to the
Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 22.5%).
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 47.1% of the Group's total purchases for the year
(of which purchases attributable to the largest supplier accounted
for approximately 21.4%).

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates or
any shareholder which to the best knowledge of the Directors,
who own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital,
had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year ended 31 March 2020.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participated in various retirement benefit schemes in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in PRC and
Hong Kong. Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. YIU Kar Chun Antony (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LIU Zhengiang

Mr. CHEN Zhiping (Chief Operating Officer)

Ms. SZE Shui Ling

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. OR Ching Fai

Mrs. TO WONG Wing Yue Annie

Ms. TAM Laiman

In the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
Ms. Sze Shui Ling, Dr. Or Ching Fai and Mrs. To Wong Wing
Yue Annie will retire as Directors in accordance with Article
84 of the Articles of Association of the Company (“Articles of
Association"”) and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.
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DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S AND
COMPANY SECRETARY’S PROFILE

Profile details of the Directors of the Company, the senior
management and company secretary of the Group are set out on
pages 26 to 34 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from 11 September 2015 and the service contracts have been
renewed for a further term of three years commencing from 11
September 2018.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from 11 September 2015 and these letters of
appointment have been renewed for a further term of three years
commencing from 11 September 2018.

These service contracts and letters of appointment are subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The
terms of service contracts and the letters of appointment may be
renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and the
applicable rules of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees, including the Directors,
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Our
employees are subject to regular job performance reviews
which determine their promotion prospects and compensation.
Subject to the Group's profitability, the Group may also provide
discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group.

The Company has adopted share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may distribute
dividends to its shareholders by way of cash or by other means
that the Company considers appropriate. The recommendation of
the payment of any dividend is subject to the absolute discretion
of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be subject
to the approval of the shareholders.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time in
light of the following factors in determining whether dividends are
to be declared and paid:

° Results of operations of the Company;

o Cash flows of the Company;

° Financial condition of the Company;

o Shareholders’ interests of the Company;

° General business conditions and strategies of the Company;

° Capital requirements of the Company;

° The payment by subsidiaries of the Company of cash
dividends to the Company; and

° Other factors the Board may deem relevant.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March
2020.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements, no Director and/or any of
his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at
anytime during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1)

Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited (“Le Ying”, together
with its subsidiaries collectively, the “Le Ying Group”) is
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known
as YY Hung), a controlling shareholder and an executive
Director of the Company, and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Company entered into a new agreement with Le Ying
on 9 May 2018 to regulate the sales of intimate wear and
sport wear products of the Company to Le Ying Group (the
“New Le Ying Sales Agreement”) in place of the previous
agreement entered on 11 September 2015. Pursuant to the
New Le Ying Sales Agreement, price of the sales of intimate
wear and sport wear products by the Company to Le Ying
Group shall be determined on an arm’s length basis with
reference to (1) the cost of production and the expected
gross profit margin, (2) the average selling price of the
products of comparable nature and scale and accepted by an
independent third party in the twelve-month period prior to
the relevant transaction, (3) where there is no such average
selling price available, any most recent available sale price
of products of comparable nature and scale offered by the
Group and accepted by an independent third party, the latest
available market data, and (4) the prevailing market price for
the sale of products of comparable nature and scale, which
should be in any event no less favorable to the Group than is
available to independent third parties.
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The New Le Ying Sales Agreement became effective on 9
May 2018 and is valid until either (i) the expiry of a term on
31 March 2021 or (ii) the date on which Le Ying ceases to
be the connected person of the Company, whichever comes
earlier. The parties to the New Le Ying Sales Agreement
may negotiate to extend the agreement for a further term
of three years within two months before the expiry of the
three-year term of the agreement unless the agreement
is terminated due to Le Ying ceasing to be the connected
person of the Company.

During the year, the annual cap for revenue from sales to
Le Ying for Fiscal 2020 was HK$80.0 million, the actual
transaction amount for Fiscal 2020 with Le Ying was
HK$12.6 million and the annual cap has been kept.

The transactions contemplated under the New Le Ying Sales
Agreement also constitute related party transaction of the
Company under HKFRS, details of which are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad Factory (Shenzhen)
Limited (“Shun Cheong”) is indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), a controlling
shareholder and an executive Director of the Company, and
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

On 27 March 2020, Shun Cheong entered into a property
leasing agreement (the “Property Leasing Agreement”)
with Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(BREZRARCEY) BB 2 7)) ("RMIA Shenzhen”),
a company incorporated under the laws of the People's
Republic of China and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, pursuant to which Shun Cheong agreed
to lease RMIA Shenzhen the Building located at Redstar
Community, Gongming Subdistrict Office of Shenzhen
Guangming District, Shenzhen, People’s Republic of China
(the “Premises”) for a term of three years. Pursuant to the
Property Leasing Agreement, the rent was determined on
an arm'’s length basis with reference to (i) the market rent
of the Premises according to a fair rent letter issued by an
independent property valuer (the “Valuer"”); and (i) various
conditions of the Premises, including but not limited to
the location of the Premises as well as the management
services associated with the Premises. The Valuer assessed
the market rent of the Premises, based on the prevailing
market conditions and the rental level of similar properties in
the vicinity.
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The Property Leasing Agreement became effective on 1
April 2020 and is valid until either (i) the expiry of a period
of three years or (i) RMIA Shenzhen may terminate the
agreement before the expiry of its term by giving a six
months’ notice to Shun Cheong. RMIA Shenzhen may by
giving Shun Cheong a three months’ notice before the
expiry of the agreement, request for the renewal of the
lease.

The maximum annual aggregate amounts payable by RMIA
Shenzhen to Shun Cheong under the Property Leasing
Agreement for each of the years ending 31 March 2023
is RMB15.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$17.1
million).

The transactions contemplated under the Property Leasing
Agreement also constitute related party transaction of the
Company under HKFRS, details of which are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Float Limited (“Float”) is a limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong, wholly-owned by Ms. Hung Cheuk Man,
daughter of Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), a
controlling shareholder and an executive Director of the
Company, and is therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

On 27 March 2020, the Company entered into an agreement
(the "Float Sales Agreement”) with Float, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to supply and procure its
subsidiaries to supply to Float intimate wear and sportswear
products for a term of three years. Pursuant to the Float
Sales Agreement, the price of the sales of intimate wear
and sportswear products by the Company to Float shall be
determined on an arm’s length basis with reference to (1)
the cost of production and the expected gross profit margin,
(2) the average selling price of the products of comparable
nature and scale and accepted by an independent third
party in the twelve-month period prior to the relevant
transaction, (3) where there is no such average selling price
available, any most recent available selling price of products
of comparable nature and scale offered by the Group and
accepted by an independent third party with reference to
the latest available market data, and (4) the prevailing market
price for the sale of products of comparable nature and
scale, which should be in any event no less favorable to the
Group than is available to independent third parties.
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The Float Sales Agreement became effective on 1 April
2020 and is valid until 31 March 2023. The parties to Float
Sales Agreement may negotiate to extend the agreement
for a further term of three years within two months before
the expiry of the three-year term of the agreement.

Annual Review of the Continuing Connected
Transactions

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company's
auditor was engaged to perform certain procedures in respect
of the continuing connected transactions set out above in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
the Group in its normal course of business are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions/continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, which are set out in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages
221 to 222, have complied with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group's businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES AND EQUITY-LINKED
AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, at no time during the year was the Company, or
any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
chief executive of the Company or their respective associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")
or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, nor did
the Company enter into any equity-linked agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2020, the Directors and the chief executives of
the Company had the following interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

MN2020E3A31H » EERADNARESITH
ABRARREREMEEEE(EERESRE
EIEFIEXVER) BEE RIEE SR ERNE
352N AR B AEFEFEENERMA
SHARYE R B0 E L BT AES
HITBEFRGHZETAESITTHNE AR
N E BT -« FERIRL (D M (B4 E
IR KR - BT -

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of in the Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares (%)

hZA A B IR AE

BRBE DT

EEnE EmME RGEE (ADL)

Hung Yau Lit Beneficial owner; 892,000,000 72.86%
(also known as YY Hung) Interest in controlled corporation (long position)
N R BEmBEEA (#FE)
(X EHHZE) Ry EE R (Note)
(PEE)

Yiu Kar Chun Antony Beneficial owner 305,000 0.02%
ka8 BERBEEA (Long position)
(#FE)

Liu Zhengiang Beneficial owner 200,000 0.02%
2IE58 EmEB A (Long position)
(#F &)

Chen Zhiping Beneficial owner 200,000 0.02%
PREF EmEA A (Long position)
(4F2)

Sze Shui Ling Beneficial owner 200,000 0.02%
HEFRIS BB A (Long position)
(3 E)

Note: Amongst these 892,000,000 shares, 708,000,000 shares are beneficially
owned by Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited which is wholly
owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung). By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Hung is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Regent
Marvel Investment Holdings Limited. Mr. Hung is also the beneficial
owner of 184,000,000 shares.

Pf5E © 7 7% 892,000,000 % B 1 R + 708,000,000 A%
f% 17 B Regent Marvel Investment Holdings
Limited (Rt (R BB Z) e -2 EH
BIEREE  BEIFHFRAEKRE - HEE
18 B Regent Marvel Investment Holdings
Limited T HIRR (R A iR o A EM A
184,000,000/ K E A A ©
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2020, according to the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO and so far as
is known to the Directors, the following persons or corporations
(other than the Directors or the chief executives of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest

BREE,EB sty

Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner
BEmfEAA

Choy King Ngor Interest of spouse

BRI feiB s

Hui Ching Lau Interest in controlled

B corporation

EHEEES

King Terrace Limited Beneficial Owner
BEmEAA
Yiheng Capital, LLC Beneficial Owner
BEmlEBA
L — Long Position
L—iFA
S — Short Position
S—%A

EEEHE

720203318 « REZEHFLAEKHIE
BBHRARRATFHFENELM  RESEA
IEBESBATA - THALTTEBE(RARES
mETTIHA BRRIN AR BRI I 2 A8 7
Biria RS AR MAREES LSS
1B EXVERFE2 M3 EBIEH I EE ¢

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of in the Company

Shares (%)

AR B BB FE

BHNBE DL

B8 E (BoE)

708,000,000 (L) 57.83%
(Note 1)
(FF5ET)

892,000,000 (L) 72.86%
(Note 2)
(MF7E2)

78,696,000 (L) 6.43%
(Note 3)
(FF5E3)

78,696,000 (L) 6.43%
(Note 3)
(MI7E3)

99,056,280 (L) 8.10%
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Notes:

1. Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited is beneficially and wholly
owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung). By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Hung is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Regent
Marvel Investment Holdings Limited.

2. Ms. Choy King Ngor is the wife of Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY
Hung) and is deemed to be interested in the shares which are interested
by Mr. Hung under Part XV of the SFO.

& King Terrace Limited is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Hui Ching
Lau. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hui is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by King Terrace Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Directors
were not aware that there is any other party (not being a Director
or chief executive of the Company) who, as at the date of this
annual report, had an interest or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company, which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there has been
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company's issued
shares up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section on
pages 52 to 68 of this annual report.

FaE -

1. Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited
HHE (R BT R) AL BERa R EER -
RIEE S MR ED) - LR B Regent
Marvel Investment Holdings LimitedFT#% 48 &)
Rt eh A AR o

2. BRBATRABE(ERHE) RENE
T REBEESFEHEGOIEXVER - FIRERR
HEERBRENROTHEEER -

3. King Terrace Limited&F/E Mt A BERZ L2 E
BH - RIBESFRHEEN - FrEEmRE AR
King Terrace Limited BT 5 & &) i& {5 = ¥ A 1

= o

fm

Br ESCETIBEEE SN - 7A2020F3A31H - &
EWPMEEEMEMAT(WIERARIES
HEEITHAR)RAF R B HRARA RN
NAERARR (P B RIBE H KB KA EXV
HE2 X3 WRIGESAR AR BT =
R B - IRBES MEIEKRHIZE 3361
EARBATEERELMATACERA R K

W o
NBERERTE

RERNABAIERNAHEMLLESR
o BEAREAHIL - ARFE#HITRNG
THEB2B%H AR - A LMRRIR
e

TEER
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MEEB2ZE68E M REE AE |4
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER BALANCE
SHEET DATE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no other
significant events affecting the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries after the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020 requiring
disclosure in this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. A
resolution for re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the independent auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
(the “Corporate Governance Report”) in the Group’'s annual
report for the year ended 31 March 2020.

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Board and the management of the Group are committed
to the maintenance of good corporate governance practices
and procedures. The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective
management, a healthy corporate culture, successful business
growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasize a quality Board,
sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that save as disclosed below, the
Company has complied with all code provisions and, where
applicable, the recommended best practices of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code"”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 March 2020.

According to code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company has appointed Mr. Hung
Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) as both the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in
the same individual would enable the Company to achieve higher
responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when formulating
business strategies and executing business plans. The Board
believes that the balance of power and authority is sufficiently
maintained by the operation of the senior management and the
Board, which comprises experienced and high-calibre individuals.
The Board currently comprises five executive Directors
(including Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)) and three
independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly
strong independence element in its composition. The Board will
nevertheless review the structure and composition of the Board
from time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Upon specific
enquiries being made with all Directors, each of them confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 March 2020.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board, led by the Chairman, Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known
as YY Hung), determines and monitors the overall strategy
and policies, annual budgets and business plans, evaluates the
performance of the Group, and supervises the management of
the Company.

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among
other things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review of
the corporate and financial policies, review and assessment
of the Company's financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems and the oversight of the management of
the Group’s business and affairs. In addition, the Board has also
established four Board committees, namely the audit committee,
the nomination committee, the remuneration committee and
the executive committee, and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities set out in their respective
terms of reference.

Composition

The Board currently has eight Directors comprising five executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors (the
“INEDs"). The Directors for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Liu Zhengiang

Mr. Chen Zhiping (Chief Operating Officer)

Ms. Sze Shui Ling

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Or Ching Fai

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie

Ms. Tam Laiman
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The members of the Board represent a wide background and rich
industry experience with appropriate professional qualifications.
Please refer to the section headed "Profile of Directors, Senior
Management and Company Secretary” of this annual report for
the profiles of the Directors. Save as disclosed in the section
headed "Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary”, the Directors have no other financial, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are served by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY
Hung) and have not been segregated as required under code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board is of the view that
such arrangement provided the Group with strong and consistent
leadership to the Company and allowed for more effective and
efficient business planning and decisions as well as execution of
long term business strategies.

Independence of INEDs

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board had three
INEDs, representing more than one-third of the Board, and at
least one of them has the appropriate professional qualification of
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the three INEDs in respect of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all the INEDs are independent parties in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and free of
any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of
their independence judgements.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. Each of the executive Directors has renewed the
service contract with the Company for a further term of three
years commencing on 11 September 2018. Each of the INEDs has
renewed the letter of appointment with the Company for a further
term of three years commencing from 11 September 2018.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Further,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Members after his
appointment and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

In the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
Ms. Sze Shui Ling, Dr. Or Ching Fai and Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue
Annie will retire as Directors in accordance with Article 84 of the
Articles of Association and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election. Their biographical details will be set out in the
circular to be dispatched to the Shareholders with the notice of
annual general meeting.
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Meetings

The Board meets on a regular basis, and on an ad hoc basis,
as required by the business needs. During the year ended 31
March 2020, the Board convened 4 board meetings and one
annual general meeting (the “2019 AGM") to approve the final
and interim results announcements and financial reports, and to
discuss the overall strategy and monitor financial and operation
performance of the Company.

Attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings and
the 2019 AGM during the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out in
the following table:

23
EESTHREERMSTRETEE RN
HZE2020F3A31ALFE - EE2AMAN
REEGGZEUR—RREBEFAZ (2019
ERFBERE]) - ABERP R EARELE
NERVHRE - Wil ISR RERA
NEINI R EERSE -

TREY S FEREEREZ=2020F3831H
IFFEHEEES SR A2019FREBF K

BIER

Number of
Board
meetings
attended
HEEEE
Name of Director =6 PN
Executive Director HITEE
Mr. Hung Yau Lit i 414
(also known as YY Hung) (RBHEHE)EE
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (LTEREEHTE)
Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony kst 4/4
(Chief Financial Officer) (BEHEE)
Mr. Liu Zhengiang AEBEE 414
Mr. Chen Zhiping BRETEE 414
(Chief Operating Officer) (BEEEE)
Ms. Sze Shui Ling Mgl Z T 414
Independent non-executive Director BUHHATEE
Dr. Or Ching Fai TEEEL 414
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie BE KT 4/4
Ms. Tam Laiman BEXRT 414

Attendance

Attendance in the Attendance

rate 2019 AGM rate
RAEHE20195F

HEE RREEXE HE=R

100 Yes 100
%

100 Yes 100
z

100 Yes 100
z

100 Yes 100
z

100 Yes 100
z

100 Yes 100
z

100 Yes 100
z

100 Yes 100
z
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board
and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
at Board level and has commitment to diversity at all levels,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or profession experience.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, profession experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Board's
composition, the nomination committee of the Company is
satisfied that the requirement set out in the Board Diversity Policy
has been met.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy on 26 November
2018 which sets out the selection criteria and nomination
procedures adopted to guide the nomination committee of the
Company to select and recommend candidates for directorship so
as to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business.

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
nomination committee of the Company in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate:

° reputation for integrity;

o qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company's
business and corporate strategy;
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. (in case of independent non-executive Directors)
requirement for the Board to have independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules;

° any potential contributions that the candidate can bring to
the Board,;

o commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of
available time and relevant interest; and

° any other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business operation and environment as well as
the industry in which the Company operates.

The nomination committee may consult any source it considers
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations
from a third party agency firm and proposals from the
shareholders of the Company with due consideration given to the
criteria which include but are limited to the above-mentioned.

The nomination committee or the company secretary of
the Company shall convene a meeting upon receipt of any
nominations of candidates to evaluate such candidates based on
the selection criteria mentioned above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship. The nomination committee
should then recommend to the Board to appoint the appropriate
candidate for directorship. For any person that is nominated by
a shareholder of the Company for election as a Director at the
general meeting, the nomination committee and/or the Board
should make recommendation to the shareholders in respect of
the proposed election of Director at the general meeting. The
Board should have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

All the Directors are encouraged by the Company to participate in
continuous professional development so as to equip themselves
with the latest developments of the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, industry knowledge
and managerial skills in relation to the operation of the Group's
business.

All Directors have provided to the Company with their training
records and such records have been maintained by the Company
for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.
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Directors’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has arranged for appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance to indemnify its Directors against liabilities
arising out of legal action on corporate activities. During the year
ended 31 March 2020, no claim had been made against the
Directors of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. These include: to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and to
review the Company's compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the audit
committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee
and executive committee, each of which has the defined written
terms of reference that will be reviewed and updated, where
necessary. Copies of minutes of all meetings are kept by the
company secretary and open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director. Each committee is required
to report to the Board on its decision and recommendations,
where appropriate.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three INEDs, namely Dr. Or
Ching Fai, Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie and Ms. Tam Laiman.
The chairman of the audit committee is Dr. Or Ching Fai who has
appropriate professional qualifications.

The audit committee is established to, without limitation, assist
the Board in providing an independent review and supervision
of the Group’s financial and accounting policies, to review the
financial controls, risk management and internal control systems
of the Company, to oversee the audit process, and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as delegated by the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this
report, the audit committee members met two times with the
Group's senior management and the external auditors to discuss
and review, among other things, the following matters:

o the interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2019 and the annual results for the year ended 31 March
2020 to ensure full, complete and accurate disclosure in the
aforesaid financial statements pursuant to the accounting
standards and other legal requirement for presenting the
same to the Board for approval,

° the terms and remuneration for the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as external auditors to perform the
agreed-upon procedures on the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2019 and the audit of annual
results for the year ended 31 March 2020;

° the independence of the external auditors especially for
those non-audit services; and

° the overall effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meetings
is set out in the following table:

Name of Director

REE2020F3A31A L FE REEARE
B BRZEgRERASENSRER
B RANEZBENRITM AN E i - U RE
BI(HPBIE)UTER:

o EZE2019%9A30H 1L/ AP HIZE
BEREZE2020F3A31AILFENEF
B DR EARB ST ER RE
fMERR T2 TFESSUAHEIER
MmEAELEE  TEREHEER

o ZEBREBUKEBESIMEBEBSAINE
R IER R E - AEEZ=2019
FIA30H EAE AP EAZEEETTH
ERRF © UREEZ=20206F3A31H1E
FENDFEELTEZR

o HNEEEEN CLEMIERZRY) 1%
VA S

o ARFANBELRAREERLNHE
AR -

TREFIZEFIKELFZREEGHRNER -

Dr. Or Ching Fai B
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie FRE Kt
Ms. Tam Laiman B

Number of
meetings attended Attendance rate
HEEERE HfE R
2/2 100
2/2 100
2/2 100
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee comprises three members, namely
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie (the chairman of the committee),
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) and Ms. Tam Laiman.

The primary responsibilities of the remuneration committee
include (but not limited to) making recommendations and
proposals to the Board in respect of remuneration policies and
structure for Directors and senior management's remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the remuneration
committee held two meetings, in which it reviewed the existing
remuneration policies by reference with the market research
and gave recommendation of the remuneration packages and
performance-based bonus for executive Directors and senior
management to the Board for approval.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meetings
is set out in the following table:

ERERRE

FMHEES

FMEEem=RKBAER DRI AEEK
Wt (ZEGXRF)  HHE(XEHEZE)
FTENBBXLL

FHZEENEIZRAERBE(ETRR)%E
ENRREEEFMOFHBR R RBRE
FERMUERERANER -

MREE2020F3A31ALLEFEE  HFHEES
BITMAEE  RELHE2BHBHEEH
BAFHIE  TiR2gF e enrE
EREREEENTHEBRRRAEEN
TEARMER -

TREFIZEFIKELFERZEEGHENER -

Name of Director

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie Pk dt
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) HOREE (X BHDRZR) 4
Ms. Tam Laiman BEXXL

Number of
meetings attended Attendance rate
HEERRE HER
2/2 100
2/2 100
2/2 100

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the
code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
other members of the senior management by bands for the year
ended 31 March 2020 is set out below:

Remuneration to the senior management
by bands

EREEERERE D OHFH

EEHFIBEI AR A B TS HRRMIFE34 -
BEAN - IRB S EEESFRIMSFRIESCB.A G -
HZE2020F3A31 AL FEHMEREIRE
ERSHESNFEHFMHEINNT ¢

Number of
senior management
SREEBAY

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 75#1,000,001 7278 1,500,0007T 0
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 75#1,500,001 7T 27 #£2,000,0007T 2
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 75#2,000,001 T2 #£2,500,0007T 3
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), Mrs. To Wong Wing
Yue Annie and Ms. Tam Laiman. Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as
YY Hung) is the chairman of the nomination committee.

The primary responsibilities of the nomination committee include
(but not limited to) reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on structure, size composition and diversity of the
Board, to oversee the identification and assessment of potential
board candidates, to provide oversight and direction in respect
of the succession planning for Directors and to determine the
composition of Board committees.

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this
report, the nomination committee held one meeting which dealt
with the following matters:

° review of the Board composition and structure;

° review of independence of INEDs; and

° review of re-appointment of retiring Directors.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meetings
is set out in the following table:

Name of Director

REZES

REZBEM=RKEER 2RI RHHE
(XEHRR)2E  BEKZLTREEX
Tt o HHE(REBHRBER) EERREEE
EEK
REZBENIEZRERFBE(ETRN)BE
BEEGHRE  ARRRRZ TR
EEgRHEBEE ZBVENTRERE
EEREA  REFOEIFIRRES
KIS ARETERLZEGMAMK -

REZE2020F3831HIEFENEEARE
B RRZEEEHRT—RERUEENT
=5E

o MWNEFCHMEMRKRER

o MFBNMIEITEEMENME K&

o  ERR(IES=EMIEH-

TREJIZEFIKELFERZEGSHENER -

Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie P E Kt
Ms. Tam Laiman BEXZL

HURE (R B 4

Number of
meetings attended Attendance rate
HEERRE HE =
il 100
il 100
il 100

Executive Committee

The Board has set up the executive committee on 30 November
2015. The executive committee comprises all executive Directors
of the Company and the chairman of the Board shall be the
chairman of the committee.

The primary responsibilities of the executive committee include,
but not limited to, advising and assisting the Board in formulating
policies, monitoring the performance of management in carrying
out and implementing the policies laid down by the Board for the
Group, and handling and dealing with the bank-related transactions
and matters.

HITEE®
BEEN2015%F11 A 0EK I HITEES -
HITREEHARBNZEATEEER - M
EREeTFAUAZZEENTE -

HITZEENIERABE(ETRR) L
FRRAEESRHEALETHY  &EXR
ERBERATRETHEESALEERRE
RIBERMRIR - PARBEIE AR SRITIHRR
HREH -
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company engages PricewaterhouseCoopers as external
auditor. PricewaterhouseCoopers is responsible for auditing
and forming an independent opinion on the Group's annual
consolidated financial statements.

The audit committee reviews and monitors the external auditor’'s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year a planning report from the external
auditor confirming its independence and objectivity and holds
meetings with representatives of the external auditor to consider
the scope of its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of non-
audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The audit committee
also makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and retention of the external auditor.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the total fees paid/payable
in respect of services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
external auditor of the Company, are set out below:

FriR AR %S

Services rendered

R
IR

Audit services
Non-audit services

ERERRE

SRR BEM

ARRIREERBKEEEEBARINE
TZEEN - BEBOKEGMELMARES
REENFREEMHERE LU IR EE L
BR -

ERZBeENRERINSZBE BT
REBME  URBZBEENERE - 28BS
BERERIMNS BB L ER LB
HEEBMENREIRE - WEINSZBEAR
REBTEH  UEREWERE - AKiSH
HAR e IEEZ IR (B ) EE EE
% - BZZ BTN ZBE N R EER
BEEAEFSRIES

(3 GIE

HZE2020F3A31 B ILEFE - BiAAFSNE
% B RN 28 Fo ok 3B 5T RT3 75 T2 4L A9 BR 7%
BAt RN B AREHIIIT

Fees paid/payable
Bt/ BB

HK$°000
BT

3,000
1,132
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
consolidated financial statements of the annual and interim
reports, other price sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and to report to
regulators as well as to disclose information required pursuant
to statutory requirements. When the Directors become aware of
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, such uncertainties would be clearly and
prominently set out and discussed in detail in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities and opinion of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2020 is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 137
to 143 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL AUDIT

Risk Management and Internal Control

To manage and monitor the various risk factors which the
Company may be exposed, the Board is responsible for
establishing and overseeing the Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis, and ensuring the
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems has been properly conducted. The main features
of this system, which continues to operate, were described in this
Corporate Governance Report.

The Company has already reviewed its risk management
framework and processes and has implemented relevant
measures resulting from this exercise that aim to enhance
its framework and processes. In particular, the Company has
developed, approved and implemented a risk management
system, which is defined and supported by its endorsed
risk management policy. The terms of reference of the audit
committee have included its responsibility for an effective system
of internal control and risk management.
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Risk Governance Structure Bk EELEE

The Company's governance structure for is risk management 7T'< ARREERFNEBRBEHIIAT -
system is shown below. Each party has well defined and detailed EREAEPREFANACBREE -

roles and responsibilities.
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Risk Assessment Methodology

The Company's methodology for its risk assessment comprises
of four core stages (i.e. risk identification, assessment, monitoring
and reporting). These processes are performed at least once a
year to address changes in the Company’s business environment.

Review on the Effectiveness of Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material
controls such as financial, operational and compliance controls.
In addition, the Board has appointed an international accountancy
firm to review the internal control systems of the Company on an
on-going basis. The review covered the expenditure, production
management and fixed assets management of certain key
subsidiaries of the Company.

Our Responsibility

Our Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that effective
and sound risk management and internal control systems are
maintained, while management is responsible to design and
implement an internal controls system to manage risks. The
Board is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal controls system.

The risk management and internal control systems can provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the process of attaining business
objectives. Based on the results of the annual review, the Board is
satisfied and confident with the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems currently put in place for the
Company.

Communication of Risk Events

Where risk events arise, our communications, both within the
Company and to external parties, are an integral part of the risk
management system. To enable the Company to make the
appropriate decisions and responses to mitigate or address
any risk event, relevant information on the incident needs to
be communicated by and to the right functions and individuals,
completely and accurately, and in a timely manner.

To ensure inside information of the Company is to be disclosed to
the public in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules,
applicable laws and regulatory requirement, a framework has
been established to set out the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS g RAER
The Company aims to establish fair and transparent procedures ARAREERELANFERERANER - FHAE
to enable all shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their BRSNS 15 R N T R
rights in an informed manner and communicates efficiently with BARNRBRER - RIBABEIZMAIAR
the Company. Under the Articles of Association and the relevant AARHBERELETF  BREZH(HPa
policies and procedures of the Company, the shareholders enjoy, AR

among others, the following rights:

1. Convene an extraordinary general meeting/put

forward proposals:

Any one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
with two months after the deposit of such requisition at the
Company’s Hong Kong office at 10th Floor, Tower A, Regent
Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under Article 58 of the
Articles of Association once a valid requisition is received.

2. Propose a person for election as a Director:
As regards to the procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director, please refer to “Procedures for
shareholders to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director at a general meeting”
under the section headed “Shareholders rights” of the
Company’s website at www.reginamiracleholdings.com.

3. Put forth enquiries to the Company:
Specific enquiries by Shareholders requiring the Board's
attention can be sent in writing to the company secretary
at the Company's Hong Kong office at 10th Floor, Tower
A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong
Kong.
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing and constructive
relationship with the shareholders, the Company has compiled
a shareholders communication policy and established various
channels of communication with the shareholders, such as
publication of interim reports and annual reports, press releases
and announcements of the latest development of the Company in
a timely manner. The shareholders are also encouraged to attend
the Company’s annual general meetings where the Chairman and
members of different Board committees are available to answer
Shareholders’ questions and exchange views with them.

Financial and other information in relation to the Group
has been published on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’'s website at
www.reginamiracleholdings.com.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Kwan Chuen is the company secretary of the Company.
He is an employee of the Company and reports directly to the
Board and is responsible for, inter alia, providing updated and
timely information to all Directors from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Mr. Law has complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has also dedicated great effort towards protecting the
environment and supporting society. For details, please refer to
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual
report under the “Corporate Social Responsibility” subsection.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this
report, the Company has not made any changes to its Articles of
Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association is
available on both the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R A EREREE

ABOUT THE REPORT

Introduction

The Group is pleased to issue its fourth environmental, social and
governance report (the “Report”), with an aim to disclose the
Group's policy system and performance in respect of fulfilling its
environmental and social responsibilities for Fiscal 2020. On the
basis of the environmental, social and governance report for last
year, the Report has newly disclosed three social key performance
indicators (“KPIs"), and improved the information visualization,
in order to present the Group’'s commitment, achievement and
performance in respect of the Group's environmental, social and
governance ("ESG”) in a more comprehensive and prioritized
manner.

Scope of Reporting

The Report covers the manufacturing and office business of the
Group's Shenzhen and Vietnam factories in its general disclosures
and the key performance indicators for social subject area,
whereas the environmental KPIs encompass the manufacturing
and office business of the Shenzhen factories and Vietnam
factories A, B and C, to further align with the Group's operating
performance for Fiscal 2020.

The time frame of the Report lasts from 1 April 2019 to 31 March
2020 (the “Reporting Period”), with certain content dating back
to previous or extending to subsequent period, as appropriate.

Basis of the Report

The Report has been prepared strictly according to the
requirements of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “Guide") of the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, with disclosure priorities of the Report and the
Group's management objectives for sustainable development
identified based on the degree of concern on each topic to the
stakeholders.
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Principles of the Report
The Report upholds the following principles of materiality,
quantitative, and consistency to report:

Principle

Meaning

A 2%

Materiality The Report should report the ESG-
issues that are sufficiently important to
investors and other stakeholders.

BEM WEEERSHREERAMERAEES

EYENRE  HENERERER -

Quantitative KPIs need to be measurable.

Bt RASRAEUEIR/AR TR E -

Consistency The Report should use consistent
methodologies to allow for meaningful

comparisons of ESG data over time.

WMEREA—BORBLRTE  SBIR
HERERBIRAKAIEE ERMLEK -

— B

Source of Information

The information disclosed in the Report is derived from the
Group's official documents, statistical reports and relevant public
information.

R AEREREE

W RA
R|ERFATRAEITRE - BB B
LR —Sik

Responses of the Group

AEEE E

The Report identifies current major ESG
issues through communication with
stakeholders, taking into account the
nature of the Group's business, operation
mode, and locations of operation.
RpEmBaEER ABRKEMNEANER
BE - uHekEnEsd  UERTASED
EBINE 2@ A REE S

The Report provides KPls with
quantitative measures where feasible,
and includes explanatory notes to allow
readers to assess and validate the ESG
policy of the Group and its performance.
RIEEATIERT - AEHXIRHE AR
BRIEIR - WA EAR - AR EE R A AR
BAREERE HEgRESHERBEENGE
WK o

The Report has compared current KPlIs
and information on different aspects
with those in the past, in order to allow
readers to facilitate the comparisons of
the Group's performance year-on-year.
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R A EREREE

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOVERNANCE

Sustainable Development Philosophy

As an advocate and practitioner of sustainable development
philosophy, the Group actively manages the environmental and
social impact of its manufacturing and operational activities. While
striving to be a world-class enterprise, we bring values to the
environment, employees and society. We save energy and reduce
consumption to sustain a balanced ecological environment; we
respect our staff and protect their legitimate rights and interests;
we strive for excellent manufacturing to produce high-quality
products; we value collaboration to procure our supplier to honour
obligations; we comply with laws and regulations and observe
business ethics; we give back to society and support community
development. In Fiscal 2020, we continued to implement our
sustainable development philosophy. We endeavor to create long-
term value for stakeholders, shoulder responsibility, and achieve
sustainable development in a responsible fashion.

Vision

Ee cross-sector global enterprise

Mission

A ERERE

AFERREESR
AEEREURTARERRES  BEE
BHEMELEHHRERMEENTE &
HORAEAREFSECENRE - TAIR
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BHBE  REFREREE  BMEEEH
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& ° 202081 F - RMEEBERIFERRE
2 BOIRAES A ABERERRERE A
BT BEEHERISERE -

Promoting sustainable development of the industry through
innovation and technology, and becoming an outstanding

BRI RETERERR KASHBITESHESE

Producing premium products, realizing industry value and

i

Belief

%

Emphases of sustainable
development

AHEBRRER

putting social responsibilities to practice
BlE—mER - BRITERER  BITHEREME

Integrity and pragmatism, people-oriented,
innovative development, cooperation

HEBE - DARE - ATRE - BRAE

One company, one dream, one team

A—27 - A—®iE - F—EK

Sustainable development of innovation, culture, system, and core competitiveness
BRI EER - )L ERE - SIS RERRE RUBRF N HEERE

Structure of Sustainable Development Governance
The Group has established a robust ESG management structure.
We have effectively carried out our sustainable development
strategies with well-specified responsibilities at each level,
to ensure that environmental and social responsibilities are
incorporated into our management decision-making, daily
operation and corporate culture.

RFEERAERE
AEBECREIRENERE  HERERER
BiE - BERLETEANDBORERSE
BRBRCEEAIRAEERRE - BRERE
EHe@BENBEITRARMANERRE - A
BELERAEEZF -
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The Board, as the highest decision-maker responsible for the
Group's ESG affairs, provides guidance and suggestions on
sustainable development management by timely reviewing and
assessing the Group's strategies. As the central department
on ESG affairs, the department for sustainable development
coordinates and oversees all the departments in fulfilling
sustainable development responsibilities, and organizes the
preparation of the annual ESG report; respective functional
departments, as the actual executors, are responsible for
implementing sustainable development strategies and providing
materials for information disclosure.

Under the robust support of our ESG management structure, our
sustainable development strategies that cover multiple subject
areas, such as social compliance, Customs-Trade Partnership
Against Terrorism, brand protection and environmental
management and management system establishment, are
applied to Shenzhen and Vietnam factories, as appropriate, with
comprehensive policies and systems in place to effectively guide
our sustainable operation and our partners’.

ESG Leadership

The Board of Directors
BRIE HERERAEER

BExg

ESG Coordination
Department for Sustainable Development

B - #HERELGEER

AR AR

ESG Execution
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Respective Functional Departments

BE - HERERHTER

TH B RE RS

Shenzhen

Factories

R E

Vietnam

Factories

HERE

Social Compliance/ Brand protection,
. Environmental Social
Customs-_Trade Par?nershlp Management and ocial
Against Terrorism Management System Responsibility
HesE 56 Establishment desa
B Mt E R
8 Rt BRRAEEREERAKE

Brand protection/
Customs-Trade Partnership
Against Terrorism
mIEIRE EE
BE RS

Environmental
Management and
Management System
Establishment
BRETEREENRA

Sustainable Development Governance Structure

ARFERRGERRE
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COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Stakeholder Communication Mechanism

The Group maintains continuous communication with its
stakeholders in an open and prudent manner. Stakeholders’
concerns and advice are regarded as our key reference for
sustainable development. We have set up a normalized
stakeholder communication mechanism to ensure that
stakeholders are timely informed of the Group's operation status.
We regularly review our potential environmental and social
impact, and actively listen and respond to stakeholders’ appeal
and suggestions, all in an effort to safeguard and consolidate the
relations of mutual help and trust with our stakeholders and jointly
attain the vision of sustainable development.

BEABE

B A EEKS
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Stakeholder Communication Mechanism

3PN L ]

Stakeholder Expectation and Appeal

Communication and Response

A M EERR

Employees Remuneration and benefits assurance
Healthy working environment
Career development and promotion
Safeguard staff's legitimate rights
and interests

]
H

HE AR FIRE
RER TIERE
BEHREETT
REB TA AR

Customers Product quality
Customer information protection
Business integrity

5P EmmE
EFERRE
[EEL24E

Shareholders and Financial results
investors Corporate sustainable profit
Corporate transparency
Rights protection
PR B & = Wﬁﬁﬁ
NRIAIFHE R
NEERE
R RE

BB E R

Offer market-competitive remuneration

Organize staff care activities

Optimize the staff development and
promotion mechanism

Set up barrier-free communication
channels for staff

REABRFNHNTSHE

HEBETHEE R

BB TRREEE TG

B8 TEERBEERSE

Improve product quality and R&D

Employ information technology

Enhance internal control and risk
management

IRFHEE 2 R

BERERRH

BT E R

Achieve profitability

Enhance corporate sustainable profitability
Disclose daily information

Convene general meetings

BERANEE

RN RFHERFEEN

ABEERE
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Stakeholder
A

Government and
regulatory authorities

BT EEE R

Suppliers and partners

HEREAER

Industrial associations

(FE1

Local communities

(packa

R AEREREE

Stakeholder Communication Mechanism

5PN ]

Expectation and Appeal
B BEZR R

Compliance with laws
Make legal tax payments
Job creation

BaLTIR
TR
REE

Cooperation and win-win
Open and fair
Achieve common growth

EXGES ]
NGNS
BERHARAKE

Exchange industrial experience
Promote industrial advancement
TR

BT

Protect community environment

Devote to charitable activities

Create harmonious community
environment

Facilitate community development

IRIEILRIRIE

KEHE s

BB RIRIE

R RER

Communication and Response

B E e

Operate in accordance with the law and
compliance management

Make tax payments voluntarily

Create job opportunities

AL EHAIRE R

F BT

BlER S

Optimize project management

Improve supplier management system

Establish communication platforms for
suppliers

BrEEER

TEMEE B

reftEmEsaTa

Participate in industrial forums
Enhance R&D capability
ZEITH RIS

R R R

Comprehensively practise green operation

Undertake charitable projects

Actively engage in joint community
construction

Provide premium cultural resources

FHEHEBEGEES

FAEA=IEE

MRS Bt [ H

RHEENXEER
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R A EREREE

Material Subjects

The Group believes that ongoing communication helps us keep
abreast of the latest perspectives, and quickly respond to the risks
and opportunities arising from the changing market. Therefore,
based on the materiality assessment results from last financial
year and taking into account the results from our communication
with stakeholders in Fiscal 2020, we have determined the
materiality sequence of subjects for the Report and elaborated
on them in a targeted manner herein, so as to preserve the
substance of our information disclosure in the Report.

ERMEE
ARERERHEEBENEDRMBRER
RHNER  UEAREIEBERTHEENT
BRI ER RS - Bt 2R E—BF
FRMEEMFESER - 4620208 FH A
HEEARNBRNR  RPIEETAREE
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SRELBL - UREAREREEENE
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R HBRERES

ESG Reporting Guide Strategies and Goals Risks and Opportunities  Subjects among Industry Peers
ESG#&1ES| BRREAE EBREE E{T=RE

ESG Subjects
ESGZEE

Materiality Assessment Communication with Stakeholders

BN BEABR

A Materiality Matrix for ESG Subjects
ESGEREEEMEM

Impact on Stakeholders ¥ 35 A H S/ £

Impact on Business ¥I £ 5/ &
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Sequence of ESG Subjects Based on Materiality
ESGEEEZHHF

Very Important 1 Labour rights protection
FEEE BT i (R
2 Product quality and safety
EmEERTs
3 Occupational health and safety
B FESELT S
4 R&D and innovation
e BRI
5 Staff training and development
B TIE5)| R R
6 Customer satisfaction and information security
EEMERERERELZSE
7 Management of energy consumption and carbon emissions
BEREERRRBE N E IR
Important 8 Prevention of child and forced labour
BE PrIEET KRB A E)
9 Water resources and sewage treatment
KREIREFIKE IR
10 Energy saving, emissions reduction and green operation
ERERBE AR B
11 Supplier admission and assessment
R A B R A
12 Protection of intellectual property rights
B ERERE
13 Anti-corruption and compliance management
REFHEEHER
14 Staff remuneration packages and benefits
8 T Z s K a8 A
15 Waste treatment
EEEY BRI
16 Reasonable promotion and marketing
SRR HEE B
Less Important 17 Anti-discrimination and equal opportunity
REE REAR R FEHE
18 Community investment
HEEE
19 Environmental and labour management performance of suppliers

HERRFHRE TEERE

As shown in the results of materiality assessment, the subjects
ranked higher in materiality include labour rights protection,
product quality and safety, occupational health and safety,
R&D and innovation, staff training and development, customer
satisfaction and information security, etc. We will emphasize on
the disclosure of such subjects in the Report and regard them as
the significant basis for our ESG work planning for the year ahead.

RESBEFGERAT  NEEEEMH
FRENAB TG RE EREEHER
2 BERFEERTE - HEEAR - BT
JIEER  EPREREEEREERA
A A R E T BB 0 R AR A B R
B WAMEST —FESGIIFREMEE
I
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GROW WITH OUR STAFF

Regarding talents as irreplaceable assets for the sustainable
development of Regina Miracle, the Group proactively nurtures
and develops its human resources under a sound talent
management system and a robust people-oriented protection
system. The Group, as a responsible employer, grows along with
its staff to attain success.

Talent Management System

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions where it operates, including the “Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Labor Contract
Law of the People’'s Republic of China”, and the “Labor Code
of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam”. Besides, the Group has
prepared and implemented the policies and procedures covering
the entire group and across all levels, including the “Recruitment
Procedures”, the “Management Measures for Competitive
Internal Recruitment, Promotion and Demotion”, as well as the
“Staff Departure Procedures”. It has built a robust and protective
talent management system of “Recruitment-Training-Retention”,
to establish and maintain a talent team for meeting our ongoing
and fast development needs.

Talent Recruitment

The Group acquires talents through campus recruitment, internal
recommendation and recruitment websites, sticking to the
recruitment principle of “open recruitment, comprehensive
appraisal and merit-based admission”. We roll out a number of
recommendation incentive schemes to encourage our employees
to recommend outstanding talents, fully utilizing our existing
human capital to continuously inject vitality into our talent teams.

The Group emphasizes on cooperation with institutions and
enterprises. Vietnam factories have established collaborative
relationship with 18 local institutions in Vietnam, and hold job fairs
at the cooperative schools on a regular basis every year to recruit
fresh graduates extensively. According to the written entrance
requirements submitted by various departments, the Group's
human resources department conducts a collective assessment
of the candidates in terms of their background qualifications,
capability, work experience, etc., and offers fair employment
opportunities to those who meet the job requirements.

R AEREREE

BETHEMER
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AT EEEZR
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RS  REBEEIE) (B ITRERR
B)EEE2EE  2RENEEIRE -
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BRBERE - AERIEER R HEH
B RBERF2HATHM

AT R

AEBBREIARBE  2EE% - BEEK
B R R R SBERERE - B &
ERERUHRERBAAS - RAIRAZHE
HERBTESEE TSIBSREEAT -
AAFAEENANERBEFIATBEE
SHEENET

AEEFERMAE UERED BBEEE
ISR A ERRR - BFEHEAEF
SRE|EWAEES  BZRREEEXRE A
SEANERPRESHBFAEINETAT
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EHEEELETR % KTHAREMLE
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To encourage our employees for continuous advancement and
self-improvement, the Group has established a clear internal
competition and rank promotion mechanism and ensure that the
internal talent selection is conducted on a basis of open, fair,
just, equal competition, and merit-based admission. In Fiscal
2020, a total of 377 employees were promoted through internal
competitive examination and interview, with about 22% of them
promoted to supervisor-level positions or above.

As of 31 March 2020, the Group had a total of 42,917 staff,
representing a year-on-year increase of 6%. The growth in the
total number of staff was in line with our business growth, which
brought stable support of human resources to us. The specific
performance of KPIs related to employment is as follows:

Total workforce
BT A

Unit
B

Total number of workforce Person
ETHAY A
Number of workforce by gender
RUBIBDNET AR

Male Person
Bt A
Female Person
i A
Number of workforce by employment type
REBEREINET AR

Full-time Person
7 A
Part-time Person
T A
Internship Person
R A
Number of workforce by employment level
REREINET AR

Rank and file Person
EEAE A
Middle management Person
PRERE A
Senior management Person
SETERE A

AEBEITEER  BRARER A%
B T AR R B AR E A
WHERAIBATRIKARE - AF - RIE - F
L5% - JEESREL 0 202081 4F - HBE3774
BTI@ANIHEEAMEASIHEA &
PHOBER2%HETEAREE LKA LB

fir o

B ZE2020F3A31H - "EBEEBTHAEA
297N BE—HFIERER - BETHAA
FHERERMNEFERMBEER - A
HRTRBENANEREE - BHREERRE
BRUEZMAERBAOT ¢

Fiscal 2020
202081 &

1 42,917

16,111

26,806

42,917

31,236
11,517

164
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R HERERRE

Total workforce
BT AH

Unit Fiscal 2020
By 202081 F

Number of workforce by age group

RERERBETHNETIAH

30 years old or below Person

3055 A T A 15,739
31 to 50 years old Person

30E505% A 26,910
Above 50 years old Person

508%A £ A 268

Number of workforce by geographical

region

RWBETHNETAH

Mainland China Person

B i A 8,030

Hong Kong Person

e A 290

Vietnam Person

g A 34,597
1 The statistics on the total workforce encompass all employees of 1 ETAHSGEE ANERFYIME - HEMH

the Group's Shenzhen factories, Vietnam factories, and functional [ R B EAL PR E R T ©

departments in Hong Kong.
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Training and Development

The Group is committed to “Growing with its staff”, and provides
enriched training resources and smooth development paths
for employees, with a view to retaining talents for our steady
development.

Based on our strategic priorities of “innovation, speed and
quality”, we conduct scientific evaluation and design for each
position from the two aspects of internal value and external
market value. We also establish a corresponding training
system for core key positions to effectively shorten the talent
training cycle and improve training efficiency. For employees
of different ranks, we operate training programs for newly
recruited employees such as skills training school, |E (Industrial
Engineering), and lean knowledge training, etc., to ensure that our
employees receive adequate training throughout their careers and
continue to improve their skills at work. Meanwhile, to ensure the
training is comprehensive, we actively establish an online learning
platform to provide sufficient talent training and support for our
development.

155 R /R
AEBNUEETHRAKKIRRE - RET
R{EEENEIERNEBENERER B
BRI ERFEEBEEATL -

KRERIBIFT - RE - B2 NEIEES - B
HREBEEMINI T SEEMEREE - G5
A ETRI B EMER - AR OBR
A REHEMEIER  BRESATE
ERH  BABERE - EHRTRBANE
T BRFAFEESARE THAEEIISR - IE
(Industrial Engineering * T3 T2 ) #5354
HIEEIIEE  BREIEEBMELES
BEEZ T MR - HERARERE -
A ZRIFIEENZEES - BIE
BEEGRLEEYE  ARMOEREHRRT
ERASEEET
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With our gradual expansion of production capacity in Vietnam
and innovative reform towards automatic production, the
localization of management has become an important strategy
for our multinational management. We export quality personnel
to Vietnam factories appropriately and continue to allocate
training resources to provide local employees with career and
development opportunities. We provide all-rounded and diversified
training courses combining internal and external component for
exported employees. Internal training includes excellent working
method training, and chemicals management procedure training,
etc. External trainings include PACE (Personal Advancement and
Career Enhancement) project training, management skills training,
etc. At the same time, Vietnam factories have established a
foreign language center within the factories area in conjunction
with Hai Phong University (&[5 XZ) to help local employees in
Vietnam and Chinese employees stationed in Vietnam overcome
language barriers and better adapt to the cross-cultural working
environment.

S

"H\lﬂ"c‘

:mnmilj@ - I
"v’eﬁa gl
T

R AEREREE

BEEERMEENETERRREERBES
BEAREBFESE - ERABRMILK AT
FERIEIERE 2R o FPE S H A 8RR
BEIXEEAL - WAEIRAEIER - A
XRAME TESSENEAEE - MY
Bk B TIRIEAINIEEEN 2 A Z T
BIIEIIERIE - IS BB TIE T VAL
Al (L BRERBIRENE - SNEREIEE
PACE ( Personal Advancement and Career
Enhancement * A A B F B 2R )IHE
EI - EIRRAIE o AR WEEEBS
BHARZE - R AKIIINEFR L - BEE
MAMB TIREEEOPHE TRRES
Pt - AT B S UL TIEIRIR o

Foreign Language Center in the Vietnam Factories

MR E SRR 0

In Fiscal 2020, an aggregate of 21,071 employees of the Group
have undergone training, such that each employee received 4.51
hours of training on average.

2020815 - AEBIHBET21,071 AEZE
A FIFAZH4.51/)EF
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RE - HERERRSE

Employee Training Data

EIZIEE
Unit Fiscal 2020
E-Th) 202081
Total percentage of employees trained %
ZIEITHFIHL % 2 49.1

Percentage of employees trained by gender

EMBBINZINET AL

Male

B4 % 354
Female

gegis % 64.6

Percentage of employees trained by employment level

ERABINZIETESL

Rank and file

HEEAB % 59.1
Middle management

PREEE % 421
Senior management

BREERE % 0.7
Total training hours Hour

BTIZIRE NEF 2 193,424

Training hours of employees by gender

BEUBBSWE T Z IR

Male Hour
B IINEE 38,481
Female Hour
4 N 154,943

Training hours of employees by employment level

BERRBONE TR IR

Rank and file Hour

HEEAB /NEF 128,568
Middle management Hour

PRERE aNs: 64,008
Senior management Hour

BRERE aNs: 848
Average training hours completed per employee Hours/person

BT FHZIINH NS VON 2 4.5

Average training hours of employees by gender

RIEBIEID B T T2 IRGE

Male Hours/person

St ANSYPN 2.4

Female Hours/person

eqsa ANEYON 5.8

Average training hours of employees by employment

level

RRBAESNWE I FI9ZIESE

Rank and file Hours/person

EEAB AN TN 4.1

Middle management Hours/person

FRERE AN TN 5.6

Senior management Hours/person

RRERE NN 5.2
2 The training statistics encompass all employees of the Group’s Shenzhen 2 BIXIISEGAHEARERRIIKR - 8

factories, Vietnam factories and functional departments in Hong Kong. PRI e BB BAL I PINAE R T -
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Development for Core Key Position Curriculum System

We continue to work on developing and establishing a
system of key positions, taking into account the Group's
overall development needs and strategic goals of talent
development, with a view to building a systematic
knowledge system and a position competency model
through the well-honed skills of experts at key positions
and providing strong support for fast talent training and
recruitment. We focused on the types of key position
through internal talent appraisal and formulated a medium-
to-long term internal comprehensive training program
for core key positions. In Fiscal 2020, we completed the
development of a number of core key position curriculums
in Shenzhen factories in 7 months, including R&D quality
assurance positions and R&D trial positions. Based on the
experience of over 20 business experts, we have formed a
corresponding knowledge system to serve as a channel for
new staff to grasp work knowledge and skills, which can
effectively shorten the talent training cycle, improve training
efficiency, save recruitment and training cost, and enhance
the stability of our teams.
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Skills Training School for Employees

The employee skills training school of the Group was
officially launched in April 2019, aiming at helping newly
recruited employees improve their skills at work, expand
growth path, and also assist our Group to enhance its
technological innovation. The training school formulates
different training programs for different employees based
on the needs of the workshop, including employees’
training time and content. After passing the basic training
and assessment, the department will assign work to
its employees, and the trainers will follow up and guide
the employees through the production line to help them
familiarize with the work quickly.

IE Lean Knowledge Training

The Group has actively rolled out our |IE lean knowledge
training from development to production. During the
reporting period, we hired internal and external lecturers to
conduct comprehensive system training for our middle and
senior management and frontline management personnel of
the workshops in all factories in Vietnam and Shenzhen. The
training was conducted in four stages and involved 6 aspects,
including contents of operation measurement, production
line balance, pre-season preparation, and production
modules. Meanwhile, we have launched an employee
standard operation training. As of the reporting date, we
have trained 245 employees.
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o PACE (Personal Advancement and Career Enhancement)

Project Training

The Vietnam factories continued to carry out PACE
project training in Fiscal 2020, and the number of trainees
increased from 312 in 2019 to 560 in 2020. The training
is specially designed for female staff by our Group,
including communication skills, time management, financial
expenditure management and other skills to improve
personal career development and quality of life, in order to
help enhancing the self-confidence and sense of satisfaction
of female staff.
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o Online Learning Platform

In order to strengthen the system of staff training courses
and the diversity of training content, the Shenzhen factories
started to establish an online learning platform in early 2020,
transforming the offline quality courses into online courses,
and planning to open 2,000 learning accounts. The learning
content covers more than 15 learning categories, including
general onboard knowledge, occupational health and safety,
job skills enhancement and personal skills enhancement,
which helps our staff to adapt to our Group’s development
and social needs.

Retaining Talents

The Group values every talent and endeavors to retain talents.
Staff will be granted a long-term service award for their service
over a specific length.

We timely arrange interviews with employees who have an
inclination to leave. The interview is designed to learn about their
work and living conditions, motives for departure, as well as the
possibility and conditions to stay, so as to retain outstanding
personnel. The general manager’'s office of every business
department would conduct a staff departure review regularly, in
which the department head reports on staff departure analysis to
timely identify room for improvement and retain talents for our
Group, with the regular internal audit also taken into account.
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People-oriented Protection System

The Group has established a people-oriented protection system
based on the value of “people-oriented”, endeavoring to create a
work environment featuring respect, equality, mutual trust, health
and sustainability for our staff.
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Protection of Labor Rights and Interests

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions where our Group operates its business,
such as the “Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Law of the People’'s Republic of China on the Protection of
Minors”, the “Minimum Wage Regulations”, the “Provisions of
the State Council on Staff Working Hours” and the “Labor Code
of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam”, and operates in the principle
of prohibition of forced and child labor, and in compliance with
the remuneration, benefits and working hours regulations. Apart
from that, we have formulated and implemented policies and
systems such as the “Code of Conduct of Regina Miracle”, the
“Staff Manual”, the "Procedures for Protecting Minor Workers”,
the “Procedures for Preventing Forced or Compulsory Labor”, the
“Procedures for the Prohibition of Employing Child Labor”, the
“Procedures for the Prohibition of Discrimination”, the “Working
Hours System of the Company”, the “Norms of Working
Hours and Rest”, the “Voluntary Overtime Policy”, the "Staff
Relationship Management Procedures”, the “Staff Complaints
Procedures and Process”, the “Basic Policies and Procedures for
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Social Responsibility” and the “Economic Compensation Policy”,
in an effort to protect the staff’s legitimate rights and interests
in a practical manner. Meanwhile, the Group has set up staff
representative union and labor union in Shenzhen and Vietnam
factories. Talks are arranged on a regular basis to help old and
new staff members understand each other, share information and
establish harmonious labor relations.

Prohibition of Forced Labor

The Group prohibits all personnel from forcing staff in any manner
or unnecessarily restricting staff’'s freedom to act, and requires
factories and business partners not to force labor, including but
not limited to prison labor and indentured labor, etc. We adopt
direct recruitment and direct salary payment to ensure that labor
relations and capital transactions take place without involvement
of third parties. We employ a variety of channels, such as special
meetings, special training, posting factory regulations, email or
broadcast to ensure that all staff members are properly informed
of the abovementioned policies. We also set up suggestion boxes
in public areas such as workshops and canteens, so the staff can
provide feedback through the suggestion boxes or directly to the
staff representative if they think that they have been subjected to
forced labor, which will be investigated and handled by the senior
management of the factory.

During the reporting period, there had been no cases of forced
labor.

Prohibition of Child Labor

The Group prohibits recruiting child labor and requires factories
and business partners not to employ children under the age of
16. All applicants of the Group shall possess their legal ID cards
for undertaking relevant procedures, which is to ensure that they
have reached the legal working age. Any personnel who breaches
this policy shall be subject to disciplinary action in accordance
with relevant regulations. If child labor is found, the factory must
immediately stop him/her from working and escort him/her
back to his or her guardian. Meanwhile, the human resources
department of the Group will follow up and investigate the
reasons for the wrong recruitment of child labor, in order to take
effective measures to prevent similar incidents.

During the reporting period, there had been no cases of child labor
employment.
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Compliance with Remuneration and \Welfare Regulations

Based on the principle of “mutual benefit and distribution
according to contribution”, the Group provides the staff with
reasonable remuneration and welfare under the laws and
regulations of the place where it operates. The compensation
package of our employees consists of four components, including
wages, overtime pay, allowances and paid leave wages, with the
basic salary not lower than the standard minimum wage in the
place where we operate to safeguard the basic living needs of our
employees. In addition, based on the “Economic Compensation
Policy” of the Company, after the labor contract is terminated or
ceased, we will also pay one-off financial subsidy to our staff in
accordance with certain standards apart from settling wages. The
Group contributes to social insurance and provident fund for our
staff in the place of business operations as required, and ensures
that our employees are entitled leaves such as paid leave, marital
leave, maternity leave, work-related injury leave and sick leave.

Diversity and Equal Employment

The Group is committed to developing a corporate culture
of equality and diversity and to create a harmonious and fair
work environment. We provide open and equal employment
opportunities and welfare, conduct recruitment and promotion
appraisal with robust transparency in plans, requirements and
positions as well as impartial standard. Our staff will not be
treated differently regarding to the factors such as gender, ethnic
background, religion, age, nationality, political standpoint, as well
as social status. All our policies are prepared in both Chinese and
Vietnamese. Outside of work, we organize Chinese-Vietnamese
language classes on a regular basis to provide training in relation
to Chinese and Vietnamese customs and culture for our staff
engaged in cross-cultural work, so as to promote cultural
integration and understanding.

The Group cares for female staff, and related decision and action
are considered from the female perspective. We are committed to
allowing all female staff to enjoy pregnancy and lactation benefits
as provided by the local laws where we operate our business.
We provide breastfeeding rooms for female staff and support any
activities related to the health of female staff.
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Our gender ratio stands at 3:5, with female staff accounting for
41% of our senior management.

Physical and Mental Health of the Staff

The Group strictly abides by laws and regulations in the place
of operation such as the “Constitution of the People’'s Republic
of China"”, the "Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases”, the “Fire
Control Law of the People’'s Republic of China”, the “Regulations
on Factory Safety and Sanitation”, the “Law of Occupational
Safety and Hygiene of the Socialist Republic of Vietham”,
the “Vietnam's Circular on National Technical Regulation on
Microclimate” and the “Vietnam's Circular on National Technical
Regulation on Noise”. We execute the principle of meeting
health and safety standards, always emphasizing safety during
the course of production and operation of the Company, and
formulating and implementing policies and regulations such as the
“Environmental and Occupational Health and Safety Management
Manual” and the “Occupational Safety and Health Policy” based
on our actual situation, so as to ensure that our staff work and live
in a healthy and safe environment.

Meeting Health and Safety Standards

The Group maintains the occupational health and safety
principles of “safety first, compliance with disciplines and
regulations, prevention-centered, all-staff engagement and
ongoing improvement”, with the general goal of “zero major
accidents such as severe injury, fatality, explosion, fire and leak of
hazardous chemical substances; higher safety awareness among
the staff, and safety training for all staff”. Eight goals have been
set to cover the health and safety of our employees, requiring that
any production activities must be carried out on the premise of
ensuring safety.
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o Establishment of Safety Standardization

The Group has established a safety management system
and we conduct regular risk assessment to minimize
potential risks as we consider it our responsibility to provide
a healthy and safe environment for the staff. Some factories
in Shenzhen and Vietnam under the Group have been
rewarded with the certification of ISO 45001 occupational
health and safety management system, among which,
Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Limited
and Regina Miracle (Shenzhen) Limited have passed the
national level-2 work safety standardization certification in
2018.
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Safety and Health Management

The Group emphasizes on the safety education of all
staff and implements full-process and comprehensive
health and safety management for all staff. We regularly
promote safety and occupational health to raise staff's self-
awareness of health and safety. We organize regular training
on occupational safety and health for our staff, establish
health and safety training files for staff, and conduct
evaluation after training to strengthen their ability to cope
with hazards. We require special operators and special
equipment (for example, forklifts, pressure vessels, safety
valves, etc.) operators to hold valid certificates, and establish
files for their certificates to ensure the operational safety
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of staff. The Shenzhen and Vietnam factories of the Group
have formulated “Health and Safety Management Policies”
and Supervision and Inspection List respectively, covering
the health and safety requirements for key areas, such as
machinery safety, power safety, general workplace safety,
article placement safety, fire safety, chemical management
and waste management. It clarifies the inspection content,
objectives and indicators of health and safety management,
and requires the management personnel of various
departments to evaluate and record each safety indicator on
a monthly basis, and identifies the key content that needs to
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In Fiscal 2020, no work-related fatality was recorded by in
the Group, while 30 injured staff were recorded, accounting
for 0.07% of the total number of employees, and the
average number of working days lost per employee due
to work-related injuries is 30 days. After the occurrence
of work-related injury, we actively responded in strict
accordance with the “Emergency Rescue Procedure” and
the “Procedure for Handling Work-related Injuries” to ensure
proper rescue and treatment was given to the injured staff;
such work-related injuries were also identified and verified
subsequently, to ensure the salary, benefits and time of
recovery and protect their legitimate rights and interests
of the injured staff. We will also continue to strengthen
staff safety training and enhance staff's awareness of
occupational safety so as to minimize the possibility of work-
related accidents.

Occupational Health Examination

The Group understands the importance of state of health
of employees and the responsibilities and obligations that
an employer should assume. We provide our employees
with personal protective equipment and conduct routine
inspections each week on whether they wear it properly.
We conduct regular occupational and hazardous risk
assessment, covering the staff's working environment,
work approaches and all facilities within the factories. In
respect of positions with potential risks, occupational health
examination is provided for employees before they enter,
transfer or leave the positions to proactively prevent the
occurrence of occupational illness. Meanwhile, we adopt
engineering and technical measures to eliminate harmful
factors or shift system as much as possible, so as to reduce
employee exposure time. The Group conducted annual
health examination in Shenzhen and Vietnam factories
respectively, and provided welfare health examination for
employees.

Canteen Health and Safety

Our Group cares about the dining safety of all staff, and
requires all canteen staff to hold health certificates, and
adopts strict control measures to ensure that the processes
from food procurement to delivery have meet the health
standards, including regular pest control and inspection of
canteen equipment, and regular collection of employees’
opinion.
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Community Health Service Center

A community health service center is established in the
Shenzhen factories of the Group, which provides our
employees with more convenient, faster and affordable
enterprise community health service under the concept
of “always concerning about the health of enterprise
employees”. Employees are able to enjoy health precaution
and medical treatment services in the factory area, so as to
pursue a high-quality, convenient, efficient and harmonious
way of living.

Fire Safety and Contingency Measures

The Group's safety management is conducted by way of
precautions and contingency measures. There are full-
time security personnel in the factory area to provide our
employees with all-rounded safety protection to ensure
that we can respond to emergencies in a timely manner.
In order to effectively prevent fire and safety accidents, we
have prepared “The Emergency Plan on Fire Accidents and
Natural Disasters”, in which the emergency responsibility
and procedure of each department are set out clearly.
We organize fire safety knowledge seminars and drills,
elevator accidents drills and industrial accidents drills
regularly to improve the emergency response capability
of our employees. At the same time, we understand that
safety is all about precautions, so we recruit one full-time
fire brigade in both our Shenzhen and Vietnam factories
respectively to carry out daily safety inspections. Through
daily safety inspections of our fire brigade, we have been
able to minimize safety risks in a timely manner, prevent the
possibility of safety accidents, and continuously enhance our
safety management level. During Fiscal 2020, we organized
a total of 4 fire drills for all the staff, in a bid to enhance our
employees’ emergency response capability continuously.

On 9 January 2020, our Vietnam factories invited
professional fire police to our factory to carry out fire safety
precaution training and fire drills. We have been able to
strengthen employees’ safety awareness and enhance their
capability to respond to emergencies, through regular fire
safety knowledge training and practical drills.
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Anti-pandemic Work

In the beginning of 2020, the world was attacked by the
novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pneumonia. The Shenzhen
factories of our Group, one of the first batches of enterprises
who have resumed operation in Guangming District in
Shenzhen, have begun to resume operation orderly in stages
since 10 February 2020. We strictly follow the guidelines for
prevention and treatment of the pandemic issued by local
government, actively implement anti-pandemic measures,
formulate anti-pandemic plan after resumption of work, and
fulfill our commitments to customers as scheduled under
the premise of ensuring the safety and health of employees.
Although our Vietnam factories were less affected by

R AEREREE

T ZEITIE
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the pandemic, and was able to resume operation as
planned after the Lunar New Year holiday, activities for the
prevention of COVID-19 were organized speedily in order to
nip risks in the bud.

Colleagues are required to conduct body temperature check before entering factory.
Colleagues with a body temperature of 37.3 degrees or above will be arranged for inspection
and medical supervision after taking record in infirmary

Admission Check R EITEDREDR - $R37 3N LRFEEBELHELTHR ARE W ETTEREE
AGBE
Conduct regular disinfection of the public areas of factory; conduct regular large-scale
() disinfection of the whole factory every two days

Disinfection of
Factory Area

BEAFHEAHRBETEREHES  ERMREBAREEET R

Meals will be distributed with each person allocated with one set of meal and are not allowed
to sit face-to-face. Plastic boards are placed in-between dining tables to implement distance
restrictions, effectively separating employees

\ﬂﬂﬁ}

Canteen Management ~ EFHMESBARLEH - SA— - FOEHERE - LRES2 MARBIR - FICERIR

REEE # AR sEE T

ol

Pandemic Prevention [ NSRBI B AN B 1R b - BB IHE TRENEERMEER
Propaganda

PBEEE

Pandemic prevention and control knowledge, and prevention and control measures will be
posted in factory to alert employees of diseases and prevention awareness
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5 ? 5 Maintain internal and local pandemic assessment and investigation; carry out prevention and
... treatment of pandemic according to the regulations of the government

Respond to the Call AR PISEBBEENIFHE - B ¢ R MBI R T (EE15

gE%E

Make sure all personnel are wearing face masks; ensure the cleaning and disinfection
personnel are wearing full precautionary gear

Distribution of Supplies  ERFTATHABBEOSER : BRHL - AEATMMSTANEMS

BBME

[Ej . Ensure the amount of hand sanitizer and disinfectant in stock is sufficient for at least one
@ week; strictly planning the use and purchase of medical supplies (face masks, etc.)

BRATE HSREGFEL —EEHAE  BEHIBERAR(DES)EARRE

Reserving Supplies

REmE

/\ Colleagues returning from abroad are subject to quarantine for 14 days before entering
factory; anyone who has been to the infected area is subject to quarantine for 14 days

ZRWEINA KW FAEZBFRIARBRIE - 56 5B LB BRIGEFER 14X

Quarantine
{57 e ot
COVID-19 Precautionary Measures
COVID-19F7 #1245
Prohibiting Harassment or Abuse 2B
The Group is well aware that the employer must provide a work AEBERE T NBEERE— AT FEETAE
environment free of harassment, abuse or physical punishment TO%E - B ESIERN TIERIE B85

in any form and respect the dignity of employees. Apart from ETHER - BRPBRERELRGIERETHE
stipulating in our policy and system that no one shall harass A AT S E M AETHE  LIEKOE LN

and insult others physically, mentally or orally, we also sign a BREMERI  RMEEEESHMNEIEA
statement with our management staff of all levels in special EEEETHILEEASRZSEA - iE
meetings and special trainings for management personnel, to REBEME R - HHEMAERE —HBR

ensure that they understand this policy. All the staff can report B1TA  FTAEABHBIBEFIZEFHLE -
any breach of the policy through complaint procedures, and upon BRBEMNABEAE B IEENLERD ©
verification, the personnel concerned shall receive corresponding

disciplinary action.
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Communication with Employees

The Group recognizes and respects employees’ freedom of
labor negotiation. We formulate and implement the “Staff
Complaining Procedure and Process”, continue to improve the
democratic management system for employees and open a
variety of communication channels to fully stimulate employees’
enthusiasm and engagement, and continuously enhance
employees’ satisfaction by protecting their rights to know, to
participate and to supervise through two-way communication.
The Group has social platforms such as intranet, WeChat public
account and short-form video platform Apps which are open to
all staff. Our staff can post and read posts about Regina Miracle
via those social platforms. In addition, our Shenzhen and Vietnam
Factories have organized HR Managers' Open Day and Senior
Management’'s Open Day respectively. Our staff can have one-to-
one communication with the management over any doubts about
the Company's policies, work or other issues on the Open Day.

Over the past year, the Group launched two major channels,
namely the staff satisfaction survey and the staff complaining
platform, concurrently to promote communication and opinion
exchange. We focus on solving problems that the staff are most
concerned with regard to the staff satisfaction survey, in order to
achieve a more harmonious and smooth communication between
the Group and our staff. In the beginning of 2020, the Group has
introduced the WOVO staff complaint platform established by a
customer to provide our relevant customer and relevant staff with
anonymous and interactive channels for complaints and feedback,
realizing close communication among our customers, employees
and the Group so as to reduce unnecessary misunderstandings
and frictions.
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WOVO Communication Platform

WOVOEBETA

Pursuing Staff Excellence

The Group has the “Performance Appraisal Management System”
in place, to comprehensively assess the work performance of
its staff in the principle of objectivity and fairness and based
on performance targets. We peg job promotion and salary
adjustment to performance results and enhance the stimulation
effect of appraisals. Several outstanding employees are selected
and recognized with outstanding awards each year. Meanwhile,
we stress on performance-related communication, and require
department heads to arrange performance-related interviews to
timely understand the staff's difficulties at work and assist them
to improve work approaches, performance and income.

ESTESH

AEBBELERE CBEAEZEERHE) -
FEAFRENZZRA - KIBERB S5
AFHMEEINIERE  BBEANBAFEE
WAERENE - R EZO BN - WEEE
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Award Ceremony for Outstanding Employees

BEFSTHEREN
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Staff Care BTHEE

The Group advocates work-life balance, and trade unions are ARN&EEIREILEEAENFE A MIE
responsible for organizing employee activities, including festival BEASHESESTEE  BIEHAEM
celebrations or competitions to help staffs maintain a positive skt - LAEBHE TRH6E EREKRAAEE N
attitude and good spirit. RIFRIAEIBELR o

Staff interest classes started

SIE@mIMFRE . Apri-May 2019

20195 4-5°
Children’s summer classes, staff basketball competition,
open day for the family members of staff, outstanding students
recognition ceremony, VSIP football competiton . June-July 2019

REESRY - ETERLE  BTIREFAM 2019%6-7H
H BAF2EREGAE - VSIPRMLLE
Staff tug-of-war competition, staff cooking competition, August-September 2019

Mid-Autumn Festival gift giving event ... )
BTHRALE - BT SELE - HREEH 2019%8-97

Double 11 carnival, team-building activities, October-November 2019
Halloweenevent

e+ Ry - BREE - BEHED 2019%10-11 A

New Year celebration, Christmas event . December 2019-March 2020
WEGME  EREEH 201912 4-2020%3 A

Activities for Staff Care
BIRREESH
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Helping our staff develop their interests

The Group encourages staff to develop hobbies and actively
invests resources to help our staff develop their interests
and talents. We arrange interest classes and provide
teaching resources for staff to learn tea art, photography,
painting and musical instruments, creating a cultural
atmosphere that cultivates artistic sentiment. We organize
sports competitions such as football, basketball and tug-
of-war and vigorously participate in friendly matches to
promote the cohesion of our staff with the sports spirit of
“unity, loyalty, nobility, and improvement”. Various festival
events and musical galas were organized to enhance our
staff's sense of belonging and recognition to the corporate
culture.

B B T MR
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Three Consecutive Championships in
VSIP Football Competition
VSIPERE=ET

Focus on corporate culture building

The Group regularly organizes team-building activities
to allow the staff to relax after work, and to facilitate
communication and mutual understanding through the
activities, strengthen team cohesion, thereby enhancing
team collaboration capabilities and improving employee
engagement at work.

ERPEX(ER
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Team-building Activities

WEEE

Care about family harmony of the staff

The Group cares about the happiness and well-being of the
staff and their families, and makes active efforts to free
them from worries.

The healthy development of the children of our staff is of
concern to us. In July 2019, we started children summer
class in the Shenzhen factories, accompanying 207 children
from 156 families to spend the summer vacation to gain
knowledge and broaden horizon.

We attach importance to the education of the staff's
children, and set up children’s education subsidies for
long service employees and children’s education funds for
employees in Shenzhen and Vietnam factories respectively
to provide educational assistance or rewards to eligible
employees’ children every year. In Fiscal 2020, the
Shenzhen factories have distributed educational assistance
of more than RMB1 million.

In addition, we hold family open day every year and invite
family members of our staff in Shenzhen and Vietnam
factories for visits. While family members can spend time
together, they are also able to understand the working
environment of our staff and our business dynamics,
and thereby the development of the two “families” is
complementary.

R AEREREE
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Children Summer Class in

Recognition Ceremony for

Shenzhen Factories Outstanding Children of Employees

RYIBE R E BRI

o Aid staff in need
In Fiscal 2020, the Group actively organized staff to make
donation for colleagues who suffered from illnesses or
accidents in order to help them overcome difficulties, and
sent representatives to visit and pay comfort to the staff in
need, offering kindliness.

HEBEEEETILAREAS

BENE#S T

202004 F - ASEBEBREZKET R
BEERBRENEHNRZER  H
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Aid Staff in Need
EHREST
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JOINT SUCCESS WITH PARTNERS

As the world’s largest intimate wear manufacturer, the Group
leverages its leading seamless clothing technology as well as
continuous innovation of production craftsmanship, to consistently
gain recognition from international brands. Committed to our
mission of “creating first-class products, delivering industry value
and fulfilling social responsibility”, the Group strictly controls
product quality and safety, focuses on technical R&D and
innovation, and pays attention to supply chain environment and
social risks as well as obligation performance, all in a bid to deliver
mutual benefit and joint success with its partners.

Creating Values for Customers

Creating values for customers is the Group's constant pursuit.
We keep ramping up our production capacity and efficiency to
cope with the order demands from major brand partners. We
are active in promoting information-based production automation
models to boost production management and efficiency. Our
years of commitment to design and manufacturing innovation
and continuous research on high-tech innovative craftsmanship
enabled us to forge solid relations with our existing and new
brand partners that are famous around the globe. “Quality, Speed,
Innovation, Sustainability” serve as our consistent strategies to
attain steady business growth.

Total Quality Management

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions where we operate our business, such as
the “Product Quality Law of the People’'s Republic of China”, the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on Protecting Consumer
Rights and Interests”, the “Vietnam Law on Product and Goods
Quality” and the “Vietnam Law on Protection of Consumers’
Rights”. In addition, we have established our quality management
system and we keep improving it so as to fully guide and control
our product quality. We have prepared and implemented policies
and mechanisms such as the “Determination Process of Material
Plans”, the “Internal Flow and Control Procedure for Materials
and Products”, the “Product Inspection Standard” and the
“Management Standard for Product Inspection” in Shenzhen
factories, and the “"Work Inspection Guide”, the “Standard
Operation Procedure”, the “Online Inspection Procedure” and
the "“Control Procedure for Unqualified Products” in the Vietnam
factories, to provide multiple layers of assurance for the quality of
materials and finished goods throughout the production process.
Other than that, we have been active in applying for international
quality management system certification. Regina Miracle
(Shenzhen) Ltd. and Vietnam factories of Regina Miracle have
obtained the ISO 9001 quality management system certification
for their design and manufacturing processes. In Fiscal 2020, we
continuously encouraged and helped relevant employees to obtain
certificates from third-party inspection institutions, which further
intensified the penetration of quality control concepts.
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The Group has always been committed to promoting total
quality management. All staff shall participate in product quality
management. Through defect prevention and continuous
improvement, the product quality and safety check are enhanced.
The product quality and safety has been recognized by our
customers.

Risk Assessment System

The Group implements quality risk and safety review by defining
the risk assessment mechanism and standardizing the risk
assessment process. The Group has established a risk assessment
system from the stage of development to bulk production. This
includes establishing a risk assessment project team, setting
up project operation procedures and dividing risk assessment
operation rules. Moreover, the quality management department
implements the risk assessment for each product at different
stages. We strive to find potential risk points that adversely affect
the craftsmanship, quality, materials, efficiency and equipment
in the risk assessment, and take timely responsive measures
to mitigate the possible impact of modifications during or after
production.

In the R&D stage, our technology and quality control team for
bulk production participates in the feasibility assessment of
product quality and safety, to avoid possible abnormalities during
the production process. In the production stage, our R&D team
keeps tracing to ensure that the initial goal of product design is
smoothly achieved and materials are more effectively applied.
After the delivery of finished goods, should any quality and safety
issue arise, the departments and management concerned would
immediately take measures, so as to ensure that the product
issue is handled properly and customers’ rights and the Group’s
reputation are protected.
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Establish a risk assessment team and conduct pre-production risk assessment meetings to identify
and assess potential risk points and consequences in advance.

AR R R MEX R ERT RS - ARAIERATEEERARM AR -

R&D Stage
2 PR ER

Test and verify the feasibility of the craftsmanship to resolve issues in advance and make decisions
on small batch trial productions.

AABETEERMATIE - IRATRRARRE - S/ MEBHEERIRE -

Sample Inline Stage

B RInlinef &

Person in charge of risk assessment is responsible for the decision making on small batch trial
productions and following up on the implementation of risk issues after the production.

Rt EaREABRRE MEEHED - XNEHRIREZERMRRERE -

Trial Production Stage

AERER

Evaluate the stability in quality during each step of craftsmanship, provide timely abnormality
feedback to the risk assessment team, regularly monitors the implementation of risk points during
each process and summarize the follow up of risk issues upon the completion of the delivery.

FEEETEOESEEN - RESREREARRFEE - ERERS TFARBEELR - BRY

Bulk Production Stage ERKE AR MBERESN
BERER

Risk Assessment System
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Internal Quality Appraisal

The Group implements a comprehensive internal review system.
All staff participate in product quality management and establish
an internal audit team. Through a combination of monthly non-
periodic internal review and cross review, the Group seeks to
review the execution of each manufacturing process and each
part, and promote the standardization of the production process.
Based on the inadequacies identified during internal interview,
follow-up measures will be implemented in a timely manner, and
we will keep improving and optimizing the production process
to achieve continuous improvement on product quality and
appropriate update of quality data.

Quality Supervision and Inspection

The Group sets and adjusts production standards according to
the safety and quality standards of the place where it operates
and the specific requirements of partners, and sets up an
internal factory inspection system in accordance with the most
stringent customer inspection standards within the Group. For all
machineries that need to be verified, we formulate a machinery
verification process to clarify the verification frequency and
verification personnel. We also organize an internal audit team to
verify the execution of the verification process to ensure that all
machineries are operating within a reasonable error range, thereby
ensuring stable product performance.

In Fiscal 2020, we set up inspection teams for production
lines and packaging departments to find defective products in
the production process in a timely manner and promptly urge
improvements. Other than that, we actively implement the “RFT
(Right First Time) 100% " policy to improve product quality to
reduce the defect rate. We continue to improve the 100% final
inspection to ensure that the products manufactured by the
quality department are strictly inspected to prevent unqualified
products from dispatching to the market and to the consumers.

Analysis and Handling of Defective Products

Upon inspection, if the quality features of finished products do
not meet the requirements, those products will be classified
as defective products to prevent them from being mixed into
qualified products and dispatched to the market. For products
returned by consumers, we will immediately set up a special
team to investigate the reasons for return, and settle according
to our standard mechanism to protect consumers’ rights and
protect the reputation of the Group from damage. The Group's
quality management department regularly summarizes the
defective product information, discusses continuous improvement
measures with the technical team, and has dedicated personnel
to follow up and monitor the improvement results.
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Responding to Changes and Challenges

Innovation has always been the core driver for the development
of the Group. We are committed to providing our customers and
consumers with more innovative solutions, as well as developing
multi-functional products so that we deliver comfort, functionality
and value proposition of intimate wear and functional sportswear.
We have adopted emerging materials, introduced new equipment
and developed innovative technologies independently to improve
production models to meet the needs of quality and delivery
of different order types. We have a world class laboratory and
a strong R&D team, and possess a number of international
patents. Our R&D achievements have also been commended and
recognized by customers many times.
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Recognition from our Customer
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Excellent Team and Resources

The corporate culture of open-minded learning and constant
innovation keeps the Group at the forefront of the industry. Since
2018, we have been vigorously promoting the Manufacturing
Excellence (ME) model, with designated departments responsible
for planning, coordinating and promoting innovative measures to
raise efficiency so that superior manufacturing can be delivered
through craftsmanship and technical innovation. In Fiscal 2020,
in order to keep improving the capabilities of team members and
better serve our customers and consumers, we actively arranged
outstanding staff to participate in training and assessments
organized by our major customers and obtain corresponding
certifications. In addition, we always create opportunities for
outstanding staff to visit large exhibitions of our industry and
even cross-industry inside and outside China to acquire the
latest external information, broaden the horizons, and empower
themselves for continuous innovation.

EFL B F TN
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Major Customer Awarded ME Certificates for Outstanding Staff
BOBFRTEFSIEIMERE
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Intelligent Equipment

In Fiscal 2020, the Group continued to invest in new models and
equipment. For example, we put AGV (Automated Guided Vehicle)
with different functions in the pilot plant to order to achieve
intelligent logistics and improve work efficiency. We also install
intelligent hanging lines in the pilot workshop to achieve more
flexible production arrangements. In addition, we have applied
the “unit line"” production model in some of the pilot projects
to further reduce the time-consuming work-in-progress and the
defect rate, and increase the production efficiency. The application
of intelligent equipment has enabled lower skilled labors to be
replaced, and the labor force of employees can be released to
take up the post with an advanced level. Meanwhile, standardized
production ensures stability of our quality, which plays a positive
role in our long-term development and continuous satisfaction of
customer needs.

Advanced Craftsmanship

R&D and innovation of products, materials and production
technologies are important foundations on which the Group
relies on its development. Our proprietary seamless garment
technologies, composed of computer mold-making, hot-pressed
molding and seamless bonding, has shaped the core advantage
for us to gain customers and expand product categories. In Fiscal
2020, we strengthened the product promotion and in-depth
development of our important craftsmanship. We have further
developed our innovation according to customer needs and
applied them to different product models. At the same time, we
will also establish a perfect PMO (Project Management Office) to
continue to promote the development of various R&D projects,
and achieve real-time supervision and key tracking. Moreover,
we keep on supporting the R&D and innovation of our new
craftsmanship, so that our technology is at an industrial leading
level among most of the excellent production enterprises. During
the reporting period, we have developed a number of innovative
products for several world renowned brand partners with our
advanced technology. Among them, the no-wire bra products
series and the fashionable bra top series are particularly popular
among our consumers.
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Quick Response

With the changing trade conditions and market requirements, our
customers’ demand for fast turnaround of orders is increasing.
The Group has been working to expand its production capacity in
Vietnam proactively as well as developing innovative craftsmanship
during the technical R&D stage to realize automated production,
and it never ceases to update its internal process arrangement
system. As a result, we are able to plan a supply chain that
satisfies customer demand to coordinate with and adapt to the
changing industry trends. Since the second half of Fiscal 2019, we
have begun optimizing our brand customers and product portfolio
strategies to more effectively allocate R&D and production
resources. While strengthening our relationship with existing
high-quality brand partners, we will also promote an increasingly
balanced proportion of new customers.

Commitment under the Pandemic

The Group always pays attention to the needs of customers with
positive cooperation and assistance within its ability. Under the
external pressure of the global COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, many
customers were unable to visit the factory, and we maintained
proactive engagement with customers to provide timely feedback
on the production process. Meanwhile, we actively coordinate
available resources to provide customers with a range of online
services, such as Online Fitting which can quickly transform the
traditional offline fitting into an online mode. It plays an important
role when our customers are unable to arrange fitting on-site.

Protecting Legal Rights

The Group cherishes the business cooperation relationship with
our customers and strives to fulfill its commitments to protect the
legitimate rights and interests of itself and those of our customers.
We pay particular attention to our partners’ requirements for
suppliers’ environmental and social responsibility and implement
the concepts of compliant operation, environmental protection,
and transparent disclosure. We also cooperate with customers in
factory inspections proactively and meet the customer needs and
work together with them to build a sustainable industrial chain at
the same time.
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Intellectual Property and Brand Protection

The Group takes “scientific management, meticulous design,
dedicated service, proactive innovation and continuous
improvement” as its principles, and attaches great importance
to protect its own research and development results and the
information of its customers and brands. We strictly comply with
the laws and regulations of the countries and regions where we
operate our business, including “GB/T 29490-2013 Management
Standards for the Intellectual Property (‘IP') of Enterprises”,
the “Patent Law of the People’'s Republic of China”, and the
“Vietnam Law on Intellectual Property” and has formulated
and implemented IP policies and procedures such as the “IP
Commitment”, “Brand Protection System” and the “Information
Security Management System” to protect and maintain IP
information that may be involved in daily work.

We undertake not to produce and sell products that infringe IP
rights, and protect our customers’ brand creativity and commercial
interests. For similar brands with strong competitiveness, we
would implement physical and personnel isolation for production
and operation and timely destroy the materials that contain
customer information and excessive production materials printed
with the customer’s brand logo. For all production materials, we
would conduct internal code conversion to prevent unauthorized
purchases, and to ensure the security of customer information.

During the reporting period, there were no brand security
incidents such as theft, illegal entry, and information leakage.

Reasonable Marketing

Our sales and marketing personnel use strictly reviewed words
and materials with legal channels for product sales and marketing,
and are responsible for the legality, authenticity, and accuracy of
the published content. Our marketing efforts are mainly based
on R&D capabilities, as well as the ability to provide value-
added services to customers. It is forbidden to post deceptive
or misleading content to avoid adverse effects on consumers,
investors and other stakeholders.

Customer Satisfaction and Complaint Management

Our continuous research and development of high value-
added products, effective satisfaction of consumer needs and
adequate protection of legitimate rights and interests which have
significantly improved our customer satisfaction and established
a mutually beneficial and stable cooperative relationship with our
customers.
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In order to improve customers’ satisfaction, we promptly respond
to customer requests for supplier key performance indicators by
optimizing information system operations and strengthening the
communication with suppliers. We regularly accept customer
evaluations in multiple dimensions such as innovation, digitization,
efficiency, quality, and delivery time, and we are among the best
in the scoring system of multiple customers.

We have formulated and implemented policies and regulations
such as the “Customer Service and Complaint Management”,
together with various channels such as phone call and email
to timely collect and analyze customer suggestions and advice
and provide feedback accordingly. All customer complaints are
recorded by us, with statistical analysis carried out each month
and rectification plans prepared and executed, all in a bid to meet
customer demand and keep raising customer satisfaction.

Working with Suppliers

The Group’s suppliers principally provide us with fabrics, foam,
accessories and supplementary packaging materials. To ensure
product quality and safety, we have a strict supplier admission
and assessment mechanism in place, coupled with a hierarchical
management and renewal system for qualified suppliers. By
enforcing clear and fair procedures and standards, we effectively
control the potential risks arising from supply chains, and
make progress with our suppliers while ensuring the quality of
raw material. We commit to only work with suppliers that are
environmentally friendly and accountable to employees, including
but not limited to freedom of association, non-forced labor,
reasonable compensation and benefits and respect for human
rights. Meanwhile, we would keep monitoring and encouraging
the society and environment compliance performance of our
suppliers to ensure the sustainability and effectiveness of the
supply chain. We are actively pursuing friendly cooperative
relations with the suppliers, regard ourselves as a pivot in the
supply chain, and discuss new development directions with
our suppliers based on customer requirements, product market
surveys and industry trends. We would also guide them to carry
out production which meets the needs of consumers and work
together for mutual benefit.
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Supplier Admission

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions of its business operations, such as the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on Tenders and Bids”
and the “Bidding rules of the Socialist Republic of Viethnam" and
has formulated and implemented systems and processes such
as the “Production Material Supplier Management System”,
the “Procurement and Suppliers Admission System and Work
Guidelines”, the “Business Partner Management Procedures”
and the “Supplier Application and Changing Process”, under
which potential suppliers shall undergo comprehensive admission
assessment in relation to operational qualification, product quality
and price, innovation capability, environmental and social risks
and integrated management. We require sample products from
suppliers and test such samples to ensure that they meet our
requirement on product quality. We check the documentation of
such sample products, such as the quality inspection report, the
Oeko-tex Standard 100 Certificate, to ensure that the products
comply with the qualification standards of the place of operation,
those of the customers and the Group.

In Fiscal 2020, the Group continues to implement the supply chain
localization strategy, focusing on expanding local suppliers in
production bases, and promoting the migration of existing supplier
partner capacity to our production bases, thereby reducing
procurement risks and further consolidating and strengthening
the competitive advantage of the supply chain. In addition, we
have made substantial integration with a number of cooperating
suppliers by reducing categories, reducing development materials,
and increasing the purchase of single category materials. With the
optimization of the number of suppliers and their raw products,
our product quality will become more consistent.

Number of suppliers

decreased by 10%
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Amount of newly
developed materials

decreased by 20%
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Supplier Management Achievements for Fiscal 2020
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Supplier Supervision

The procurement department of our Group regularly organizes
the departments for R&D and quality management to assess the
suppliers on a monthly and quarterly basis. Suppliers are scored
in terms of quality, delivery punctuality, quantity reliability, service
performance and R&D capability, which will be collated to form
a supplier assessment report. Based on the score, we reward
excellent suppliers by strategically allocating more orders to them,
whereas average performers will be placed under guidance and
supervision and the unqualified ones will be eliminated. In Fiscal
2020, we newly introduced the LIMS supplier management
system, which requires all suppliers to regularly provide specified
information and accept inspections in the system to further
improve our supplier monitoring and evaluation system.

Building a Clean Supply Chain

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions of its operations, such as the “Company
Law of the People’'s Republic of China”, the “Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’'s Republic of China”, the “Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China"”, the
“Interim Provisions on Prohibiting Commercial Bribery” and the
“Anti-Corruption Law of the Socialist Republic of Viethnam” and
has formulated and implemented the “Anti-Corruption and Anti-
Bribery Control Procedure”. With “law-abiding, honesty and
quality service"” as its core, the Group has adopted the principle
of prevention and supervision to guard against bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering. The “Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery
Control Procedure” applies to each economic activity, and the
management process of people, money and goods within the
Group, as well as all partners who have business dealings with
the Group. We work to sign the “Anti-Bribery/Anti-Corruption
Commitment Letter” with the above positions and units to ensure
the governance of the commercial bribery commitment system,
and consciously resist all forms of corruption.
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authority

.' Anti-corruption supervisory

REBHNEEEERE

* The Group has formed its discipline

inspection team as the supervisory
body in charge of operations
compliance and anti-corruption, to
exercise the duties of discipline
inspection and supervision
according to law, supervise and
manage the clean practice of
those who work at key positions
and sections. The team is also
responsible for the publicity and
education of clean conduct among
staff members, to boost their
alertness to corruption incidents.
These efforts aim to cultivate

a good ethos of anti-corruption
throughout the Group, to protect
the good image of Regina Miracle.
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Report channels and
handling measures
® RESEREELRE

The Group has also formulated the
“Staff Complaint and Reporting
Procedure”, which encourages
employees and business partners
to report and disclose corruption
behaviors through channels such as
mailbox, email and telephone, and
maintain strict confidence during
the processing of accusations and
investigations.
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e |f the discipline inspection team

found out any misconduct of

the alleged personnel upon
investigation, the management will
impose on the personnel involved
with public notification, demotion
and termination of labor contract.
Staff members who breach the law
would be handed over to public
security authorities.
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Anti-corruption Measures
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Price control of imported
materials

YIRISENEREE

The imported materials of the
Group need to be approved by
four departments, namely R&D,
Strategic Procurement, Executive
Procurement, and Sales. Any
individual or team is not allowed
to make decision alone to avoid
corruption.
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Merchandising Department strictly
monitors the prices of all materials,
analyzes the material prices every
quarter, and updates the reasonable
price range in a timely manner.

Any increase or decrease of
purchasing price must be confirmed
by Merchandising Department.
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During the reporting period, there was no concluded corruption
litigation against the Group or launched by its staff members.
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HARMONIOUS COEXISTENCE WITH THE
ENVIRONMENT

The Group remains committed to the new industrialization
drive characteristic of high input in science and technology, low
resource consumption and good environmental and economic
benefits, striving to build a “resource-saving and environment-
friendly"” corporate brand. We resolutely abide by the
environmental protection laws and regulations in the countries
and regions where we operate, continue to optimize production
equipment and processes, actively carry out cleaner production,
and develop circular economy. We also accept environmental
inspection, supervision and management, solidly work on
the publicity of our corporate environmental information, and
consciously accept supervision from the public and media. We
effectively applied environmental protection in the development,
design, manufacturing, packaging, use and service of new
products. It not only ensures that we can make profits on the
basis of meeting consumer demands, but also achieve the goal
of a balanced development among the social, economic and
ecological environment. Meanwhile, we focus on environmental
education and continue to strengthen the environmental
protection awareness and social responsibility of all employees to
prevent pollution incidents and create a pleasant and harmonious
environment.

In Fiscal 2020, the Group invested significant resources in material
innovation. In addition to ensuring the advancement of raw
materials, we also take into account product comfortability and
environmental friendliness. As of the reporting date, Shenzhen
factory under the Group have passed the ISO14001 environmental
management system certification. Among them, Regina Miracle
Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. also passed the ISO50001
energy management system certification, the FSC - Forest
Stewardship Council certification, green factory certification,
organic cotton certification and was awarded the CarbonCare®
Label, whereas Regina Miracle International (Vietnam) Co.,
Ltd. was also awarded the Higg Index certificate as well as the
LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) silver
certification for some of its buildings and it plans to apply for more
green building certifications in the coming year.
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FSC - Forest
Stewardship Council,
FSC-HME TR
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In December 2019, the
Shenzhen factories
passed the SGS annual
supervision and audit, and
the FSC certificate contin-
ues to be valid.
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Green Factory
Certification
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In 2019, the Shenzhen
factories established a
green factory promoting
corporate management
and established green
factory management and
evaluation mechanisms.

20194 = Y1 T8 Bk 32

TRHEE BRI U4
BIREENZTHS -

Higg Index
Certification
Higg Index 32 :&

Vietnam factories received
the Higg Index environ-
mental certification for
two consecutive years in
2018 and 2019.

R TR 20184M2019
FEEMFESHIgg Index
RIRRE ©

4

CarbonCare® Label
CarbonCare®
Label X 78 212 %

In 2019, the Shenzhen
factories obtained the
CarbonCare® Label in rec-
ognition of the Company's
contribution to low-carbon
emissions reduction and
sustainable development.

LEED Silver
Certification
LEED $R#%

Certain buildings of the
Vietnam factories attained
the LEED (Leadership in

Energy and Environmental
Design) silver certifica-
tion; factory E is applying
for a LEED certificate.

Certain green certifications of Regina Miracle
EV RO EERE

FEERE2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

M@t

Organic Cotton
Certification

BRIBRE

In 2019, the Shenzhen
factories obtained the
ETA organic cotton certifi-
cation with environmen-
tally friendly vegetable oil
composition of more than
25%, effectively reducing

the impact on the envi-
ronment.
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R A EREREE

Energy Consumption and Carbon Emissions
Management

The Group attaches great importance to the management of
energy conservation and emissions reduction and commits to
adopt advanced scientific technology and equipment to save
natural resources and increase energy efficiency. We strictly
abide by the laws and regulations of the countries and regions
where we operate, such as the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Energy Conservation”, the “Management Measures
for Industrial Energy Conservation”, the “Law of the People's
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution”, the “Integrated Emission Standard of Air Pollutants”,
the “Emission Standard of Air Pollutions for Boiler”, the “Ambient
Air Quality Standards”, the “Regulations of Guangdong Province
on Conserving Energy”, the “Environmental Protection Law
of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam” and the “Environmental
Quality Standard of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam”, and
has formulated and implemented policies and systems such
as the "Energy Policy”, the “"Management System for Energy
Conservation and Environmental Protection” and the "Exhaust
Management System”. Furthermore, the Group conscientiously
implements the energy policy of “energy conservation, emissions
reduction, green and environmental protection” to reduce energy
consumption, improve energy efficiency, meet the auditing
requirements set by the government, customers and third parties,
and achieve sustainable development.

REFEERTR BE L E I

REBERMEABEEIRIE - AGRFEAL
EORBRMRRE  HOBRER 125
BERFA R o HFIBREERE (PEARKLM
BIEHBEIRE) (TR EREEIEHE) (P EA
RIAMBARRGATGE) CRRISR YA
HEE %) CRIBERRISRMPIRE) CGRIE
EREERE) (ERABOLRIEH) (B
HEIEHMBERFRER) (BRtEEH
HMBIRREERE) FELMERRMIM
EHDERER - BIELE N CBEIRBUER) (&
REREREEHE) (BEREEHE) FBEK
HIE - REEMIERE BB e RR]
HIBEIRTT & - IARREREIRIBRE - IR EEIRA
AME - RHRBRF TP B=78BKE
Ko BRAFERR -

We comply with energy conservation laws, regulations and standards, improve energy
conservation management systems, formulate energy conservation goals and policies, and
implement target responsibilities; given the constraint of the aggregate global energy capacity and
the trend of global warming, sustainable development stands as our inevitable solution.

BRIt WEERBREME:

We work to reduce energy consumption and man-made carbon dioxide emissions, increase
energy efficiency, greening and implement carbon sinks to maintain the balance of our ecological

FHRAEIRBRE - IRSEURFIABCE - HBINAE - BHEIRKE B AR ZEIERRBER - SAMEIS AT A REIR

Ener . e s
S etion RF B ERAEE - 2R - HTE
" 2IREERBEH R FRIEECBEERAAMNME  AHFEERERMUANFRIE o
P RE
environment and mitigate the energy climate crisis of mankind.
Emissions
Re'i'};;;‘“ 5 - B AL RERAM -
)

Vv
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Green

R AEREREE

We implement ecological civilization and environmental education on resources, stress on
harmonious coexistence with nature, promote the education system by incorporating energy
conservation, low carbon and green development into our core value, and enhance the code of
conduct and sense of responsibility for energy conservation and emissions reduction of all staff.

B ATE RIBRHE - RAEA AT - IEHEER  SeERMALTRLER

Be

NV

'

Environmental

effectively and reasonably.

BEEHERR  RAZ BRI AREBMEE

=z b

o

We adopt measures that are technically feasible, economically reasonable as well as
environmentally and socially acceptable, to reduce energy consumption, losses and pollutant
emissions and stop wastage in all aspects from production to consumption and utilize energy

REURAT ERTT - B LRIE - REME S AR NG - HAEERIEE NS EREIEELTER -

Protection
R

Energy Policy
BEIR 75 &

During the construction stage of our Vietnam factories, we
incorporated energy conservation and emissions reduction
functions into our design. Energy conservation measures have
been embedded in lighting, air conditioning, air ventilation system,
boiler system, air compressor system and building insulation,
which laid the hardware foundation for achieving economic and
environmental benefits.

We adopt customer demands as our basis and continue to
strengthen our investment in energy conservation and emission
reduction as well as technological transformation. We have
made corresponding requirements for all energy conservation
and environmental protection-related projects of the factory
and subdivided them to various departments. For example, the
general logistics department is responsible for conducting regular
promotion, supervision, inspection and improvement on energy
conservation and environmental protection; the control of light
switches is managed by area and different temperature is set for
air conditioners in different workshops to ensure the rational use
of various resources and energy of the Company.

IMABRAZRBENR - HIIDRE - REBBCORHBEENR

FERL AR [ S AR PR B - BAPIEC B ETRERL
BEIBEM AT PIRORRGT R - FERRAA ~ =3 -
HMERL - WEFRL  EEERGIANEE
RAZHTHEIGRATEEEE - AERKEE
R BB e M A RN E B E T R AL -

BMARPFRAER - 3FE MRN8 R B
TAMBMBEE N E - FKAPTE THATA BE
BEIRRAEREEYIE B 1 T AR E SR AR B
FEEBPT - BB AR E T HRREEE
RREE - BEE  RERKSIE: BXH
FEZ S REER  TRBEFEAZETR
BERE - LBERAGBSEER - g2RNE
BEA -
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In Fiscal 2020, we invested in the installation of modern
equipment such as forklift robots and automated forklifts
in Vietnam factories to increase productivity while reducing
emissions during operations. We also installed a preshrinking
condensate water recovery device in Shenzhen factories for boiler
heating to reduce the cost of soft water treatment and reduce
power consumption. In addition, we have added insulation layers
to the ltalian hot-press molding machine to reduce heat loss and
achieve the objective of reducing energy consumption.

The temperature of condensate water is 95°C,
which is 20°C higher than that of tap water. By
installing a preshrinking condensate water
recovery device, the condensate water can be
directly recovered to the boiler and the boiler does
not need to reheat tap water, thereby reducing the
electrical consumption of the boiler.

REKEGEERIS T ERERKEE20C - BRZ
%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ*@ﬂ&%ﬁ o] LA % 5k B 12 [ U B 68
5 igfg?ﬁ/_ﬁ%EE%ﬂEEﬂzMu?& TR A B4R

202084 4F - RIEMERERERETER
WA TEEPHEFHRARME - ERNEE
KRR D TIERTHOBERIE © T IR
R E LR FaAE < FUKEEE - #if
TEINEAGER - LAUR D EUKEE AR AN R [ R E
RE  UESN - AP BRI 20 B TE AU M 2 IR
IRRRE - U RIEFR - BIRANREEFEN
BHY -

Preshrinking
Condensate Water
Recovery Device

8 4872wk K

BN EE

The hot-press molding machine usually
remains in operation to ensure production

Insulation Layers of
the Hot-press Molding
Machine

s S

efficiency. By adding insulating layers, the
surface temperature of the hot pressing
plate is reduced from 106°C to 65°C,
successfully reducing heat loss.

¢ BT E RIS - R ENCE -
Rg BRAEENEEE 5B EERE S
106 C R Z65C » FLThH A MRIBIE o

Energy Conservation and Emissions Reduction by Shenzhen Factories in Fiscal 2020
20205 F R Y BB A BT RE R BEIT B

In the future, we will continue to promote the deepening of our
management of energy consumption and carbon emissions with
our goal of giving priority to the use of renewable energy. We plan
to engage a professional third party to conduct a feasibility survey
on renewable energy for all factories, and implement a renewable
energy power generation project based on the survey results,
such as installing a solar energy system to increase the utilization
rate of renewable energy.

AA - BRABAELERATBLERLRSA
13 AR R N E IR RO
RE - B BB R ERE =T U2 HERE
BT BRI TIHEE  REHEH
REMAIBARREELIR - MLEBIEE
RESRE - RR A BERROFAEX -

122 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # 2 {REIRR(IZR)ER QR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Water Resources and Sewage Treatment

The Group attaches great importance to water resources
protection and sewage treatment, and all departments,
workshops and canteens implement the policy of water
conservation. We strictly abide by the laws and regulations of
the countries and regions where we operate, such as the “Law
of the People’'s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Water Pollution”, the “Water Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, the “Administrative Measures for the Licensing of
Discharging Urban Sewage into the Drainage Network”, the
“"Water Resources Law of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam” and
the “Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standards”. The emission
and treatment of wastewater generated from the cleaning of
mold and machine equipment is in line with the Grade 2 standard
of "DB44/26-2001 Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants”,
the “Industrial Air Emission Standards of Vietnam” and the
"Wastewater Standard of Vietnam”. Policies and systems, such as
the “"Wastewater Management Policy” have also been formulated
and implemented to strengthen the scientific management of
water use and the operational management of pollution treatment
equipment. We have set up a water conservation management
team to enhance employees’ awareness of water conservation
by thoroughly promoting water conservation policies and regularly
coordinate the effectiveness of water conservation, and recognise
and reward groups and individuals who delivered results in
water conservation benefits and water conservation works. Our
supply of water for production and operation comes from the
government, and there was no interruption of supply or difficulty
in obtaining other water sources during the reporting period.

In Fiscal 2020, we built a new wastewater treatment plant in
the Vietnam factory area. The treated wastewater, of which the
water quality meets the requirements of Vietnam's environmental
protection class A discharge and the reuse standards “QCVN
40/2011/BTNMT", will be reused in the production process and
achieve the purpose of water recycling and reuse. Meanwhile,
the concept of saving water and improving efficiency is fully
implemented through a variety of measures to bolster water
efficiency which are small but significant, such as replacing
ordinary faucets with low-flow faucets, collecting rainwater for
watering trees and flowers. The aforementioned preshrinking
condensate water recovery device installed in the Shenzhen
factory area, which directly recovers the condensate water into
the central hot water tank and used for heating for the electric
boiler. To a certain extent, it replaces make-up water with
tap water, thereby saving water and energy, avoiding certain
wastewater consumption during the treatment of soft water. We
will also install shower-type water-saving nozzles for all faucets
in the factory to reduce the flow of water every time it is used to
reduce the overall water consumption in the factory.

R AEREREE

IKERK5KER
REBERKERREIGTKEETE &
#BPY - EM - ERHEREOMKOTEH -
BB ERE (PEARKAMBKOSREE
) (R EARKMBIKER) GREEIKBEABE
KERFAIERWE) (Bt g E AN
IKEIRE) Ok A EIRE) HELMAE
BR MM REERER - STEIFEE RN
A R E £ R EERKIR (DB44/26-20017K)5
RMPEIRIE) — AR - (BRI TERARBE
MARAE) R BEKBIZIREE) #ETT PR R
2 BIEL B (BEKERSIE) SHER K
JE - hns& KRB IR 815 28R 1B AR A Y
BITEIR - WAL AKER/NE - R
ABBE#AKBERILE B &K AKX
B REETIMEKE B - WHEKKE
FNER7K T VERP fif H pAR BO 2 RE AN B A 055
FAEERE o TAPIH LA E MK R B BT
MR - SRR A LR E H S E KRR
ER R 2 o

202084 5F - T APIAE M AR [ T 325 K R IE
uh o R IE R REKOKE E B B IRIRARBE
AN E AZRZE(CQCVN 40/2011/BTNMT)) Y
2 BWEENAREETLFS  ZEFK
BEREREANBR - R - RFRIMZIA
B E K - I K EESE R R
EREHI/KEESE - O U ERI/K AR =
% PR REBEKREBIRR o
TMERIIRR R LR FadE 2 BKEIERE -
RBKEREWRE hRPOKES - HERE
MEVER - —ERELERET B AKHEK
HEME R SR RETRERUCR » % T BUKERIE
R BEOBRE - RPIERREAMBR
IKREBAR RO R B EIKELE - R BIRE A
R HARE - UEEZHAFEKE
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Electric boiler

TRE
Make-up water with

B ARk FK for boiler
(20¢c) (807¢)
B 1E Rk
(80¢c)

Soft water Central hot

treatment device water tank

BUKERIE RS HRRFIKFE

y

Preshrinking machine
SRR

tap water (20 C) Make-up water

Condensate
water
(957¢)
R
(957¢)

Reduce make-up water with tap water: after installing the con-
densate water recovery device, condensate water recovery will au-
tomatically move to the boiler, saving tap water consumption.

W BRAKFK : ZELEKBIBEER LERKEEE)EE &
HERKAE -

Reduce soft water treatment cost: certain amount of industrial
salt will be consumed during the water softening process. After the
salt is absorbed, a certain amount of wastewater is generated
during the flushing process, which generally accounts for 1%~5%

of the total water production.

BOBOKBERA | AEKBEBIET FEERTEMTXE
& EITRRRNBIZPEE —FENEK —RIGBEKEN 1%~5% -

Actions to Save Water and Improve Efficiency in Shenzhen Factory in Fiscal 2020

202081 S 3R B B B KR AT BY

Waste Treatment

The Group disposes of wastes in the principle of reduction, reuse
and recycling. We strictly abide by the laws and regulations
of the countries and regions where we operate, such as the
“Rules of Guangdong Province on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste"”, the “Guidelines for
Preparing Management Plans for Hazardous Waste Production
Units”, the “Rules of People’'s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste”,
the “Hazardous Waste Management System of Vietham" and the
“Solid Waste Management System of Vietnam". Our policies and
systems, such as the “Management System for EHS Waste”,
the “Environmental Protection Policy” and the “Chemical Safety
Policy” have been formulated and implemented to guide and
standardize the classification and treatment process of waste,
avoid waste of resources, prevent the risk of hazardous waste
pollution and control the negative impact on the environment.

R IRIE

AEBERAIRE - BAE - BERINRA
RERERY - RMEBERE(EREERRE
WSFRRENRGD) (ERBEMEEELE
B EIBERERE) (CPEARKMBEE Y
BFRREAE) (MR EARERSE)
CHum Bl R A R E TR HE) FE L ERZRAM
WEEPERER - HIELEHE CEHSEME
BHIE) (RRBE) (L2RET2HEK) FHK
WRHIE - HEEEM S BMEIE RS
EEIMRE  BeERRE MEAZTER
YRR - EHEREEENEERE
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Our waste mainly includes defective goods, production waste,
recyclable waste, domestic waste and a small amount of
hazardous waste. Non-hazardous waste will be collected in
categories, the recyclable part of which will be handed over to
qualified resource regeneration companies for recycle and reuse
and the unrecyclable part will be stored together and then cleared
and treated collectively by municipal environmental and hygiene
services. Hazardous waste will be collected in categories and
then handed over to professional hazardous waste treatment
companies for harmless disposal. Improper disposal must be
eliminated so as not to cause pollution and harm.

Besides reducing environmental pollution by proper treatment
of different types of wastes, we also work on the source of
the issue, with a variety of measures to continuously improve
the efficiency and economic benefits of materials and reduce
waste emission. In Fiscal 2020, we reduced the production of
waste through returning paper cores and plastic cutting boards
to suppliers, reusing waste paper and recycling waste fabrics in
Vietnam factories. Meanwhile, we recycle excess materials by
reprocessing instead of burning waste fabrics, which reduces
waste incineration by 15.8% compared with 2019. In the future,
with the goal of using more than 90% of recycled raw materials
and not sending any useful production materials to landfill, we
will continue to promote various measures to reduce waste of
resources and production of waste.

R AEREREE

BMEZRYIZEERIR M - EERER -
AEREEREY) - BRNRIAR L EEEER
o HNEEERY - RFETHIRESE
HAp D XAEEENERBER
BIENRBAA - AR E AR Bl &
B B ATBREREETEERE - &
REZERY BRI BREEIHEERN
ERERYEREAREITESCREE  HE8
TEREMERSRMBESE

HAPIMIRSAIER - BT ERERE TR
BEEVARRIRFISRIN - BBZERE R
BIRSYEHE BB N E e - D BER
WEOTEDL © 20208 F - T AT B e R R 25
MR EAHER - BRIEIRREGHE
7 BRSNS R
PEMELE  RF - RPIEKHEZRE
WL SRR B - E2019F Hi
WA RI IR 15.8% o KRR - HPILAFIA
90% A L BRREL - A EEEE(A AT F R
EEPHRER  EBEMERRRE R
PERRE - RIEERMESL -
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Return paper cores
@ to suppliers
SR E ARG IER

Return used cardboard, cardboard box
and paper core in the cutting board to
suppliers for recycling
M FBRIRRAR © 4RAE - BRF AR
AR [ 45 fH4 R 72 12 W5 81

Paper core recycled:

ERESER :
19,540 kg F 3=

Reuse waste paper

BEAER

Return plastic cutting
“ boards to suppliers

R EIARIR B 4G L FE

Collect used plastic cutting boards and
return to suppliers for recycling
{55 P 38 ) 2B L) B Al A B AR 2R

AR O 45 1 FE 7 (BRI
Cutting board recycled:
EWTEIRES :

830 kg T

Collect used paper and return to
the warehouse for recycling
HeH{55 P 38 ) R A LA B B 3R
ZOER E R YA A
Waste paper recycled:

B ERESE :
10,980 kg T

@ Recycle waste fabrics

> [ E R A

Turn incineration to recycling excess fabric
1% Z BRI R I R S R
BB A

Waste fabric recycled:

EREHREER :
191,180 kg T %

Actions to Optimize Materials Efficiency in Vietnam Factories in Fiscal 2020

202081 F i F R B Y RHE AR B ELITE

Environmental Protection and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to promoting the sustainable
development of corporate economy and society by minimizing
the impacts on the natural environment by its production and
operation activities, in a bid to protect the existing environment
and leave abundant social resources and beautiful earth
scenery for future generations. We undertake to maintain our
environmental credit and continue to strengthen environmental
management and resolutely resist behaviors that may have a
material adverse impact on the environment while pursuing
business development throughout our production and operation.
We firmly develop environmental awareness, carry out the
promotion of environmental education, advocate scientific
development concept and strengthen corporate culture, earnestly
shouldering the social responsibility for environmental protection.

RERERXRAER
AEBEBNNEBELERKL AR &R/IME
HAARBOZEREIEELERLEN
AREER  AREERRE  KTHRE
RETEENHEERMELT IR
BIAEETRRER  REELERBR
o EEREB RO R E 8RR
B BRANGHREELEAAEMPE
178 - BAPFEBYRERER - RARR
RREMGHE @ BENBERES - MRE
EXtER VERRERFEFRENLEE
fEo
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The Group's impact on the environment mainly occurs during
the process of transportation, cargo handling, cutting, sewing,
transfer printing, packaging, maintenance, cooking and use of
fuel. We post environmental labels to remind employees of
energy conservation and emissions reduction, creating a positive
atmosphere for environmental protection in the work that needs
only little effort. We regularly maintain and repair office supplies
to extend their service life and avoid unnecessary wastage. We
provide various training and “Clear Your Plate” campaign to boost
our employees’ perception of green concept. We encourage
employees to propose environmentally-friendly ideas and reward
the person or department that have put forward viable solutions,
in an effort to enhance their environmental interaction and
participation. In our Vietnam factories, we have incorporated
greening into the construction plan, and continuously amplify the
greening effect of our office area and production area through
greening maintenance, where the greening areas of all factories
have expanded to 20%. In addition, we actively participate in
environmental improvement activities in the locality, such as tree
planting, garbage collection, promotion of the prevention of plastic
waste and environmental-themed painting.

R AEREREE

SEHRENFETIBZVLEARBIAL &
MEIRE - BT - Y B BE %
&~ 26 MEHERETRF - BMBBRS
RIRIZH  IRREB IR ERF Y
FEERIFNERRAE  RMOBATHRE
HERARR  EREFEAS® @ BETY
ZEHRE - RMBRRESEEIIR BT
) |ZEE 0 B THEBESMNARN
BMmASE 8 TIRERRAELHEET
TR R D ASEBPIEITEERE) - AR
BIRIRRESFLHEE - FEHERE - &
PSR L MARBRARE - BB CRETE
HEMRARENEERBOFBR - BEE
REMELEREE20% ° B » BFEHS
IFTEH IR BN E RS - iER - Wikas

% EEMEHRAE  RETEEES -

Tree Planting in VSIP Industrial Zone Participated by Employees of Our Vietham Factories
BEEREEIZMVSIPTXEERIH
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Environmental KPls RIBFARERER

In Fiscal 2020, the Group's environmental KPIs were derived from 202081 F - AEEREBRESIEZRRE
the statistical conversion of relevant environmental data generated 20194 H1HZ2020F3A31 HEER A
from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020, which covers the production RRYBESHMESTY  BERESBERY
and non-production areas of our Shenzhen factories and Vietnam Ko e (AR - BRER ~ CIRR) I EMIELE
factories (A, B and C factory). The specific performance is as ERi o ABRBMT :

follows:

Environmental KPls

RIGFARERER
Fiscal 2020
Emissions/
KPls consumption
202081 F
ERER 5 BB HAER
Nitrogen oxides emissions Kilogram 480.1
AR E F=
Sulfur oxide emissions Kilogram 1.6
AELYHHRE F=
Particulate matter Kilogram 31.2
E|RY F=
Total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1+Scope 2) Tonne COze 182,766.8
BERBEHNE (SBE1+8E2) Wo—E{tREE
Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) Tonne CO.e 3,1561.5
RERREYEE (HBE1) WE—SE(CIRE S
Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) Tonne CO.e 179,615.3
REREYENE (HBE2) WE—SE(CIRE S
Total hazardous waste produced Tonne 417.3
FEBREYRELSR 7}
By hazardous waste category
RIE R ER YR
Waste batteries produced (lead batteries, cadmium and
nickel batteries, mercury oxide batteries) Tonne 0.02
BEEEMEES(EAESM - WIEEM - |REM) 148
Other hazardous waste produced (containers contaminated
with hazardous substances, etc.) Tonne 417.3
HipEEEENELS(REEMETANTHRS) A
By management method
BT =
Demolition and chemical treatment Tonne 0.02
WAL 2R IR
Incineration (without energy recovery) Tonne 417.3
RALCRBREORBE) Mg

128 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

HE PR (ZR)BRD R



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environmental KPIs

R AEREREE

RIZFABERIER
Fiscal 2020
Emissions/
KPls consumption
202051
EEER HEHEREE
Non-hazardous waste produced Tonne 13,201.3
BEEZEYELES Mg
By waste category Tonne
IR EE YRS
General office waste produced Tonne 505.6
—MIMAEEYEES e
Food waste produced Tonne 215.9
BtphREEE e
Waste packaging plastic bags produced Tonne 300.5
BEORBHRELS A
Waste packaging cardboard boxes produced Tonne 1,783.8
BEORAMEES A
Non-hazardous production waste produced Tonne 7,998.7
BELEBRNELAS WA
Other non-hazardous waste produced
(metal, wood, textiles, etc.) Tonne 2,396.8
HEEREnEL= (28 AWM SiERE) A
By management method 6
BB T =,
Recycling Tonne 6,128.1
=ty e
Landfilling Tonne 505.6
HiE A
Other recovery (including energy recovery) Tonne 215.9
Hi B4 (RIEERBE) 198
Incineration (without energy recovery) Tonne 6,351.8
RALCRBRERBE) A
Total energy consumption ‘000 kWh 7 220,230.4
RRBFKEE FEF R
Total energy intensity ‘000 kWh/HK$’000 8 0.03
RREERE FETEE BETT
Non-renewable fuel (direct) consumption ‘000 kWh 12,301.8
TABERR(EE)EE FEF R
Liquefied petroleum gas consumption ‘000 kWh 1,554.2
BILAMEES FEF R
Diesel consumption ‘000 kWh 10,111.6
semEs TFETF ELF
Petrol consumption ‘000 kWh 636.0
UMFEE TFETF ELF
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KPls

EREAE

Purchased energy (indirect) consumption

BEAER(BE EE
Electricity consumption

BENRE

Total water consumption

BEEKE

Environmental KPIs

BERRERER

"000 kWh
TET R
'000 kWh

FHET R

Cubic metre

SJ5 K

Cubic metre/

Total water consumption intensity HK$’000
BIEXKEE MK BT
Municipal supplied water consumption Cubic metre
BTk E LR
Reclaimed water consumption Cubic metre
REAKE STk
Total packaging materials consumption Tonne
BEMHBERE M
Packaging plastic bags consumption Tonne
BEPHRERE A
Packaging cardboard boxes consumption Tonne
BEGREERE g
3 Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) come from the combustion of fuel 3

130

(liquefied petroleum gas, diesel) in stationary sources and the combustion
of fuel (petrol, diesel) from our business vehicles.

Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) come from the consumption of
purchased electricity. According to “Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” (“Appendix 2") of “How to prepare an ESG
Report?” updated by the Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited
in March 2020, the greenhouse gas emission factors of our Vietnam
factories refer to the IGES List of Grid Emission Factors published by the
Institute of Global Environmental Strategies.

The scope of disclosure of hazardous waste of Shenzhen factories is
defined according to the “Directory of National Hazardous Waste"” (2016
edition) (¢ Bl 5 /& % B& ¥ % 8% ) (2016 i)z ) ) published by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of the People’'s Republic of China, while the
scope of disclosure of hazardous waste of Vietnam factories is defined
according to the “Circular No.36/2015/TT-BTNMT" (2015 edition)
published by the Ministry of Natural Resources and Environment of
Vietnam.

The management methods of non-hazardous waste are specified in
accordance with the waste treatment methods in Appendix 2 of the Stock
Exchange.

Fiscal 2020
Emissions/
consumption
202051
BEHEFEE
207,928.7

207,928.7

1,476,270.0

8 0.2
1,475,482.0

788.0

6,965.2
731.9

6,233.3

REREDNE (HE1) %8 BRI (&
feBimE ~ 50m)RkE - RAKEEMAOMH O
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7 Energy heating value coefficient are determined under the “Guidelines
for Accounting Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions in
Enterprises in Other Industries (Trial)” (( TEE b7 28 =R HHK
%E R REER (577))) of the National Development and Reform
Commission of the People’s Republic of China.

8 The energy consumption intensity and total water consumption intensity
are calculated based on the operating income during the Reporting Period.

As our new factories commence operations, we will expand
the scope of disclosure of environmental KPIs year-by-year, in
a bid to reflect our actual business operations and promote our
environmental management.
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R A EREREE

COMMON PROSPERITY WITH COMMUNITIES

The Group performs its social responsibility as a corporate citizen
and cares for disadvantaged groups. Enthusiastic about charitable
causes, it works towards creating co-development, harmony
and sharing to propel the sustainable development of local
communities. Through doing volunteer work, donating money and
supplies, and other means, the Group has continuously invested
resources to benefit the society and its development, which
brings positivity to the community.

Caring for Student Growth

The Group cares for the growth and future of students from
the local community. For many years, we provided assistance
to children in terms of living needs and education needs within
our capacities, extending a helping hand to the all-rounded
development of children. In Fiscal 2020, the Group made
donations to Yulv Elementary School, which is in the community
where its Shenzhen factories are located, for the fourth
consecutive year, and supported the cultivation of students’
interest through providing flutes, clarinets, saxophones and other
musical instruments for the school. In addition, as the president
unit of Shenzhen Guangming New District Charity Association,
the Group participated in the Shuguang Education Funding Activity
for the fifth consecutive year and successfully provided financial
aid for 10 students. Since 2015 to date, we have donated around
RMB1.1 million in financial aid.
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Donation to Yulv Elementary School
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Caring for Disadvantaged Groups

The Group pays attention to the disadvantaged groups both
within and outside the Group. Every year, we actively engage
in “Guangdong Poverty Alleviation Day"” at the call of Shenzhen
Guangming New District Charity Association, working within its
ability to help disadvantaged groups to meet their basic needs
as well as demand for medical service, employment and social
engagement, and encouraging people from poverty alleviation
authorities and people from all walks of life to have deeper
engagement in poverty-stricken areas. In addition, we visit
families in need in Yulv Village and give consolation money during
the Spring Festival annually, sending blessings to the families in
need in the name of the Group.

Enthusiasm in Public Welfare

The Group is enthusiastic about public welfare and actively
participates in charities through responding to the call from local
charity organizations to make its contribution to charitable causes.
On 14 August 2019, Regina Miracle International (Vietnam)
Limited formally established a volunteer group. With the spirit
of “dedication, friendship, mutual assistance and progress”, we
carried out volunteer services in an organized and disciplined
manner. The establishment of the volunteer organization signifies
that we will continue to move forward along the path of charity
and implement our corporate social responsibility to the end,
making greater contribution to the social development of Vietnam
and the charitable causes of Haiphong City. In addition, we
donated over 11,000 pieces of brand-new clothes to poverty-
stricken areas through the Clothes Donation Activity in 2019
by the Shenzhen Guangming New District Charity Association,
helping local people in need and supporting the poverty-stricken
mountainous areas.
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R A EREREE

Overcome the Pandemic Together

The pandemic is ruthless but there is love on earth. We will fight
against the pandemic and overcome difficulties together. Since
the outbreak of COVID-19, we have been paying close attention
to the progress of the pandemic. On the one hand, we actively
support and cooperate with government’s actions with a high
sense of social responsibility, and be well prepared in various
pandemic prevention and control within the Company. On the
other hand, we actively fulfill our corporate social responsibility
by actively liaising with relevant organizations to provide supplies
and donations to the heroes who are fighting the pandemic on the
front line.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

_E
pwc

To the Shareholders of Regina Miracle
International (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Regina Miracle
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 144 to 227, which
comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2020;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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B RHENRE

OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to provision for
inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

BYRHERE

FERETEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

MREIER

Provision for inventories

FERHE

Refer to Note 18 “Inventories” and Note 4(a) “Critical
Accounting estimates and judgements” to the
consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2020, the Group held inventories of
HK$1,099,453,000 and the provision for obsolete
or slow moving inventories was HK$2,848,000.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value in the consolidated financial
statements.

Management assesses the provision for obsolete or
slow moving inventories at each period end based
on their consideration of obsolescence and the net
realisable value of inventories. The determination of
estimated selling price less cost to sell requires the
use of significant judgement and estimates, including
consideration of condition of products, latest selling
price, expectation of future sales orders and market
trends and customer demands.

HEBA S REM 18l 172 R4 B iHE
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Our key procedures in relation to management'’s
assessment of the provision for obsolete or slow
moving inventory included:

- Understanding the key control procedures
performed by management in estimating the
net realisable value of the inventories and
conducting periodic reviews on inventory
obsolescence;

- Testing, on a sample basis, the net realisable
value of selected inventory items, by comparing
the carrying amount of the inventory items
against their selling price subsequent to the
year end or closest to year end;

- Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
the ageing profile of individual inventory items
by checking to the underlying procurement
correspondence and invoices; and

- Testing, on a sample basis, long aged inventory
for subsequent sales or usage after year
end and reperforming the calculation for the
provision.

Bt E R EHRESFHTERE T ARITHRR
TR

- BEREEEBGIFENIERFENEMEREE
RERERRANBRZERR

—  RABETRLBARGEEL OFEERLRE
RSB R A - SR WA f A
I FEETAN -

-  RAMETARSAEREERNERSER
FEIA BRI ZEREN © &

- RAMESTABRERRENTFENFREBEEHRE
FUETTRIR - WEHEERE

139

FERE2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B RHENRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

FRETEE e

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FRESEE

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balance, significant management judgement and
estimates involved in determining the provision for
obsolete or slow moving inventories.

BABEIRNUBE I HREHREANBRERENFHTR
B S RERNEIEEHIE MG

AN EST N AEREBRENSE

In addition, we discussed with management
regarding the latest sales pattern in relation to price
and quantity for potential orders, and other factors,
including the market trends and customer demands.

We found that management’s assessment of the
provision for obsolete or slow moving inventory was
supported by the available audit evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial HEEBRMEEATBRRNET - RANE

statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. WWe have nothing to report in this
regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. WWe remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. \We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Chiu, Raymond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
ek

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z 2020563 A318 [ F[E

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$°000 HK$'000

BET T T

Revenue WA 5 6,341,010 6,263,280
Cost of sales SHERAR 7 (4,900,279) (4,921,335)
Gross profit EF 1,440,731 1,341,945
Other income and other gains, net HA UG A R H Aih Y 25 558 6 65,880 28,359
Distribution and selling expenses DR IHE R 7 (164,533) (155,329)
General and administrative expenses —MR AT X 7 (664,527) (619,006)
Research and development costs SR AR 7 (203,911) (205,070)
473,640 390,899

Finance income ZUE AN 9 2,281 1,316
Finance costs B A5 R AR 9 (162,819) (90,182)
Finance costs, net B RS RN SR (160,538) (88,866)
Profit before income tax BRAT BB ADERI 313,102 302,033
Income tax expense FriSEifsZ 1 (23,149) (19,5695)

Profit for the year attributable to FERAQAREEA

owners of the Company FEARER 289,953 282,438
Earnings per share for profit ARATEE AEML
attributable to owners of the BN ERAER
Company (expressed in HK cents (R ABWES])
per share)
— Basic and diluted —BERNEE 12 23.7 23.1
The above consolidated income statement should be read in FliAR S a3 e SR RE P FY S — O B RE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;£20204E3 A318 IF /&

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Profit for the year FREF 289,953 282,438
Other comprehensive loss: Hib 2 HEEE :

Items that have been reclassified or may =& #5 #Eat o )R A 1£
be subsequently reclassified to profit B R EmIHA

or loss
Currency translation differences BEmE =R (203,332) (133,151)
Fair value gain/(loss) on insurance REBEAFERE
policy investments (&) 17 5,540 (1,272)
Fair value change on trade receivables B ERAEM
carried at fair value through EXION
other comprehensive income (MERAFEFTA
("FVOCI"), net HEmEmmAl)
FIRRAIE 5 FE AR X
AT EEE)FE (11) 163
Other comprehensive loss for the FRHMZEEE
year, net of tax (B HIBRBIE) (197,803) (134,260)
Total comprehensive income RATHEE AEMN
attributable to owners of ZEBAEE
the Company 92,150 148,178
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income LiteR S 2 s 7% FE B P P 5 — OF B 3E o

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FFIR4E2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 145



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HREEARER

As at 31 March 2020 7202063 H31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R MR 13 4,611,413 4,174,055
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE 1 3h Ko 4 Hb {5 A #EE 14 - 252,289
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 466,590 -
Intangible assets EmREE 16 47,923 49,670
Insurance policy investments REEIRE 17 130,110 76,130
Deposits and prepayments e R¥ENFIE 20 26,470 144,878
Deferred income tax assets ELEFTSIREE 25 6,348 -
5,288,854 4,697,022
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 1,096,605 893,896
Trade receivables 2 5 EIRERR 19 718,896 814,715
Deposits, prepayments and other e - BRRIEREmE
receivables & e 20 43,041 81,509
Tax recoverable Al [ R IE 16 927
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREEEY 21 587,616 466,436
e 2,446,174 2,25/,483
Total assets EEHAE 7,735,028 6,954,505
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of the Z&RQTHEE AEGER
Company
Share capital R A 22 95,247 95,247
Reserves 2 23 2,822,748 2,828,926
Total equity TR 2,917,995 2,924,173

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in FitrABEB BEREREBEMMF—O5E -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HREEARR

As at 31 March 2020 7202063 H31H

2020 AONES]
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings B 24 2,852,437 2,166,533
Other payables HoA e A~ KB 27 12,792 5,549
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 63,129 =
Deferred income tax liabilities FELEASHEE 25 4,039 5,927
2,932,397 2,178,009
Current liabilities FREBaE
Trade payables B SRR 26 385,300 378,379
Accruals and other payables FETE A L B pE(~ 5B 27 655,706 606,994
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 99,701 =
Borrowings B 24 737,568 857,565
Current income tax liabilities BIEFTISHaE 6,361 9,385
e eoeeeeiieeieeiceeecesono. . 1,884,636 1,852,323
_Total liabilites =~ f&fi#® 0 4817,033 4030332
Total equity and liabilities EERAEHEE 7,735,028 6,954,505

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in Ltz s BEBEREEBEIF—ORIE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 144 to 227 were F1447 227 B4R & IS IFZ E 70202056
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2020 and were A20AREESETRKREE -
signed on its behalf.

Hung Yau Lit Antony Yiu
ok PhEER
Chairman Director
FiE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z 2020563 A318 [ F[E

Attributable to owners
of the Company

KA THEE AELE
Share capital Reserves Total
€S N et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Balance as at 1 April 2018 R2018F4 1B &SR -
as originally presented RESFRZS 95,247 2,774,335 2,869,582
Change in accounting policies RIEE B HREERZE
(Under HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15) SRR BB RS 2R
BRI EETBERE - (2,992) (2,992)
As at 1 April 2018 as restated A2018F4 B 1HEET 95,247 2,771,343 2,866,590
Total comprehensive income HE AR - 148,178 148,178
Transaction with owners HEBARS
Dividends paid (Note 28) BEAIARE (MiFE28) - (90,595) (90,595)
As at 31 March 2019 "R201953H31H 95,247 2,828,926 2,924,173
Balance as at 1 April 2019 R2019F4 1B WA -
as originally presented BRIEFLFMEY 95,247 2,828,926 2,924,173
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.2) &zt EE (Mi:52.2) - (2,836) (2,836)
As at 1 April 2019 as restated A2019F4 818 KET 95,247 2,826,090 2,921,337
Total comprehensive income EHEWALEE - 92,150 92,150
Transaction with owners HEFARS
Dividends paid (Note 28) EASAR 2 (FEE28) - (95,492) (95,492)
As at 31 March 2020 7A2020563H31H 95,247 2,822,748 2,917,995
The consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read IR e MR B R R BB AT SE — O BOE -

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GBERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #;£20204E3 A318 IF /&

2020 2019
20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Cash flows from operating activities @%EQFE?@E%&E

Cash generated from operations LBEBMEES 29(a) 779,762 599,614
Profits tax paid f%j(ﬁm BT (32,409) (36,436)
Net cash inflow from operating EESEETSIR S

activities MAFRE 747,353 563,178

Cash flows from investing activities & ITEFEESRE

Purchase of property, plant and BEEYE -

equipment 855 R 54 (797,065) (1,090,396)
Prepayments for purchase of BEME - BEREE

property, plant and equipment AR EREER

and intangible assets TEftEIE (19,014) (73,997)
Addition of right-of-use assets RNEFAEEE (20,946) (26,699)
Prepayments for purchase of BB (s AER

land use rights B k8 = (60,601)
Purchase of intangible assets BEETEE (8,552) (14,704)
Purchase of insurance policy BERERE

investments 17 (49,046) (12,321)
Proceeds from disposal of HERBREAFTSHRIEA

insurance policy investments 686 1,704
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEX

plant and equipment BRI e 29(b) 2,381 1,507
Proceeds from disposal of i (s PR AE

land use rights A8 k8 = 43,559
Refund from prepayments BB+ (F iR

for purchase of land use rights TERT IR R K 43,312 -
Interest received BB 2,281 1,316
Net cash outflow from investing WEEEFEIRS

activities it FEE (845,963) (1,230,632)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z 2020563 A318 [ F[E

2020
20204

HK$'000
BT T

Cash flows from financing activities RS IEFMEESRE

2019
20194
HK$'000
BT T

Proceeds from new borrowings I E RSk 2,195,967 2,292,500
Repayments of borrowings BEER (1,630,060) (1,418,756)
Principal elements of lease payments ~ FASE A ARSI D (73,805) -
Interest paid BAFE (162,819) (90,182)
Dividends paid BRE (95,492) (90,595)
Net cash inflow from financing BEEEERS

activities MAFRE 233,791 692,967
Net increase in cash and cash RERBREEEY

equivalents EnFEEE 135,181 25,513
Cash and cash equivalents at FUHReRREEEY

beginning of the year 466,436 450,125
Currency translation differences B s (14,001) (9,202)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRBAERIREEEY

the year 21 587,616 466,436

The consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in IRARDIME R ERENI K — H6E -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on
21 September 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The Company has its primary listing on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of
the Company's registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of bras, intimate wear, bra pads, other molded
products and functional sports products.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$'000"), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The consolidated
financial statements are for the Group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS") and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. These
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of trade receivables carried at FVOCI and insurance policy
investments which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas
when assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2.1
(a)

152

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards and new interpretation
adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended
standards and new interpretation for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing 1 April 2019:

Amendments to Annual
Improvement Project
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28
HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The Group had to change its accounting policies as a result
of adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group elected to adopt the
new rules retrospectively but recognised the cumulative
effect of initially applying the new standard on 1 April 2019.
This is disclosed in Note 2.2. The adoption of other amended
standards and new interpretation did not have any material
impact on the current period or any prior periods.

2.1
(a)

BERETBEME W)

MBE%E (5)
KEBHRA B9 H 5T R ASAE 5T 2E R AR
R

AEBER2019F4 A1 BEBHFE
WE M E X ER T8 REYERT
AERILA e ke

FEUE BN 2016 220174 AR
E5) R

BRISMEER  BEABENRNER
ERENEET SEE

B ETHER| BECHRE et
F19RMIER]

BRETER REE RN RAELE
E28FHMIEE] MREER

BERMBHREEN HE
£16%

AR (ERISRE AEMGHEEN T E
BEZEY) ElE
—REER

AEBERRME S EREERE6
FMAZEESHRE - ALERE
BT NETIR A - HERER 201954 A
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2.1
(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards and conceptual framework

not yet adopted by the Group

The following new and amended standards and conceptual

framework have been issued that are not mandatory for

financial year ended 31 March 2020 and have not been early

adopted by the Group:
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material
(Amendment)

R EAE 1R REASEH
HRIFESH (EFTA)

HKFRS 3 (Amendment)

BERWES

Definition of a Business

e R BRRME

2 EARETHEEBEw

2.1 RBEEEE)

(b) 7K EE B K IR BT AT RASISAT £ R
KU RBESHELE

THI BB FTET RS FT 2 B A K 43R
SIERBAENE E20209F3831 8 1H81
BEERGIER  BAREENKRIER
R -
1 April 2020
202054 A1H

1 April 2020

BB P B REENEIRHEFTAR)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendment)

BRI HREERIFE105% &
BB G HEAIE285 (BRI A)

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

B GEHEAIEI95 - B
WERRETR REAWB
HEHERFERAIEE]

HKFRS 17

BRI REERIE1T5R

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

2018 E IR E B AHER

FHHER
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

BEEHEBEANFREEPE L ANEEHENREA
Hedge accounting

R EEERE

Insurance Contracts

RERE K

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

M RE B SAERMER]

2020F4A1H
To be determined

TEEE

1 April 2020
202054 A1H
1 April 2022
202254 °1H

1 April 2020

202054 H1H

The Group will adopt the new and amended standards
and conceptual framework when they become effective.
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
related impact of adopting the above new and amended
standards and conceptual framework, none of which is
expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

FERE2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

AEBB R REETERARE
DR IR A R PR AN % 2R B AR
R AEBECFRIRFAARREA L
Al RARIERTERIA R SAE IR B2
2 BEHBHTEHAKENGEAME
BREBUEATE -

153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2.2

(a)

154

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Change of accounting policies
This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
“Leases” on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1(a) above, the Group has adopted
HKFRS 16 retrospectively from 1 April 2019, but has not
restated comparatives for the year ended 31 March 2019,
as permitted under the specific transition provisions in the
standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising
from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the
opening consolidated balance sheet on 1 April 2019. The
new accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.27.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as “operating leases” under the principles of
HKAS 17 “Leases”. These liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1 April
2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 April 2019 was 5.2%
per annum.

Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used
the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

o applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics

o relying on previous assessments on whether leases
are onerous as an alternative to performing an
impairment review — there were no onerous contracts
as at 1 April 2019

o accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease
term of less than 12 months as at 1 April 2019 as
short-term leases

° excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of
the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application,
and

° using hindsight in determining the lease term where
the contract contains options to extend or terminate
the lease.

2.2

(a)
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2.2
(a)

(b)

(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Change of accounting policies (Continued)

Practical expedients applied (Continued)

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the
transition date the Group relied on its assessment made
applying HKAS 17 and Interpretation 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”.

Measurement of lease liabilities

Operating lease commitments disclosed

2.2
(a)

(b)

7H2019%3A31H

e R BRRME

BEXEBEREBE®)

BRIBERNEE ()

FrREfE A {TREE T % (48
AEBTCEETERIIXERBH
EFFREGNRETEHEEXREHR
gk HRBEBREARIZNA
# o REBKEEERATERE
AEN TR RRBEAREELHRS
BEHEFHRRFE -

HERERTE

2019
20194

HK$'000
BT T

as at 31 March 2019 BRI EHERE 249,432
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental YA AR ER

borrowing rate of at the date of initial HEfMIE 227

application FZBLTE 221,869
(Less): short-term leases recognised on OB - IREREERA

a straight-line basis as expenses XM EEE (20,747)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 April 2019 20194 A1 BERMBEAE

(Note 15) (ffF5E15) 201,122
Of which are: Hep -

Current lease liabilities nRBHEBE 71,888

Non-current lease liabilities ERBHEAE 129,234

201,122

Measurement of right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets of the leases were measured at the
amount equal to the lease liabilities as at the date at which
leased assets are available for use by the Group. Right-of-
use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis
from date of recognition and lease liabilities are measured
at the net present values of the remaining lease payments.
As at 1 April 2019, the balance of right-of-use assets were
adjusted by the reclassification of leasehold land and land
use rights which previously presented as a separate item on
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2019. Any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to these leases
recognized in the consolidated balance sheet were adjusted
to the retained earnings as at 1 April 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2.2
(d)

156

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Change of accounting policies (Continued)
Adjustments recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position on 1 April 2019

The change in accounting policy affected the following items
in the consolidated balance sheet on 1 April 2019. Line
items that were not affected by the changes have not been
included.

31

Consolidated balance sheet HREEESER

(extract) (=)
Non-current assets FREBEE
Leasehold land and land use AETHK

rights Tt A
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSRIEE
Current liabilities REIEE
Lease liabilities HEAE

Accruals and other payables FEETE A K H AL RN R

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEARE
Equity s
Retained profits R =T

2 EAESTBER#ME@)

22 STERWEE(E)

(d) R2019F451HEHEH BN TERE
R
FRIERMNEHEN2019F4 18K
RAEEERBRTHNUTHEEERY
2 . 0FXBHTENEREETE
BEA -

March 2019 Effects of the
as originally  adoption of 1 April 2019
presented HKFRS 16 Restated
20195 ERMBEEHE 20194

3H31H WA 481K
(IER25) H165EMNEE (#8E7)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T

252,289 (252,289) -
- 439,189 439,189

- 782 782

- 71,888 71,888
606,994 (10,604) 596,390
- 129,234 129,234
1,158,023 (2,836) 1,155,187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EARETEEHBEw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries 23 MBAT

2.3.1 Consolidation 2.3.1 ZEAER

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transactions
provide evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquired business and the equity
interests issued by the Group and the fair value of any
assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’'s proportionate share
of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

2.3
2.3.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.3.2 Separate financial statements

24

158

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.

2.3

BERETBEME W)

B A =) ()

2.3.1 ZBEAKE)

HERE 2 A]

HAREREEHIE - REENTMA
REESIEEREEFEEANAF
BEHMIE  FHENEZEHEER
AR o S H R ARRTIERE QR
BECEUTHEENRERAM
5 AFER/VIGIREE - w1
TR MR ERAER M2 EBRATER
WERESRAR  BOAEEDEE
RERBEEELRBG - LAIREEKRE
FIEEMEE R AR SREEH D

BmEBE -

232 BUBKEE

24

R B QB B AR AT
B - RABRKEEKEMERAE - K
BAREEBARRRIZE W R
SHEEAR -

P B A R IR E EA IR BB
ZEMBARNEIRREMENZE
WA B MIRERBIL M BHRER A
MEREEBEAREHREEFE(RH
BE) N MBWRRANEREE - A
MU BI BB B S IRE R TTRIE
A, o

TEB2 ]
EESBH2ZEHRANEEEER
FEREONDREEH U - LB

BEARERERLEDHMOEER
RFFERI - W2 RAI R R
IRENARRRIHITES ©

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiBIFR(ZER)ERAA



25
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

I[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar
("HK$"), which is the Company's functional and the Group's
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy), that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

25
(iii)

2.6

160

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to consolidated income statement, as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated

using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Building 5% or over the unexpired

period of the lease

5% or over the unexpired

period of the lease

7% to 10%

20% to 33%

20% to 33%

20%

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

Office furniture and fixtures
Computer equipment
Motor vehicles
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2.6

2.7

2.8

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings and
the costs of plant and machinery, installation testing and
other direct costs. No provision for depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and are available for the intended
use. When the assets concerned are brought into use, the
costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in Note
2.6 above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost represents upfront prepayments made
for the rights to use the land over the lease term of 41 to
45 years. Amortisation of leasehold land is expensed in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease. Leasehold land and land use rights
previously presented as a separate item on the consolidated
balance sheet is grouped as part of right-of-use assets upon
the adoption of HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

29

2.10

2.11
(i)

162

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Acquired computer software license is capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire the specific software.
The computer software acquired is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses if any. These costs are amortised over estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting date.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at FVOCI or
through profit or loss, and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’'s business model

for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment carried at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, which is the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

Debt instrument

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item
in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

2.11
(iii)

(iv)

164

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instrument (Continued)

° FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in “finance cost, net”. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in “other income and other
gains, net”.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
these financial assets, see note 3.1(c)(ii) for further details.

For deposits and other receivables from third parties, loss
allowance are measured as either 12-months expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit
risk of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then loss allowance is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
cost method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. Trade receivables with the objective to collect
the contractual cash flows are measured subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables from certain customers of the Group,
whose contractual cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, were factored to reputable financial
institutions under non-recourse factoring arrangement
according to the Group’s daily fund management needs.
These trade receivable’s business model is therefore
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling of these assets. Such trade receivables was therefore
classified as financial assets carried at FVOCI.

For details of the accounting policies and impairment
policies, please refer to note 2.11 and note 3.1(c).

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in consolidated statement of
cash flow, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks with original maturities of
three months or less and bank overdrafts.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.17 Trade and other payables

166

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade payables and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

(i)

(ii)

168

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Group operates
and generates taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.21 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations
Group companies operate several defined contribution
retirement schemes.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

2.21
(ii)

(iii)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Bonus entitlements

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
based on the key performance indicators for employees
and the business performance of the Group. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where
there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

2.22 Provisions

170

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to anyone item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition

The Group manufactures and sells bras, intimate wear, bra
pads, other molded products and functional sports products
in the wholesale market. Revenue is recognised when
control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the wholesaler at a point in time,
the wholesaler has full discretion over the channel and price
to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the wholesaler’'s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the wholesaler, and either the
wholesaler has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed,
or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the price
specified in the sales contracts. No element of financing is
deemed present as the sales are made with a short credit
term, which is consistent with market practice. The Group's
obligation to replace faulty products or refund customers
under the standard warranties terms is recognised as a
provision, see note 2.22.

A receivable is recognised when the control of goods is
transferred as this is the point in time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

Contract liability is recognised when payments are received
from customers in advance but the relevant performance
obligation has not been performed.

2.24 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of finance
cost, net. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
values where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate. Government grants relating to
property, plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.26 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects relating to the design and
testing of new or improved products are recognised as an
intangible asset when the technical feasibility and intention
of completing the product under development has been
demonstrated and the resources are available to do so,
costs are identifiable and there is an ability to sell or use the
asset that will generate probable future economic benefits.
Such development costs are recognised as an asset and
amortised on the straight-line basis to reflect the pattern
in which the related economic benefits are recognised.
Development costs that do not meet the above criteria
are expensed as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in
a subsequent period.

2.27 Leases

172

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee.
The new policy is described below and the impact of the
change in Note 2.2.

Until 31 March 2019, leases in which a significant portion
of the risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred
to the Group as lessee were classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Leases (Continued)

From 1 April 2019, leases are recognised as right-of-use
assets and corresponding liabilities at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for
these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liabilities.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the

following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liabilities;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received; and

o any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the

shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on

a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain

to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is

depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
2.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.29 Insurance policy investments

174

Insurance policy investments are non-derivative measured
at FVOCI. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose
of it within 12 months of the balance sheet date. When
the investments are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair
value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement. The relevant accounting
policy of these assets has been consistently applied.
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3.1

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, refundable deposits and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables
and borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in Note 32.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including cash flow interest rate risk, foreign exchange
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance. The Group
does not use any derivative financial instruments to hedge
the risk exposures. Risk management is regularly carried out
by the senior management of the Company under policies
approved by the executive directors of the Company.

Cash flow interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for bank deposits, which earn low interest income.
The Group's operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its borrowings with floating interest rates.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash
held at variable rates. The Group has not hedged its cash
flow interest rate risk. Details of the Group's borrowings
have been disclosed in Note 24.

As at 31 March 2020, if interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 basis points with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would decrease/increase by
HK$30,024,000 (2019: HK$25,577,000), resulting from the
changes in finance costs of net bank borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

3.1
(b)

176

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Vietnam. Most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in HK$, Renminbi
("RMB"), Vietnamese Dong (“VND") and United States
Dollar ("US$"). The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk primarily through its sales, purchases and borrowing
transactions denominated in US$. The Group is presently
not using any forward exchange contract to hedge against
foreign exchange risk. The Group manages its foreign
exchange risks by performing regular reviews when
considered necessary and ensures that the net exposure
to foreign exchange risk is kept to an acceptable level from
time to time.

The directors considered the foreign exchange risk between
HK$ and US$ is minimal as US$ are reasonably stable with
HK$ under the Linked Exchange Rate System.

As at 31 March 2020, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against US$ with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 would have
been approximately HK$11,075,000 higher/lower (2019:
HK$5,326,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated
trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents
held by the Group's entities in the PRC.

As at 31 March 2020, if VND had strengthened/weakened
by 2% against US$ with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 would have been
approximately HK$27,424,000 (2019: HK$28,546,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of US$ denominated trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
payables held by the Group's entities in Vietnam.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables and bank
deposits. Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor the exposures
to these credit risks on an on-going basis. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

Risk management

As at 31 March 2020, majority of the bank deposits of the
Group are held in major financial institutions located in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Vietnam, which management believes
are of high credit quality. Management does not expect any
losses from non-performance by these financial institutions.
The Group has no policy to limit the amount of credit
exposure to any financial institutions.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 57% (2019: 42%) of its trade receivables were
from the five largest customers (2019: five), which are
mainly reputable corporations. Considering the track record
of regular repayment of trade receivables based on the
Group’s experience with respect to the collection of these
receivables, the directors are of the opinion that the risk of
default by these customers is not significant.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products on credit terms are made to customers with
appropriate credit history. The Group has not determined
any credit limit for customers, however, the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The major trade
debtors have no history of default.

The Group also uses trade receivables factoring facilities to
manage the credit risk of its trade debtors.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

° Trade receivables; and
° Other financial assets carried at amortised cost

While cash and cash equivalents receivables are also subject
to the impairment requirement of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all
trade receivables. To measure expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on nature of customer
accounts, the shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles
of sales over a period of 12 months before 31 March
2020 respectively and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group
has identified the overall industry outlook in which it sells
its goods and services to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March 2020 and
31 March 2019 was determined as follows:

0-30 days

Current  past due

ki

MH  0Z30R

31 March 2020 HKD'000  HKD'000
2020534318 A¥Tn  A¥Tn
Gross carrying amount FHZE 565,385 112,340
Loss allowance BEEE (4,563)  (1,315)

3

3.1
(c)
(ir)

past due

31Z60H
HKD'000
BRTR

16,020

e R BRRME

BRERERE

MERBEEE)

EEER(E)

B W ()

U EET - R2020683A318 K
2019F3A31HE BB EETHNT ¢

Ove
31-60days 61-90days 91-180days 180 days
pastdue  pastdue pastdue Total
61Z90F 91Z80H HEiB180A a5
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
BETn  A%Tn  A%Tn  B%Tn
16,685 11,128 6961 728519
(214) (252) (3.211) (9,623)

(68)

(RIS
past due

0£30H

31 March 2019 HKD'000

2019F3A31H Tr BT
Gross carrying amount RRgE 669,270 119,998
Loss allowance BEEE (1415) (227)

31-60 days
past due
jalii
31260H
HKD

vis

Qver

180 days
past due
H#R180H
HKD'000

61-90 days
past due
61290H
HKD'000

91-180 days
past due
ki
91£180H

T yP BT
1,005 2,603 3247 818,157
2 8 (1.727) (3,442)

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan
with the Group.

Loss allowance on trade receivables are presented as net
loss allowance in the consolidated income statement.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the same line item.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include deposits
and certain other receivables. These financial assets are
considered to be low credit risk primarily because historically
they had no history of default and the debtors had a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term. Additions to the loss allowance were
HK$6,181,000, relating to trade receivables, during the year
ended 31 March 2020 (For the year ended 31 March 2019:
Nil).

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its working capital requirements through
a combination of funds generated from its operations and
bank borrowings. The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and have sufficient available
funding through committed credit facilities to meet its
working capital requirements. The directors believe that the
Group has maintained sufficient general banking facilities
for financing capital commitment in the near future and for
working capital purposes.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of HK$587,616,000 (2019: HK$466,436,000)
and trade receivables of HK$718,896,000 (2019:
HK$814,715,000) respectively, that are expected to readily
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The tables below analyse the Group's non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

The analysis shows the cash outflow based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements, while
interest payments are computed using contractual rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HRERER®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MEEREBEEZE@E
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) FEELEEE)
Within Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2andS5 years 5 years Total
—ER -EmE “ERE BBLE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AU BETT AU BETT BETT
As at 31 March 2020 7202053A31A
Trade payables B AERERR 385,300 - - - 385,300
Accruals and other payables [EAERRAMERTIE 481,361 - - 12,792 494,153
Lease liabilities HEERE 110,827 40,006 25,003 5,359 181,195
Borrowings a3 137,568 1,762,405 1,066,680 23,352 3,590,005
Bank interest payables FERTRITHIS 129,376 85,558 26,746 - 241,680
1,844,432 1,887,969 1,118,429 41,503 4,892,333
As at 31 March 2019 1201953A31A
Trade payables BAERER 378,379 - - - 378,379
Accruals and other payables [Ext B R LA EM A 427,365 - - 5,549 432,914
Borrowings B3 857,565 1,065,368 1,101,165 - 3,024,098
Bank interest payables ERTFIS 80,414 63,758 32,720 - 176,892
1,743,723 1,129,126 1,133,885 5,549 4,012,283
3.2 Fair value estimation 3.2 AF{EME
The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments TRBEE 2 QT EG RO ERI
carried at fair value as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 by level BABIRES R DT AEER2020F &
of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair 201953 A31HIEZ AT ES|EN SR T
value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a B ZHABBEATEEIARND A
fair value hierarchy as follows: WM =EE#
D Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o ERMSHIAREENAEBHMR
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). BRAERE(E—R) -
D Inputs other than quoted prices included within level o  F—HWEIN - TEE(HRE
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either %) sk (B ERE L) B
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived WEESBBENBASE(EZ
from prices) (level 2). ) e
D Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o  WIREABERMESEBENEE
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) kB ER A SR (B A BT
(level 3). BABR)(B=/) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRREE@
3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.2 AREMEFT@E)

TREJAEERAFEFENEE
MEBHRATEER

The following table presents the fair value hierarchy of the
Group's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value:

Level 3 Total
BZR st
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETR

Level 2
-t 1
HK$'000
BT

Level 1

it

HK$'000
BT

182

As at 31 March 2020 74202063 H31H
Assets BE

Insurance policy investments {REERE - 130,110 130,110
Trade receivables RAFERT AEA
carried at FVOCI Z2EBATIER
B 5 AR - 409,268 409,268
As at 31 March 2019 1201963 A31H
Assets EE
Insurance policy investments {REERE - 76,130 76,130
Trade receivables RAFERTAEA
carried at FVOCI 2ERATIERA
B Z KBRS - 356,206 356,206

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, there
were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities between
level 1, level 2 and level 3.

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an exchange or
dealer, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market are determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

HE2020F 20193831 B IE4
EE5— F-HRE=ZLHTEH
EOMEERBBEER -

E-HRLHMTA
EEBRMZEENERTANRFE
RENGEEANTSRERTE - N5
Be i N E IS R B ATk X 5 7 e
B ARFERRAREATRIER
NMEHETOMSER S MEETS
Bl R AR R™S - AEBEMTSR
BEMAMSRERRITEANE - &
ETEIAE e

FoRE2HMITA
WIHNERTSEENITESRMITEA
A FENBGEERMEE - L5
ERNEEMNATNEH A EBEmS
g ZRELCBEEBFEMEET oW
TARFEMREHZHERE AEE
BUEE  ZTERFIASE =4 -

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥ iR (IZR)ERA A



3.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the investment is included in level 3.

For the fair value of insurance policy investments that is
not traded in an active market, the Chief Financial Officer
with the assistance of external valuer determined its fair
value based on the higher of cash surrender value and fair
value determinated by discounted cash flow model. The
significant unobservable inputs that determine the fair value
is cash surrender value, which is contractually agreed upon
entering into the insurance contract.

The fair value of trade receivables carried at FVOCI is
determined using discounted cash flow. Future cash flow is
estimated based on the contractual amount, discounted at
quoted factoring rate with bank in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2020, if quoted factoring rate had been
50 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, there would have been approximately HK$549,000
(2019: HK$540,000), unfavourably/favourably change on the
fair value of the trade receivables carried at FVOCI.

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued)
Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)
Insurance policy investments

3.2 DVHEME (@)
EZR2HITAE)
RERE

R ERE s

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT

As at 1 April W4A1H 76,130 66,631
Additions NE 49,046 12,321
Disposal & (606) (1,550)

Fair value gain/(loss) recognised to REMEEBRARERH

other comprehensive income N EWRZ,(E8) 5,540 (1,272)
As at 31 March M3A31H 130,110 76,130

2020 2019
20204F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT
Total disposal gain for the year FFAGRE MR
included in consolidated income [ E A Yas $ 58 118 T &Y
statement, under “other gains, FRHEW S ERE
net” (Note 6) (Kizx6) 80 154

Trade receivables carried at FVOCI/

B FEFGTAEMZ ERAZ R E

S IENAR
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
As at 1 April R4A1H 356,206 407,164
Additions NE 4,692,389 4,461,994
Disposal HeE (4,639,316) (4,513,115)
Fair value (loss)/gain REMZEBEAFERS

recognised to other comprehensive NE(EE) WS EE
income, net (Note) (BE) (11) 163
As at 31 March M3A31H 409,268 356,206

Note: It includes the reclassification of trade receivables at FVOCI
reserves to “finance cost”, net upon disposal amounted to

MiaE - EBRESRAFEFARGCZERA R
BHESRBIRRER S EE M BK

A NBREE2020E3 831 B IEFE
H & 7#130,181,0007T °

HK$30,181,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020.
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3.3

3.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholder and benefits
for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholder, return capital to
shareholder, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group had a gearing
ratio of 103% and 87%, respectively. This ratio is calculated
as net debts (represented by bank borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents) divided by total equity. The gearing ratios
were as follows:

3

3.3

e R BRRME

BRERERE

EXEREE
AEBEREANBERRRENEE
FELENRD BB SRRE

[l 3 o 73 B A ) 55 40 B B O A
& WHERREERNRBUREER

B R IR BRI B 5 - [
PREREER  BITHBRREEEE
PURLAMERS ©

REEEBEEBBLRERER -
20204 20193 A318 * A&E
EEBELENFIR103%M87% ° #%
LR EER (BERITHEZURIR € &IR
SEEY) G iENAESE - EEARG
ERMT

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Total borrowings (Note 24) feRaaza (MsE24) 3,590,005 3,024,098
Less: )

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) B MREEEY(H:E21) (587,616) (466,436)

Net debt FE 3,002,389 2,557,662

Total equity AR 2,917,995 2,924,173

Gearing ratio LEABLE 103% 87%

The increase in gearing ratio from 87% as at 31 March
2019 to 103% as at 31 March 2020 was primarily due to
the increase in bank borrowings for financing of capital
expenditure in relation to production facilities in Vietnam
during the year.

The Group has complied with all the relevant covenants
under the terms of borrowing facilities throughout the year
(2019: same).

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 34

No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject to

offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements or

similar agreements as at 31 March 2020 (2019: same).
FEHE2019/20

BAEBEBELXRMH2019F3A31HY
87%HEINZE 202053 A31HM103%
FTEHRFANEBEEEEREER
F R E SRITIERUE N -

AEBRFANETERBREGKEAT
BVFT A B RER (20194 « #ERA) -

KEtmEERSREE
M202063A31H @ BELRMEER
CRBEIRNIEE « ATEHHITR
TFREAE TP AL (20199 « 46
/) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

(a)

(b)

(c)

186

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial
impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less cost to sell.
These estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. Write-downs of inventories are
recorded where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be realised. The identification of
write-downs requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and write-downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the loss allowances
for trade receivables based on the assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. These assumptions and the
selection of inputs to the impairment calculation is based
on the customer’s past settlement pattern, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in note 3.1(c)(ii).

Income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Vietnam. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
taxes based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

4

(a)

(b)

(c)
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(c)

(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Income tax and deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred income tax assets and
income tax charges in the period in which such estimates
have been changed.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (the "“Executive
Directors”) are the Group's chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the Executive Directors
for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

The Executive Directors review the performance of
the Group mainly from the product perspective. The
Group is organised into three segments engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of:

(i) Bras and intimate wear;
(i) Bra pads and other molded products; and
(i) Functional sports products.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of gross profit
of each segment, which is consistent with that of the
financial statements. Finance income and finance cost are
not allocated to segments, as this type of activity is driven
by the central treasury function, which manages the cash
position of the Group. Other information, as noted below,
is also provided to the Executive Directors. The revenue
reported to the Executive Directors is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated income statement.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

5

188

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
as follows:

D ERE R ()

B ZE2020F3 A31 B IFFEM DA EE
LI

Bra pads

Bras and and other Functional

intimate molded sports
wear products products Total

MER BARHM IhEEMHES
BEAR EEREMm BEMm et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT B¥Tr BT B¥TR

Total segment revenue D EBUA

(Recognised at (RE—2mR)

a point in time) 5,061,431 677,093 602,486 6,341,010
Gross profit/segment results ERDEpELSE 1,183,845 144,221 112,665 1,440,731
Other income and EHAA K

other gains, net Hip a5 558 65,880
Distribution and selling DR EERY

expenses (164,533)
General and administrative —MRITHFX

expenses (664,527)
Research and development TFEE R

costs (203,911)
Finance income B 2,281
Finance costs BTG R AR (162,819)
Profit before income tax TSRS A 313,102
Income tax expense RS iiF s (23,149)
Profit for the year vl 289,953

Other segment item included in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2020 is as follows:

Depreciation for property, ST ASHER AR
plant and equipment and R B2 %A A e
right-of-use assets included in ~ FREZERTE

cost of sales 267,295

DIAEE2020F3A31BILFELA
HERMEMSEBENAT

46,781 35,326 349,402

Depreciation for property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of HK$349,402,000 (2019: HK$245,063,000)
has been charged in “cost of sales”, HK$122,829,000
(2019: HK$89,048,000) has been charged in “General
and administrative expenses” and HK$14,601,000 (2019:
HK$5,131,000) has been charged in “research and
development expenses” respectively.

ME  BEMZEAREREEET
E 5 1349,402,0007T (20194 : 7B
245,063,000 7T ) ~ & ¥ 122,829,000
7L (20194 + 7% ¥ 89,048,000 7T ) &
75 ¥ 14,601,000 7T (2019 F : B #&
5,131,00070) E D BITE[ SR A ] »
[—BRITEAS R RS
[5//% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZEER@
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2019 are HE2019F3A31 HILFERN DI ¥4
as follows: W

Bra pads

Bras and and other  Functional

intimate molded sports
wear products products Total

WER RHRkEM IheelHES
B E K EEES BEM et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETIT BT T

Total segment revenue D Es AN A

(Recognised at (RNE—BF2IRER)

a point in time) 4,874,609 530,890 857,781 6,263,280
Gross profit/segment results TR, DEbEE 1,070,262 111,617 160,066 1,341,945
Other income and E AU A R B U 25 558

other gains, net 28,359
Distribution and selling DR EERY

expenses (155,329)
General and administrative —MRITHFX

expenses (619,006)
Research and development RS AR

costs (205,070)
Finance income BAFEUWA 1,316
Finance costs JUE %N (90,182)
Profit before income tax TSR B A 302,033
Income tax expense s it (19,595)
Profit for the year F R A 282,438

Other segment item included in the consolidated income FIAEZ2019F3 831 B IEFELRE W
statement for the year ended 31 March 2019 is as follows: wmERMEMOEEE AT
Depreciation for property, SASEER AR
plant and equipment R KR ETE
included in cost of sales 173,345 40,449 31,269 245,063
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2#ER®@

Revenue from external customers based on the destination BEZFEFEMNMEI S HINIEEE A

190

of the customers are as follows:

T

2020
20204

HK$'000
BT T

2019
20194
HK$'000
BT T

United States EJE| 2,895,464 3,040,918
The PRC i 820,716 786,826
Europe BOM 745,060 732,081
Hong Kong BB 311,041 340,982
Japan B 753,398 568,945
Korea B2 101,904 140,001
South-east Asia (Note a) REgoe(f5Ta) 274,636 261,009
South Asia (Note b) EEEE)) 93,064 63,235
Other countries/regions (Note c) EMmER R (Mic) 345,727 329,283

6,341,010 6,263,280

Note a:  Includes Malaysia, Indonesia, Singapore, Philippines, Vietnam
and Thailand.

Note b:  Includes Bangladesh, Sri Lanka and India.

Note c:  Include Taiwan, Turkey, Australia, Colombia and others.

No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is
presented as they are not regularly provided to the Executive
Directors.

Non-current assets, other than deferred tax assets and
insurance policy investments, of the Group are located in

fisfa: BEBRAEDR - EEEFED - ¥
¥ SEEE - HELER -

fistb :  BE&MNE - HEFRREE -

Miztc: BFERE  TFHE BN Feik
o R EA o

AL EEHRANTERREDHME
ESNHBENER  BALEZ25D
HREER D BB -

AEBENFRDEE(RECHBREE
RREREINRIA T HIZE S

the following geographical areas:

2020 AONES]

20204 20194

HK$°000 HK$’'000

BT T BT T

The PRC AR 854,676 884,770
Hong Kong ) 73,097 47,234
Vietnam HE 4,224,623 3,688,888
5,152,396 4,620,892
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

An analysis of the Group’s major customers, each of which
accounts for 10% or more of the Group's external revenue, is
as follows:

Customer Location Segments

EF g pik!

e R BRRME

D EE R @)
ZEEAREE10%3 A EINEFURAEY
REFETEREHWAT

2020 2019
2020 20195

HK$'000 HK$'000

Customer A ZEFA Japan = Bras and intimate wear,

molded products

and functional sports

products

Customer B XFB United States 5 Bras and intimate wear

BT BB

IE RS AKX
BEEMR
e tERRER
1,427,842 1,289,564
RERCELES 1,355,436 1,616,448

As a practical expedient, no disclosure was made for the
aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the
performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2020 (2019: same), because
such performance obligations are part of contracts having an
original expected duration of one year or less.

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET

EERERT  AREBABHNETA
REEHRE —FRATEHOH—ZD
2D HR2020FE3 A3 1 B ER DR E
MARBIT(HB D HABIT) BHOEML
MR S EREAEL TR (20194 « 18
) °

H A R H U 52 R

2020 2019
20204F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T PEHET T
Other income Hg A
Scrap sales income EEREMEEIRA 9,791 7,883
Government grants (Note) BB (M) 53,891 17,662
Others Hith 2,118 2,660
65,800 28,205
Other gains, net Htnl s F58
Gain on disposal of
insurance policy investments HERBIREWR 80 154
65,880 28,359

Note:

The government grants obtained mainly represents technical innovation
subsidies. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies
attaching to these grants.

MRE -

BB E BERRAIN AR - MEBERZF
FHBNARETT IR RFE S -
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e RBRRME

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

192

Amortisation of leasehold land and land

7 BMEIINMAX

2020
20204

HK$'000
BT T

THE 4 R b {5 P A 8

2019
20194
HK$'000
BT T

use rights (Note 14) (KzE14) = 6,943
Amortisation of intangible assets mILAESE

(Note 16) (MfsE16) 9,273 8,772
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENEN S

— Audit services — ZBURTS 3,000 2,900

- Non-audit services — IR 1,132 1,055
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BEMRETE

equipment (Note 13) (fF5E13) 401,035 339,242
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEE

(Note 15) (P5E15) 85,797 -
Bank charges RITE A 3,634 3,599
Consumables M 210,093 217,324
Cost of inventories sold (Note 18) EEFERA(FIFE18) 2,166,269 2,320,360
Loss allowance of trade receivables 5N BR I8 EE

(Note 19) (MI5E19) 6,181 1,759
Donations B 1,801 1,036
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) g 8&@7 B (Fizrs) 2,526,415 2,420,718
Freight and transportation expenses EENMERRAY 75,833 70,609
Gain on disposal of property, plantand H&EME - BEM&EIAKR

equipment and land use rights, net T AR A F AR (641) (1,421)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets  H&{F AL EWR (1,008) -
Operating lease rental of T RIEFH

land and buildings KEHERS = 98,174
Expense relating to ERRHEENHS

short-term leases (Note 15) (fg3E15) 18,817 -
Utilities AR 167,754 141,149
Others EHih 257,965 268,521
Total cost of sales, distribution and HEMA D iERIHERS

selling expenses, general and —MERATHRE S A K

administrative expenses and T EER AN 4B 58

research and development costs 5,933,250 5,900,740
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EERAMIZI(BIES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) <€)
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T SR IT
Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances T & - %% - JE4T =R, 2,220,672 2,092,286
Retirement benefit costs — defined RIKERIBAR — 5
contribution schemes (Note (a)) HERETEI (M3 ) 225,877 235,025
Staff welfare and benefits 8 TREH &FIZE 79,866 93,407
2,526,415 2,420,718
(a) Retirement benefit costs — defined contribution (a) RBRAKBRIKE - EEERE
schemes
The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to TEELTHEREREREZ2 NBEILER
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Bestal([8ERsE]) BBt
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an ZRBBEIEFEATENERMKG
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group 2l o RIFRESE - AEEREE
and its employees make monthly contributions to the BEXATAKREE AR (EE R
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under NHEEEF)5% M EEL R o &
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group's SEREESENEAHRRLERAE
and the employees’ contributions were subject to a cap of #1,5007C @ BHZE e ERHRAS
HK$1,500 on monthly basis and thereafter contributions are YEE FEMEHR -
voluntary.
The Company's subsidiaries in the PRC and Vietnam are ARF R R BENE AT E
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme B BT 2B R B R B IR IR IR R A
operated by the local governments. The Group contributes ZIMKE - NEBENBARIEEY
a certain percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’ EH—TFEEDLER  BEEMHK
employees, and has no further obligations for the actual SN BERER I RARES IENRE
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the BRNAB#E—FEF - BREEENK
annual contributions. The state-managed retirement plans EEEMRNEEN2HMRNE -

are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees.

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) BEESHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest FRNAEEREBEaTFALTBIERS
in the Group for the year include five (2019: five) directors (2019 : AB)ES  EFHMAWE
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in AR DT R BR -
Note 34.
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e RBRRME

9 FINANCE COSTS, NET

9

/B 9D

2020
20204

2019
20194
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Finance income P N
— interest income on bank deposits — IRITIFRCF B A 2,281 1,316
Finance costs IR IDWIN
- interest expense on bank borrowings  — $RITEKNF B (130,700) (85,526)
— factoring interests and charges —RIEFMENERH (30,181) (29,531)
- interest expense on lease liabilities —HEAENEMX
(Note 15) (FMt5E15) (9,145) -
— unwinding interest —REEFE (5,994) -
(176,020) (115,057)
Less: interest expenses capitalised B AEREBEENERNE
on qualifying assets (Note) FLEFZ (M) 13,201 24,875
________________________________________________________________________________ (162,819) _____ (90,182)
Finance costs, net ISP AN 558 (160,538) (88,866)

Note:

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs
to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the
Group's borrowings during the year, which is 4.0% per annum (2019:

3.6%).
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FEET B TEARERRASEHERN LR
AEFRNEEBIEANMETHIFER  AF
#£4.0% (20194 : 3.6%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 SUBSIDIARIES

10

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

March 2020:

Issued and fully
paid share
capital/
registered capital

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity

AR S 3t B R
ERERRE

ERTRARE

e R BRRME

B S 2 =

TRAEMR2020F3 A31BHHEZEH B

NCIE

Effective
interest
held (%)

s
BRER
(B2L)

Principal activities and
place of operation

BN

Directly held by the Company

AAREERE

Regina Miracle International
(Holdings) Limited

BY P B (BR)BER AT

Indirectly held by the Company

ARARBEEE

Regina Miracle International
(Group) Limited

HURER(RE)ERRA

Regina Miracle International
Limited
Y RBEIR AR DT

Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited
BRADEARORYNERAF

Honour First (Hong Kong)
Limited
EH(EB)ERAT

British Virgin Islands, US$100
limited liability 100X
company

RBERUES
BREART

Hong Kong, limited HK$5,000,000
liability company 75 #£5,000,0007C

BH  BREAAH

Hong Kong, limited HK$100
liability company BE1007T

BH  BREAAH

The People’s Republic HK$300,000,000
of China (the “PRC"), 7%300,000,0007T
limited liability
company

FE AR AME
([E]) -

BREART

Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000

liability company ##10,0007T

EB BREERARA

FERE2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20

100%
100%

Investment holding
in British Virgin Islands
RRBEZEHSETREER

100%
100%

Trading of brassieres and
panties, and functional
sports products
in Hong Kong

REBEENE RN
PARIhgE it E B R ER

100%
100%

Trading of bra pads and
other molded products
in Hong Kong

REEBE BRI R
HinEEE R

100%
100%

Manufacturing of brassieres
and panties, and
functional sports products
in the PRC

R B E I E & A
PARIN M B EM

100%
100%

Provision of sales agency
and information
technology services
in Hong Kong

REBREHERER
1= BRI AR
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e RBRRME

10 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10

Issued and fully
paid share
capital/
registered capital

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity

B B A Bl ()

Effective
interest
held (%)

s
BRER
(Bot)

Principal activities and
place of operation

FEXEBR
EEmHN

Regina Miracle (Shenzhen)
Limited
#ERARRIDER AT

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Limited

EY RER (B BR R

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Limited

EY RER (B AR R

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Co., Ltd

Regina Miracle International
Hung Yen Co., Ltd

Regina Miracle International
Group (Suzhou) Limited
#Y P B EE (BN ) AR AR

Regina Miracle International
Group (Suzhou) Limited
#Y P B EE (BN ) AR AR

Regina Miracle Management

Limited
BYREBERNF

196

MR R BRETRBRE

rEERER A EER

The PRC, limited liability ~ HK$20,000,000
company #£20,000,0007T

FE - AREEAH

British Virgin Islands, US$2
limited liability 2FETT
company

RBREZEHS -
BREARQE

Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000
liability company 7#10,0007C

BB BREERRA

US$681,050,977
681,050,977 7T

Vietnam, limited liability
company
B BREERR

US$16,115,565
16,115,565 7T

Vietnam, limited liability
company
B BREERR

British Virgin Islands, US$2
limited liability 2FETT
company

EBERUES -

BREERF

Hong Kong, limited HK$1
liability company AT

E# BREAAH

Hong Kong, limited HK$1
liability company AT

BB BREERRA

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥ iR (IZR)ERA A

Manufacturing of bra
pads and other molded
products in the PRC

Forh B A EE AR I
HAEEE

Investment holding
in British Virgin Islands
REBEZEHSETRERR

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REBETREER

Manufacturing of brassieres
and panties, bra pads, and
functional sports products
in Vietnam

PR A EERDE T 04
T RIhse g R E &

Manufacturing of semi-
finished goods in Vietnam

R EEEYEK M

Investment holding
in British Virgin Islands
REBEZEHSETRERR

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REBETREER

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REBETREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group is eligible to
nominate one Hong Kong incorporated entity in the Group
to be chargeable at the two tiered profits tax rates, whereby
profits tax will be chargeable on the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits at 8.25% and assessable profits above
this threshold will be subject to a rate of 16.5%. Hong Kong
profits tax of other Hong Kong incorporated entities in the
Group has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits. For the year ended 31 March
2019, Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the
rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits.

The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
is 256% (2019: 25%) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

According to a policy promulgated by the State Tax Bureau
of the PRC and effective from 2008 onwards, enterprises
engaged in research and development activities are entitled
to claim ranging from 150% to 175% of the research
and development expenses so incurred in a period as tax
deductible expenses in determining its tax assessable
profits for that period (“Super Deduction”). PRC subsidiaries
have applied such Super Deduction during the year.

The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietnam were
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 20% (2019:
20%). In accordance with the applicable tax regulations, a
subsidiary is subject to a lower tax rate of 10% for fifteen
consecutive years, commencing from the first year of
making revenue. In addition, the subsidiary is entitled to full
exemption from corporate income tax for the first four years
from the earlier of (i) the year when profit is generated for
the first time or (ii) the fourth year of making revenue; and
a 50% reduction in corporate income tax for the next nine
years, which is offered by the Vietnam Government and is
stipulated in the subsidiary’s investment license. Regina
Miracle International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. is entitled to the
full exemption from corporate income tax starting from the
financial year ended 31 March 2018.

e R BRRME

11 FIEHRAX

HZE2020F3A31HILEE - NEEA]
REAEERNESR —HEBFMAZ
FERZFSHMAHBHR  mass
2E BT E R R R FI H158.25% Fi R
BAFIBHE - BBZKFEHRERD G
FEIE16 6% R EHAN - REEMANE
BB ML BN EEFSRM
T EH FE AR AR % A% 16.5% B = 5142 B
o BE2019F3A3MALTFE - &5
FIB IR A R R A #916.5% Bt
KRR -

HZE2020FE3A31HILFEE  KNEE
BB A AR E R A25% (2019
F 1 25%) o

MR I% A B B R B 75 42 B B AR 46 B 2008
FRARN—EBER - REWEEH
O 1b 3 75 #E 7E 5 E HARE B SR B A A B
19z BB EAERNERZ N T150% 2
175% %3 [E R R R A R F08 F S ([
BEM]) - FEKMBRARCRERE
FRRZBEEIRN o

R R IEERME R FAE20%
(20194 : 20% ) WIFE RGN 2 P15
oo BEBGEBHIEER  —HEBEA
RERFEFREETRAFREER
E10% MM o boh - BOEERMNE
FHELERANENF (EREER
B)VEAENERN - ZMBRAREES
HERRBMEEMBH  WRERN
FRNEBS0%EMETRE - B
MEAMBETMGTHNERRE
LA R IRZ M B A B M I & R Al RE P ET
B - A& E2018F3A31H LI EE
Fis - #2RER(BE)ARQFE
2B RBNEEEH
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FEMBRRMEE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 FIdFRXwe)
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income ERFERERTINGRNHESEN
statement represents: T
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Current income tax BUERFRISBE
— Hong Kong profits tax —BEFEH 14,748 18,416
- PRC enterprise income tax — R EMSH 15,941 1,249
Under/(over)-provision RBEFE
in prior years BHETR(BERE) 91 (307)
Deferred income tax (Note 25) EIEFTS R (M 5E25) (7,631) 237
Income tax expense Fris i sz 23,149 19,5695
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs RS2 BIBR BT AS B AT s A A9 B 18 B R A
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the i AR B A Bl F A hn e S B R
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the group SHAERSENEZZNAT

companies as follows:

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TSR T
Profit before income tax KR ETIS R A F 313,102 302,033
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate @A HERE R ARSI
applicable to profits in respective B AR R ERTIE
jurisdictions 27,648 38,283
Tax effects of: M E
Income not subject to tax AR A (507) (712)
Super Deduction HBEBRIN (22,178) (28,797)
Expenses not deductible for taxation IR 51E T
purpose 22,429 12,574
Utilisation of previously ) AR TR
unrecognised tax losses TIEERE (4,334) (1,446)
Under/(over)-provision RBAFE
in prior years BT R (BERE) 91 (307)
Income tax expense FriSHi 2 23,149 19,5695
The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year ended HZE2020F3A31HILFE - INiETFH
31 March 2020 was 8.8% (2019: 12.7%). The decrease is EAMEE8.8%(2019F : 12.7%) ©
primarily due to change in the profitability of the Group’s ZRBEFEANAEEATZEER X
subsidiaries in Vietnam which entitled to preferential tax HIBLEIPTEB A RIM B FIGE I EFTER
rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R BRRME

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 SRER
(a) Basic (a) EZFR
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit SHRERNBFIIZANTES AEL S
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted TR AF AR BT @A INEF S8
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. =tE o
2020 2019
20204 20194
Profit attributable to owners of RNAEEA A =T
the Company (HK$'000) (B¥Fr) 289,953 282,438
Weighted average number of BETT AR INE TS
ordinary shares in issue (‘000) (F8) 1,224,250 1,224,250
Basic earnings per share (expressed FRREREF
in HK cents per share) (AFRRBILZ51) 23.7 23.1
(b) Diluted (b) #8

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019 are the same as the basic earnings per share
as there were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued.
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H E2020F K2019F3 A31 B 1L &
B BRI ERTEEESTER
WMERE SR ENGRELRF -

199



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

200

B
HK§ 000
BT

Leasehold
Buildings  improvements

RRNESRE
HK§'000

#T7

13 Y% - BERKRE

Plantand ~ Office furniture
machinery  and fixtures
HORAR

BEkE
HK$ 000

i

RRERES
HKS 000

BT

Computer
equipment

Tk
HK$ 000
B7

Motor
vehicles

i
HKS'000
AT

Construction
in progress

HRIE
HKS 000

Total

it
HK$ 000
il

Asat 1 April 2018 201854818

Cost A 847450 1392573 1,690,111 292,136 154997 34829 407,151 4719267
Accumulated depreciation ZiE 46,312) (451,213 (644,226) (114.899) (87,496 19,010) (1,213 (1,364,369
Net book amount ERFE 801,138 941,360 1,005,888 7237 67,501 16819 405,938 3414878
Year ended 31 March 2019 HENOEIANALER

(pening net book amount EEESE 801,138 w0 100588 17181 67,501 15819 405938 3414678
Addtions e 40,370 131107 312,581 33,353 16,772 5030 591,636 1,190,849
Disposals e - - (1018 (269) (69) (589) - (1939)
Transfer-nflout) g)/(t) 70,936 151919 1317 7131 m - (288.474) -
Depreciation g (37,890) %,713) (117581) (55,925) (26,228 (4.905) - (339,242)
Curency ranslation differences ~ S4#EEE [16,215) (25,060) (35,168) {407 (1919 329) 7723 90491)
Closing net book amount EREmFE 808,339 1102613 1226016 177456 63,228 15,026 131311 4.174,0%
As at 31 March 2019 #201953831R

Cost i 942140 1,637,228 1,958,831 345,320 169,861 3119 3131 5821949
Accumulated depreciation ZifE (83,801) (534,615 (732815 (167,864 (106,633 (22,166 - (164789
Net book amount e 808,339 1102613 126,016 177456 63,228 15,026 131371 417405
Year ended 31 March 2020 HENNFIRNALER

Opening net book amount ENEARE 858,339 1,102,613 1,226,016 171,456 63,228 15,026 30 4,174,055
Additions HE 91,028 152,444 336,609 69,182 39,555 2,850 260,245 953,913
Disposals 3 - - (1,502) (64) (108) (66) - (1,40)
Transfern/lout) /(1) 371,196 169,379 1929 8974 17127 - (568,605) -
Depreciation i (49,009) (117.465) (132.433) (63,480) (33,116) (4.932) - (401,035)
Currency translation differences ~ EX#EZE (24.243) (31,830) (42.151) (4471) (1980) (267) (8,838) (113,780)
Closing net book amount EXEAFE 1241311 1275141 1,390,468 187597 84,106 12611 44179 4611413
As at 31 March 2020 H200E3E318

Cost s 1371163 1910175 2,196,985 414,166 216,602 33,576 44179 6,567,846
Accumulated depreciation ZifTE (129,852) (635,034) (806,517) (226,569) (132,496) (25,965) - (1956433
Net book amount FASE 12471311 1275141 1,390,468 187597 84,106 12611 414179 4611413
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation expense charged in consolidated income
statement is as follows:

e R BRRME

13 V¥  WERRE®
MBS RGBT BRI T -

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Cost of sales HER A 291,263 245,063
General and administrative expenses — M RITHF XX 104,060 89,048
Research and development costs B A 5,712 5,131

401,035 339,242

14 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE
RIGHTS

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net
book values are analysed as follows:

14 HETHR T HERE

REENEE T o 30 B RER 4
@ (RN EEEFIAREREF
E) DT

2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000
BRI

HK$'000
BT T

Opening net book amount FEmFEE 252,289 301,554
Transfer to right-of-use assets on RN E BB RS 2R

adoption of F16REREE

HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2) EREEE(M7F2.2) (252,289) =
Additions NE - 5,153
Disposals HE - (41,706)
Amortisation (Note 7) Ban(fiEE7) - (6,943)
Currency translation differences BEHMEEE - (5,769)
Closing net book amount FRIREFE = 252,289

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
As at 31 March R3A31H
Cost (BN - 273,015
Accumulated amortisation RET#E Y = (20,726)
- 252,289

Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is included
in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement.

HE i o 1 b {F MR ET ARS
WER R AV SHERA ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

15 LEASES 15 #HE

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (i) RGEEEAEEBREIANEE
sheet
Right-of-use assets EHRELE

202

Leasehold
land and
land use
Buildings rights Total
HAETHR
BE R e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BET T BT T BT T
Year ended 31 March 2019 HZE2019F3A318ILFE
Opening net book amount FYRREFE - - -
Adjustments for changes in BEIHEEEE
accounting policies (Note 2.2) EHAEE (F3E2.2) 186,900 252,289 439,189
Restated net book amount as at R2019F4/18H
1 April 2019 BB BREEEE 186,900 252,289 439,189
Additions NE 10,456 111,706 122,162
Disposals He (2,978) - (2,978)
Depreciation (Note 7) #rE (FsE7) (77.426) (8,371) (85,797)
Currency Translation differences B EERE 1,338 (7,324) (5,986)
Closing net book amount FAREEFE 118,290 348,300 466,590
As at 31 March 2020 202063 A31H
Cost AN 242,388 376,710 619,098
Accumulated depreciation 2 e (124,098) (28,410) (152,508)
Net book amount BRTESHAE 118,290 348,300 466,590

Depreciation expense of HK$58,139,000 (2019: nil) has
been charged in ‘cost of sales’, HK$18,769,000 (2019: nil)
in ‘general and administrative expenses’ and HK$8,889,000
(2019: nil) in 'research and development expenses’

respectively.

Lease liabilities

FE R B #58,139,0007T (20194 :
=) #18,769,0007C (20194 : &)
I 7&#58,889,0007T (20194 : T)E 5
RITEISHERA] ~ [ - RITHRFA ]

K[ B3RS IFP HIRR ©
HERE

As at
31 March 2020

As at
1 April 2019

7202063H31H 72019F4H1H

HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT

Non-current FERED
Buildings EF 63,129 129,234
Current B
Buildings EF 69,542 71,888
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE T T b AR 30,159 -
99,701 71,888
162,830 201,122
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

15 LEASES (continued) 15 #HE @)
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (i) NEZEWERBIANSE
statement:
Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
BZEUTHHLEFE
202043H31H 201943H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Depreciation charge of EHEESE
right-of-use assets TERX
Buildings gy 7 77,426 -
Leasehold land and land use rights ~ FA& 4 b &2 + Hh{f FAHE 7 8,371 -
85,797 -
Interest expense (included in B
finance cost) (FEABATSRAR) 9 9,145 -
Expense relating to short-term leases Hi4%g BifH & A FRIFI X 7 18,817 -
27,962 -
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the total cash HE2020F3A31HILFE - EHHEE
outflow for leases were HK$92,622,000. KIIR S B RE 2B 1692,622,0007T ©

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are (iii) 2EENEETBHRAARAN
accounted for

The Group leases various offices, factories and staff AEBHEETHAEZE BEKETL
quarters. Rental contracts are typically made in accordance BE - HESH —MRIRBHESENET
to the lease terms. 37 e

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and HEGRFRERE N EITER - &K
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The HIEHEE TR - SR EmEN
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than TR EHBARBELEERS
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by WEMERRIN - HERM S - HE
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for BENMSAEERR -

borrowing purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16 BEFEE

Computer
software

BN
HK$'000
BT

As at 1 April 2018 7A2018F481H
Cost [B#N 78,304
Accumulated amortisation Sty (33,5652)
44,752
Year ended 31 March 2019 HZE2019F3A31HILEFEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 44,752
Additions INE 14,506
Amortisation feii3ast (8,772)
Currency translation differences Bk s (816)
Closing net book amount FAREmFE 49,670
As at 31 March 2019 A201963H31H
Cost (BN 91,647
Accumulated amortisation RETE Y (41,877)
49,670
Year ended 31 March 2020 BZE2020F3A31BLFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 49,670
Additions NE 8,552
Amortisation (Note 7) BaE(FIaE7) (9,273)
Currency translation differences EEME (1,026)
Closing net book amount FAREmIFE 47,923
As at 31 March 2020 7202053 H31H
Cost D% 98,427
Accumulated amortisation REHE (50,504)
47,923

Amortisation of intangible assets is included in general
and administrative expenses in the consolidated income

statement.

RITHFX °
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17

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INSURANCE POLICY INVESTMENTS

e R BRRME

17 RERE

2020 2019
20204

20194
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Non-current assets FRBEE
Insurance policy investments REEIZE 130,110 76,130
Movement of the insurance policy investments is as follows: RERENEHIOT -

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000
BT

HK$'000
BT T

At beginning of the year REF) 76,130 66,631
Additions NE 49,046 12,321
Disposals HE (606) (1,550)
Fair value gain/(loss) recognised to REM WAL

other comprehensive income N EWRE(E8) 5,540 (1,272)
End of the year RER 130,110 76,130

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts
of the insurance policy investments represented the
cash surrender value of the insurance policies which
approximates their fair values (Note 3.2).

The insurance policy investments are denominated in the
following currencies:

R2020F 20193 A31H » fREEHK
AERAEEEEATFE(HEI2)RE
HERRIREEE o

REREATIIEGHESIE :

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT I

uss ESH 83,395 37,160
HK$ B 46,715 38,970
130,110 76,130
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

18 INVENTORIES 18 &
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Raw materials B 426,669 406,830
Work-in-progress TR 390,577 377,482
Finished goods BIR SR 282,207 112,188
1,099,453 896,500
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (2,848) (2,604)
Inventories, net FE S5 1,096,605 893,896
The costs of raw materials recognised as expense and HZE2020F3A31BHILFE - R ARM
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately S ET A E R A R AM B AL A
HK$2,166,269,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: 7B #2 166,269,000 7T (20194 : /B
HK$2,320,360,000). 2,320,360,0007T) °
19 TRADE RECEIVABLES 19 ESEWEREXR
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trade receivables Z SRR
— carried at amortised cost — RSN AR 319,251 461,951
— carried at — R AFEFA
FVOCI Hih2EATIR 409,268 356,206
728,519 818,157
Less: loss allowance of W B D EBRRN SRS
trade receivables (9,623) (3,442)
718,896 814,715
The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their B RWEFNREESE A FER
fair values. Ao
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19 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

(a) As at 31 March, the ageing analysis of gross trade
receivables based on invoice date were as follows:

(b)

19 EFERWERAR @

(a)

M3A31H ' B REUEBRETEREE
BEAHGEMNRRSTTAT

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

0-30 days 0%E30H 266,942 424,158
31-60 days 31E60H 261,554 230,609
61-90 days 61Z90H 107,612 119,813
Over 90 days BiB90H 92,411 43,577
728,519 818,157

The credit period granted by the Group is generally 30 to
120 days. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

As at 31 March, the carrying amounts of gross trade
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

(b)

AEBEREMERS—RAB/30E120
Ao AREYERSHTAETRER
& o

MR3A31A - BHERKIRFAENERE
BEATHIEEE

2020 2019
20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Us$ ET 640,294 681,004
HK$ ot 6,883 6,178
RMB ARHE 81,342 130,940
EUR BT - 35
728,519 818,157

(c) As at 31 March 2020, included in the Group's trade (c) M2020F3A318 Bt AKREEE
receivables were amounts due from a related party of BoREWEZ AEIW—2BE 5 HE
approximately HK$3,090,000 (2019: HK$7,857,000) (Note #75% ¥ 3,090,000 7T ( 2019 4F : & ¥
31(c)). 7,857,0007T) (KF3E31(c)) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19 ESEWERR @)
(d) Impairment and risk exposure (d) REKXEE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to AREBERBEBV B RELERFEIFR
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime AT 2R HEERIE - EmA
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Note 3.1 B 5 & U BR SR 17 48 B 78 HA ks 18
provides for details about the calculation of the expected & WS I RHBBTEEREES
credit loss and credit risk exposure. BREBERBREFS -
Movements in the Group's provision for impairment loss 7202093 A31H &2019F3A31H R
allowance for trade receivables as at 31 March 2020 and 31 EEFIRE 5 e U ER FRAY R B S 18 B
March 2019 as follows: HEHOT
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
As at 1 April R4/18 3,442 1,683
Increase in loss allowance recognised  FRREZSERH
in profit or loss during the year BB N 6,181 1,759
As at 31 March M3A31H 9,623 3,442
20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20 T’fi? - FEARIER A E
RECEIVABLES W FkIE
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Non-current portion FREET D
Rental, utilities and other deposits e AARBREMEZS 5,591 9,024
Prepayments for purchase of property, Y% - BE&
plant and equipment BN EURE /e 20,219 73,997
Prepayments for purchase of leasehold & EHE +3 1
land and land use rights T (s AR TR FRIE = 60,601
Other prepayments H b FEAROE 660 1,256
26,470 144,878
Current portion FENEB D
Rental, utilities and other deposits e AARBREMZS 3,282 3,819
Other prepayments HA B FRIE 28,103 30,371
Other receivables HAbEUGRIA 11,656 47,319
___________________________________________________________________________________ 43041 81,509
69,511 226,387
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20 L  AARERHEME
RECEIVABLES (continued) W SR IE ()
The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables HeEREMERZENEREEEAN
approximate their fair values. FEMEE °
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables do not contain BE - AR FRIE R A R YR IE I
impaired assets. BREOAEEE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date RN E HRERENSZAEERE A
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned EXREMESEERFIENREE ©
above. The Group does not hold collateral as security. REEN R A R EARIERER -
The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayment and other %4 - FBAHIE R E A ERZIENEE
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: EENA T EEEEHE
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
CHF IR ER - 32,581
Uss ES 16,417 30,486
HK$ B 28,044 30,827
RMB AR 15,813 10,670
VND A 9,237 121,823
69,511 226,387
21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERBEEEEY
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Cash at bank RITIHRE 586,696 465,977
Cash on hand FERD 920 459
Cash and cash equivalents B4 NIRESZEY 587,616 466,436
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 21

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
currencies:

HERBREEEW @)

R LR EEYATIIEREE

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
RMB AR 175,220 140,335
HKS ok 204,575 98,822
us$ T 176,463 224,329
VND MEE 31,143 2,287
EUR BT 190 455
Others Hith 25 208
587,616 466,436

Note: ffsE -

Cash and cash equivalents of HK$175,021,000 (2019: HK$140,217,000)
and HK$89,256,000 (2019: HK$8,532,000) are held in the PRC and
Vietnam, respectively as at 31 March 2020. They are subject to local
exchange control regulations. Those local exchange control regulations
provide for restrictions on remitting capital from the country concerned,

other than through normal dividends.

22 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary shares at US$0.01 each
As at 1 April 2018,

22

SEIE
HRRE(E0.01F TR E AR
7H2018%4818 -

Re kIR ESEYEN175,021,0007T (2019
F ¢ 7% 140,217,0007T ) K% #£89,256,0007T
(20194 : %¥#58,532,0007T) 7 B 202043 A
NARFBIRBRERE - ZEREH X E I
EEREPIRE - ZZEMINEEREIIRTE
EHABERERELHORS - MEBBIEE DL
PRI ©

R

Number of
shares
RHEE N
(thousands) HK$'000
(FA%) BT IT

Share capital

31 March 2019 and 2020 20194 }20209F3 A31H 50,000,000 3,875,000
Issued and fully paid: SRTRAR :
Ordinary shares at US$0.01 each FRXE(EO.01FE T L mAY
As at 1 April 2018, #K2018F4/818

31 March 2019 and 2020 20194 20203 A31H 1,224,250 95,247
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

23 RESERVES

Share
premium

Statutory
surplus
reserve

EE
Eoih
HK$'000
AR

23 f#E

Trade
receivables
at FVOCI
reserve
RATEHA
Efh2E
WAKES
TR e
HK$'00

BT

Insurance

policy

investments

reserve

fRE
R&Rh
HK$'000
AT

Exchange
reserve

Retained
earnings

RERA
HKS 000
BET T

e

&5t
HK$000
BT

As at 1 April 2018 as originally 201854718

presented (R%E50) 1,705,969 55,149 - 2991 32,526 9771700 2774335
Change in accounting policies REZAHBHEEGR

under HKFRS 9 and ERBRES 1550

HKFRS 15 SHHREY - - (1,309) - - (1,683) (2,992)
As at 1 April 2018 as restated 20184718 (RE5) 1,705,969 55,149 1,309) 2991 32,526 976,017 2,771,343
Profit for the year ERgH - - - - - BB 28438
Currency translation differences ERpEES - - - - (133,151) - (133,151)
Fair value loss on insurance policy RERELTEEE

investments - - - (1.272) - - (1272)
Fair value change on trade BATE AL R ERA

receivables carried EGI e

at FVOC], net AHERETE - - 163 - - - 163
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTITRE - 9,837 - - - (9.837) -
Dividends K& - - - - - (90,595) (90,59)
As at 31 March 2019 201938318 1,705,969 64,986 (1,146) 1719 (1006250 1,158,023 2,828,926
As at 1 April 2019 as originally R2019%4718

presented (BE%25)) 1,705,969 64,986 (1,146) 1,719 (100,625 1,158,023 2,828,926
Change in accounting policy Note 2.2)  &HBEEE (K:22) - - - - - (2,836) (2,836)
As at 1 April 2019 as restated R201954R1R8(KE5) 1,705,969 64,986 (1,146) 17119 (100,625) 1155187 2,826,090
Profit for the year ER T - - - - - 289953 289953
Currency translation differences EBpEzn - - - - (203332) - (203332)
Fair value gain on insurance policy RERENTEMG

investments - - - 5,540 - - 5,540
Fair value change on trade BATEALBZENA

receivables carried NEZRNETR

at FVOCI, net AVEREEE - - (1) - - - (1)
Transfer to statutory reserve BETITEE = 8,082 - - - (8.982) =
Dividends k& - - - - - (95492)  (95,492)
As at 31 March 2020 #202063A318 1,705,969 73,968 (1,157) 7,259 (303,957) 1,340,666 2,822,748

Note: MI3E -
(i) Statutory surplus reserve (i) EE R

ERTRIDXERREHE - RENTE
MRS E THI B A R A= 1240
Al MBARARETEE T EAIRER
MIBRBREFN0%EREETEHE &
EREERETMBANB0% RLE - ZiHE
A PRI AMEART PR EE R RO S 1R T PR DALY
DR

The balance mainly represents statutory surplus reserve. In
accordance with articles of association of certain subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC, the subsidiaries are required to transfer
10% of the profit after taxation prepared in accordance with PRC
accounting standards to the statutory reserve until the balance
reaches 50% of the registered share capital. Such reserve can be
used to reduce any losses incurred and to increase share capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

24

212

BORROWINGS

24 &

2020 2019
20204

20194
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Bank borrowings IRITRER
Non-current JEF & 2,852,437 2,166,533
Current TRE 737,568 857,565
3,590,005 3,024,098
Borrowings are analysed as follows: BRSO

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Non-current FEE)
Portion of term loans due for M E2FREAEER
repayment between 1 and 2 years FHERED 1,762,405 1,065,368
Portion of term loans due for R2E5FREAEER
repayment between 2 and 5 years FHERED 1,066,680 1,101,165
Portion of term loans due for SELTIHEEN
repayment over 5 years FHERED 23,352 -
2,852,437 2,166,533
Current RE
Portion of term loans due for RIFEREEEER
repayment within 1 year EHEREL D 419,411 66,667
Short-term bank loans HESRITER 318,157 790,898
__________________________________________________________________________________ 737,568 857,565
3,590,005 3,024,098
As at 31 March 2020, bank borrowing of HK$31,594,000 M202063 310 @ BITEFBE

(2019: nil) were secured by the Group’s certain insurance
policy investments of HK$30,900,000. Other bank
borrowings were secured by corporate guarantees given by
the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 March 2020, total undrawn trade and term loan
facilities amounted to approximately HK$2,571,090,000
(2019: HK$1,731,532,000).

31,694,0007C(20194F : ) AAEEH
A TR B % & 7% 30,900,000 7T fE K
o HMRITERBEARRRAAR
ATHERRIRE D RERERR -

R2020%3A318 @ KIREE 5 N FEH
ERRE @y BB 2 571,090,000
TT(20194F : j&#1,731,5632,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 BORROWINGS (Continued)

25

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated
in the following currencies:

e R BRRME

24 Bf&

TERHERERIATERE

2020 2019
20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

AT EETT

HK$ B 3,327,965 2,675,655
Us$ T 262,040 348,443
3,590,005 3,024,098

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's borrowings bore floating
rates and the effective interest rate per annum was 3.9%
(2019: 3.6%).

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The net movement on the deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) is as follows:

25

R2020F3 A318 » NEEMERIZ
FEF KR MBERFFEAE3.9%
(20194 : 3.6%) °

IR FT1SH

EEFBEREE,(BF)#
T~

A

2020
20204

2019
20194
HK$'000

/am:FTE

HK$'000
BT T

At beginning of the year REL] (5,927) (5,690)
Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 16 RRME BB F5 k& 2R

(Note 2.2) F169 TR (M5E2.2) 782 -
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated £t A (18 )4E&lzsx

income statement (Note 11) (BfEE11) 7,631 (237)
Currency translation differences EEmE =R (177) S
At end of the year WER 2,309 (5,927)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income
tax recoverable against current income tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis. The offset
amounts are as follows:

25 EIEFRBH (@)

BB ATE LR BT AR R A AT e = BD
HpSHENAmSHAaEEERE
EXFEREERABRRF —HBH
A Bt — {8 3 % {8 P& AR AR B AR U A0 P
SHEHLAHERRIRFEEES
B AEHIREM ST E E R
BiE - HESHBWT

2020 2019

2020 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Deferred income tax assets RIEFTS R EE 6,348 -

Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEHAR (4,039) (5,927)
Deferred income tax assets/ BIEFSREE

(liabilities), net (BE)F5E 2,309 (5,927)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are to be settled
after more than 12 months.

The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and
liabilities during the year without taking into consideration
of the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction
are as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities:

EEMEHEERABREE12(EA
BRI -

FRBEEMBHREERBBEAEN

B (IR E AR — B AR P
BRI T

EEFEHEE

Accelerated tax
depreciation

B
HK$'000
BT

As at 1 April 2018 R2018F4H1H 6,200
Credited to the consolidated income statement FALGZEWEEK (273)
As at 31 March 2019 R2019%43A31H 5,927
As at 1 April 2019 R2019F4H1H 5,927
Credited to the consolidated income statement FALGZEWEEK (444)
As at 31 March 2020 R2020943A31H 5,483
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 25 EZEFTEBw)
Deferred income tax assets: EIEFIEHEE :
Loss
allowance
of trade Lease
receivable liabilities Tax losses Total
5 EWERR
EERE HEAE BIAEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT Nt BT
As at 1 April 2018 M2018%4A1H - - 510 510
Charged to the consolidated st ALGZAUER
income statement - - (510) (510)
As at 31 March 2019 2019 3A31H - - - -
As at 1 April 2019 #201954A1H - - - -
Adjustment on adoption of  PARBF BB IR LD
HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2) 165 R TR
(fiizE2.2) - 782 - 782
Credited to the consolidated st ARAUER
income statement (1,409) 158 5,620 7,187
Currency translation g R
differences - - (177) (177)
As at 31 March 2020 #2020F3A31H (1,409) 940 5,443 7,792

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
HK$2,139,000 (2019: HK$6,473,000) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$12,963,000 (2019: HK$39,232,000)
that can be carried forward against future taxable income
indefinitely.

As at 31 March 2020, deferred income tax liabilities of
approximately HK$30,184,000 (2019: HK$26,507,000)
have not been established for the withholding taxation that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of subsidiaries
in the PRC of approximately HK$603,675,000 (2019:
HK$530,130,000), as the directors considered that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences
can be controlled and the related temporary difference will
not be reversed and will not be taxable in the foreseeable
future.

AT BB AR ERFEFNEIR A
MEMZMS - MenEEREsE
BRELEHMEREE - NEBWER
] 4 PR HB A5 8 LUK 88 R SR IERR AR A
/8518 75 # 12,963,000 7T (2019 4F : 8
#39,232,0007C ) R IELFF ST E
B 7% ¥ 2,139,000 7T (2019 4F : B &
6,473,0007T) °

MR2020F3A31H  HRNEERA
BEOAETREEENRMA TIE
BIRHBAEREZEEETEeRNA R
ERBEOIL TNEREH - ELERER
B {5 %978 % 30,184,000 7T (2019 4F :
78 % 26,607,000 7T ) I A& Ht B BT
BARAELBMEMEMNHEEL
7% ¥ 603,675,000 7T (2019 4F : B
530,130,0007T) L °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

26 TRADE PAYABLES 26 B ZEMERM

As at 31 March, the ageing analysis of trade payables based M3A31H ' BZEMNERFUREZAE

on invoice date were as follows: STERIRRTIT

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

0-30 days 0Z30H 210,788 202,472
31-60 days 31E60H 120,384 94,388
61-90 days 61Z290H 39,769 80,965
Over 90 days HRiE90H 14,359 554
385,300 378,379

R3A31A - BHEMNERKNIREENL

As at 31 March, the carrying amounts of trade payables are

denominated in the following currencies: T3 EHEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
HK$ B 49,705 90,372
US$ e 169,875 147,846
RMB AREE 41,247 44,405
VND WEE 114,817 85,212
EUR BT 9,650 10,536
Others Hh 6 8
385,300 378,379

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their
fair values.

I

g5 RNRRNREERE QAR

+

+

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

27 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 27 EERAREMEMNRIE
2020
20204
HK$’000
BT
Non-current portion FEENHAE D
Deposits e 1,487 =
Other payables HAbfERFRIE 11,305 5,549
12,792 5,549
Current portion ENERER
Accruals for wages, salaries, staff TE e BIwRAK
welfare and other related costs HAaiERAR A EET B 161,797 167,651
Payable for factory rent RS B FIE 1,637 13,407
Payable for purchase of property, BEYE  BER
plant and equipment HAiEIET I 72,576 69,100
Payable for construction in progress EREITIREN IR 341,561 269,429
Other payables HAtb e FRIE 78,135 87,407
e ©33,706) . 606994
668,498 612,543
The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are FERT B PR K H fth 8 A< SRR 0 AR D B DA
denominated in the following currencies: THEEEHE

HK$ otecd 71,069 72,207
RMB AR 84,911 119,614
Us$ E 31,696 48,618
VND WrEE 477,183 372,104
JPY HIE 3,639 -
668,498 612,543
The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables FERT % P o H At FE A5 508 A AR T B R
approximate their fair values. HAFEEE -
28 DIVIDENDS 28 B

Interim dividend, paid of HK3.8 cents BT H HAR B AR AR

(2019: HK3.6 cents) per ordinary share  3.8%1I(20194F : 3.6/&1l) 46,522 44,073
Final dividend, proposed, of HK4.0 cents &z R EiA% B G E @A

(2019: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share 4.0/ (20194 : 4.0/51(1)

(Note) (%) 48,970 48,970

95,492 93,043
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

28 DIVIDENDS (continued) 28 KE (@
Note: BT
At a meeting held on 29 June 2020, a final dividend of HK4.0 cents (2019: 202076 A29H B|ITHEH £ - Rk
HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share of the Company, totalling approximately HE2020F3A31 B EFEMRPKREARR
HK$48,970,000 (2019: HK$48,970,000) for the year ended 31 March 2020 74 R% B AL 4.055 1L (20194F © 4.054L) -
is proposed. These consolidated financial statements do not reflect this & H 4 A 148,970,000 7T (20194 : B
dividend payable. 48,970,0007T) ° ZF4r A W R A0 4 R Ak
ZIERARE o
29 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 29 REXKMBRE
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net (a) BREFEGHRANGHIELEEKTE
cash generated from operations R FHENHER
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit before income tax KR ET1S B A& 313,102 302,033
Adjustments for: FEEEE=
Amortisation of leasehold land and e+
land use rights o5 PR AR 6 = 6,943
Amortisation of intangible assets B S EE 9,273 8,772
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BE K&
equipment BBITE 401,035 339,242
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 85,797 -
Gain on disposal of property, plantand HEME -« BER
equipment and land use rights SR LA N 3 R S (641) (1,421)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets H&{FAEEER (1,008) -
Loss allowance of trade receivables B 5 RIE B RE 6,181 1,759
Gain on disposal of insurance policy HERE
investments wE R (80) (154)
Finance income 8T ON (2,281) (1,316)
Finance costs B TSR AN 162,819 90,182
974,197 746,040
Changes in working capital: LIEESEE
Inventories =FE (242,172) (103,817)
Trade receivables & 5 RUERK 82,432 20,448
Deposits, prepayments and other e BARER
receivables HAb MR IE (3,750) (40,731)
Trade payables Z ZERIRR 2,205 (26,334)
Accruals and other payables FEstE R R E M ENFRIE (33,150) 4,008
Cash generated from operations (RS EEIRETISIR G 779,762 599,614
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(Continued)

(b)

equipment and land use rights

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment and land use

rights comprise:

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

e R BRRME

29 REEKFBREW

(b) HEWMX BERRBEUARLH
£ AENFRERE
REABRERERT  HEWE - B
5 R 5% 85 A T - b (55 P A B BT 45 3R
BIE

2020
20204

2019
20194
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Net book amount of property, M - BE K

plant and equipment FABREFE 1,740 1,939
Net book amount of land use rights T+ AR E A - 41,706
Gain on disposal of property, plantand H&¥W¥E - BEN

equipment and land use rights, SRAB LA N -t f5F PR A

net (Note 7) Wezs 58 (P =E7) 641 1,421
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE  FEK

plant and equipment and SAR LA e e R Y

land use rights Fr{S 708 2,381 45,066

(c) Net debt reconciliation

(c) FEBHIR

2020
20204

2019
20194
HK$'000

/am:FTE

HK$'000
BT T

Cash and cash equivalents HERESEEY 587,616 466,436
Lease liabilities — buildings HEBE-—EF (132,671) =
Bank borrowings with variable interest % E)F|XiHEH
rates HRITHER (3,590,005) (3,024,098)
Net debt HE (3,135,060) (2,557,662)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

29 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 29 REXBMBRES @)
(Continued)
(c) Net debt reconciliation (Continued) (c) FEBYHIER®E
Other assets — Lease
cash and cash Liabilities - Bank
equivalents buildings borrowings
HihEE—
ReRk HE
ReSEY BfE-#F BITIRR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT
Net debt as at 1 April 2018 R2018F4 A1 BRFER 450,125 - (2,150,354
Cash flows Beng 25,513 - (873,744)
Foreign exchange adjustment INE R (9,202) - -
Net debt as at 31 March 2019 20193 A31 RAFER 466,436 - (3,024,098)
Recognised on adoption of RRABERIBREER
HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2) F169E DR (MH2.2) - (201,122) -
Net debt as at 1 April 2019 R2019F4 B 1 BEFER 466,436 (201,122) (3,024,098)
Cash flows BEhE 135,181 73,805 (565,907)
Lease additions HERE - (10,456) -
Lease disposals HEHE - 3,986 -
Foreign exchange adjustment SNETFE (14,001) 1,116 -
Net debt as at 31 March 2020 202053 A31 BAYFER 587,616 (132,671) (3,590,005)
30 COMMITMENTS 30 &I
Capital commitments BEREE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Contracted but not provided for BRI RFLIE -
Property, plant and equipment = MR Ve L B 262,056 292,668
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE £ 3 [z + M FA A 79,484 46,996
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31

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control.

Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited (incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands) owns 57.78% of the Company's
shares as at 31 March 2020 and is wholly owned and
controlled by Mr. Hung Yau Lit. In addition, Mr. Hung Yau
Lit directly holds 15.0% of the Company's shares as at 31
March 2020. The remaining shares are widely held. The
ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. Hung Yau Lit.

Name of related parties

BEL AR

Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited

BB 5 (BB)ERAF

Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad Factory
(Shenzhen) Limited

AEEEMRBBORIDERAT

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group has the following transactions with
related parties:

Sales of goods to a related party

HEEMT —RES

e R BRRME

31 BEEARS

W —TT BRE N ERKEEESN S —7
RS —IEM B R EERRAR
EXFEN ARG REMRE -
e & 77 = KRS RIS TS TR A
BRAE -

7202043 A31 B * Regent Marvel
Investment Holdings Limited ( 7 %
BEZESTHMEL) EEARA
57.78% ek » WHIMNESLELE
B RAEH o tEHh - FA2020F3A318 ¢
B EEERBBEARNARI5.0%E
me B TRDAZHALES - &%
E SRR B ELA -

Relationship with the Company
ERAR A B) AR

Common controlling shareholder
HEERRR

Common controlling shareholder

HEHERAR

(a) BEMBRREMEHARESEI -
REEEEETET N IRS

2020
20204

2019

20194
HK$'000
BT

HK$'000
BT T

— Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) — BB G (EE)
Limited (Note) BRAE (M) 12,569 26,528
Rental expense paid to a related party  [Al—ZEH X NHEESHY
— Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad — 4L 2= & 428 CFYI)
Factory (Shenzhen) Limited (Note) ARAB (M) 15,665 17,750

Note:

The pricing of these transactions was determined based on mutual
negotiation and agreement between the Group and the related parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 31 B ARS @)

(b) Key management compensation (b) XEEEEHN
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEET T BT T
Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances T& - %% - JE4T &IERL 31,719 31,906
Retirement benefits costs RIRE R
— defined contribution scheme — EREHIGTE 389 387
32,108 32,293
(c) Year-end balances with a related party (c) E—RBEEFNWEREER
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BT
Name of a related party —HEBEFNRE
Trade receivables: B SR -
- Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) — BB G (EE)
Limited (Note) BIRAR (M) 3,090 7,857
Note: MzE -
The trade receivables due from a related party are unsecured, interest- ER—EEEFTOE S RERFAEER - £
free and with credit terms of 60 days. BRIEEHIA60H -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32 BEHISENETMIA

As at 31 March, the Group held the following financial MN3A318  AEFEHAE TS/ T
instruments: A

\

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets BAFEFAEMER
carried at FVOCI WSS R EE
— Trade receivables —E IR 19 403,817 354,707
Financial assets carried R HR AT BR A
at amortised cost CREE
— Trade receivables —E IR 19 315,079 460,008
— Deposits and other receivables —iEe hEMEWTIE 20 20,529 60,162
— Cash and cash equivalents — B RESEEY 21 587,616 466,436
1,327,041 1,341,313
Financial liabilities SRAE
Financial liabilities RHER NG 28
at amortised cost acly=Li=
— Borrowings — &3 24 3,590,005 3,024,098
- Trade payables — B BEMNER 26 385,300 378,379
— Accruals and other payables —EFrERK
Hfth e 1< 5/ 1E 27 494,153 432,914
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 15 162,830 -
4,632,288 3,835,391
The Group's exposure to various risks associated with AEEGRESR T ABBEXKENS
the financial instruments is discussed in Note 3.2. The BRI 2 575 o RREHIK
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting BRAENSAEERM A - MSES
period is the carrying amount of each class of financial assets BEEMEmE -

mentioned above.
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FEMBRRMEE

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 33 ARFEEAGBRERE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY BE
Balance sheet of the Company AATREERER
2020 AONES]
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
ASSETS EE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Interest in a subsidiary R—EM B AR/ 510,724 510,724
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other £ BERER
receivables H oAb EUGIE 182 182
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURHT B A RIZRIE 1,346,760 1,342,509
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSFEY 330 383
________________________________________________________________________________ 1,347,272 1,343,074
Total assets BEHAE 1,857,996 1,853,798
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to EATEBA
owners of the Company PEfhfER
Share capital [N 95,247 95,247
Reserves i (a) 1,760,633 1,755,780
Total equity ERBE 1,855,880 1,851,027
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and JEETERA K
other payables HAb e A 2,021 2,689
Current income tax liabilities ENEAFRS R B (B 95 82
oo eeneoeeeecieeieocieieciececcieiiceioceoaoooo... R 2116 . 2,771
_Totalliabilities = 8&f®s® 2116 2,771
Total equity and liabilities EnkBEAE 1,857,996 1,853,798
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Reserve movement of the Company

33

(a)

e R BRRME

ARFEEREREHEE

B85

AATRERE

Share premium Retained

(Note) earnings Total

B EE
(BRF=E) g et
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
As at 31 March 2018 74201853 H31H 1,705,969 20,086 1,726,055
Profit for the year F 5% | - 120,320 120,320
Dividends (Note 28) %2 (FiE28) - (90,595) (90,595)
As at 31 March 2019 201963 H31H 1,705,969 49,811 1,755,780
Profit for the year E A A - 100,345 100,345
Dividends (Note 28) fig 2 (F5E28) - (95,492) (95,492)
As at 31 March 2020 74202063 H31H 1,705,969 54,664 1,760,633

Note: B &E -

The share premium of the Company is available for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company, provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

ARB B EER FERRELRDIK - AR
REREEH#D KRS B - AATAEER
BEBBIEHEROES o
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FEMBRRMEE

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 34 E=RZNREZR

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive HE2020F3A31HILFEBAES N
for the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out below: DARITBA B RFBE ST

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

PRBATERES(TRAZLASENBARER EARERNME

Employer's
contribution
Discretionary Housing to retirement
Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses  allowances schemes Total
EXEHK
BEfZ e & Wit EE2H THEIRR o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BRI
Executive directors HTES
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY i (X &)

Hung) (Chief Executive Officer)  (EE#77E) - 9,100 = = 54 9,154
Yiu Kar Chun Antony =g - 3,130 315 - 36 3,481
Sze Shui Ling wiE%R - 2,384 287 - 36 2,707
Liu Zhengiang 2En - 3,136 315 - 38 3,489
Chen Zhiping BET - 2437 289 - 38 2,764
Independent BUkHTES

non-executive directors
Or Ching Fai R 399 - 120 - - 519
Tam Lai Man EBX 336 - 80 - - 416
To Wong Wing Yue Annie R0 336 - 80 - - 416

1,07 20,187 1,486 - 202 22,946
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive BE2019F3A3IAILFEREEENR
for the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out below: RABITHABSFMESZINT -

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
SABATEFES( REREANBARER) BHRER#E

Employer's
contribution
Discretionary Housing  to retirement
Name of Director Salaries bonuses allowances
e ik i [ rizan
BETT
Executive directors HTES
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY S (X & iH2E)

Hung) (Chief Executive Officer)  (B/E2177E) - 9,100 - - 54 9,154
Yiu Kar Chun Antony et - 2,981 200 - 36 3217
Sze Shui Ling idiissd - 2,271 200 - 36 2,507
Liu Zhengiang 2| =% - 3,035 200 - 35 3,270
Chen Zhiping BET - 2,403 200 - 35 2,638
Independent BUFYTES

non-executive directors
Or Ching Fai TERE 399 - 120 - - 519
Tam Lai Man BEYX 336 - 80 - - 416
To Wong Wing Yue Annie BExE 336 - 80 - - 416

1,07 19,790 1,080 - 196 22137
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

No remunerations were paid or receivable in respect of
accepting office as directors during the year ended 31 March
2020 (2019: Nil).

No directors waived any emoluments during the year ended
31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

No emoluments were paid or receivable in respect of
directors’ other services in connection with the management
of affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking during
the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil). No consideration
was provided to or receivable by third parties for making
available directors’ services (2019: Nil).

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities (2019: Nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, none of the
directors received or will receive any retirement benefits or
termination benefits during the financial year (2019: Nil).

Except disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, no
director of the Company had a material interest, directly or
indirectly, in any significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company's business to which
the Company was or is a party that subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2019: Nil).
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
MBENBE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the NEEZEARE TS EERRABA AEM
Group for the last five financial years, prepared on the basis as set HWEENEHEES  EERBGEHZHT
out herein, is set out below: PO

Year ended 31 March
BE3AMHLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

20205 20194 20184 20174 20164
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
BETT BETT  BETx  BETr  BET

Results £
Revenue WA 6,341,010 6,263,280 5,868,048 4,676,937 5,081,774
Gross profit S 1,440,731 1,341,945 1,233,923 915,825 1,254,147
Profit attributable to owner of ~ ARXREE A
the Company FE{G 5 A 289,953 282,438 240,188 97,635 442,054
Adjusted net profit for the FRE R G|
year&2 289,953 282,438 240,188 98,005 475,477
Gross profit margin (%) ERE (%) 22.7% 21.4% 21.0% 19.6% 24.7%
Net profit margin (%) T (%) 4.6% 4.5% 4.1% 2.1% 8.7%
Adjusted net profit ST s | R (9 ) MR
margin (%) &2 4.6% 45% 4.1% 2.1% 9.4%
Assets and liabilities BEEREBE
Total assets EEBE 7,735,028 6,954,505 6,024,210 4,949,937 4,589,525
Total liabilities BESE (4,817,033) (4,030,332) (3,154,628) (2,329,845) (1,922,573)
Total equity b g 2,917,995 2,924,173 2,869,582 2,620,092 2,666,952
Notes: & -

(1) Adjusted net profit for the year is derived by adding listing expenses (1) FRLRARBGERTHEBINA LR RHRELT
and deducting (losses)/gains on derivative financial instruments, net and EEBMTAEEBE) WS FEATERE - BFR
excluding the related tax impact from the net profit for the year. TEEFRAFNEENHBBERETE -

(2)  This non-GAAP financial data is a supplemental financial measure that is 2) UHARETRUNMEBIEAERMGES
not required by, or presented in accordance with HKFRSs and is therefore 81 - BEMBREENLES K - FHER
referred to as a “non-GAAP” financial measure. It is not a measurement RMEBTBREEAZ7] - Bt - BLEREB
of the Group's financial performance under HKFRSs and should not [IERREGTRA NI B EEIAT o IR
be considered as an alternative to profit from operations or any other RBEBVERELEGEAEEYBERANS
performance measures derived in accordance with HKFRSs or as an % NERIERBEBMBSIRELREENK
alternative to cash flows from operating activities or as a measure of the LN EE A EMRRAHERIER
Group's liquidity. EEBHRETENEREEIBHEAEBRD

AEMIER -
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